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k|ltlglw–kq -k|f]S;L kmf/d_
-rf}aL;fF} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf nflu_

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt
g]kfn qm]l86 P08 sd;{ a}+s ln= .

ljifo M k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .
dxfzo,
================================ lhNnf ======================================== d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷uf=lj=;= j8f g+= ==================== a:g] 
d÷xfdL ====================================================== n] To; a}+ssf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] @)&* ;fn kf}if @( ut] 
ljxLjf/sf lbg x'g] rf}aL;fF} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] 
pQm ;efdf efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu =============================================================================== lhNnf  
============================================================ g=kf=÷uf=lj=;= j8f g+= ===================== a:g] To; a}+ssf z]o/wgL 
>L ===========================================================, z]o/ wgL g+=÷BOID No.: ==================================================nfO{ 
d]/ f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw dgf]gog u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ .

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] JolQmsf]	 lgj]bs
	 b:tvt M ========================================================
	 gfd M =============================================================
b:tvt M ============================================================	 7]ufgf M ==========================================================
z]o/wgL g+=÷BOID No. ======================================== 	 z]o/wgL g+=÷BOID No. =====================================
z]o/ ;+Vof M ======================================================	 z]o/ ;+Vof M ====================================================
ldlt M ================================================================	 ldlt M ============================================================
	

             sDkgL ;lrjsf] b:tvt	                   
b|i6Jo M
!_ k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ d's// ubf{ z]o/wgL afx]s c¿nfO{ ug{ kfOg] 5}g .
@_ of] lgj]bg ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g'eGbf (^ 306f cufj} lgjf{rg sfof{nodf btf{ ePsf] x'g'kg]{5 .

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] z]o/wgL g+=÷BOID No. : =========================================================================================
z]o/wgLsf] gfd M >L ====================================================================================================
z]o/ ;+VofM =============================================

k|j]z–kq
g]kfn qm]l86 P08 sd;{ a}+s ln=sf] rf}aL;fF} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt x'g hf/L ul/Psf] k|j] z–kq .

=========================	=============                 ===================================		
 k|ltlglw lgo'Qm x'g] 		  sDkgL ;lrjsf] b:tvt
 z]o/wgLsf] x:tfIf/		

b|i6Jo M	 !_	 vfnL :yfg z]o/wgL cfkm}Fn] eg'{xf]nf .
	 @_	 ;ef sIfdf k|j]z ug{ of] k|j]z–kq clgjfo{ ¿kdf lnO{ cfpg'x'g cg'/f]w 5 .

 a}+ssf] 5fk

 a}+ssf] 5fk
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;fwf/0f ;ef;DaGwL ;"rgf 	 ^

cWoIfsf] dGtJo	 *

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg	 !)

lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lg:sf;g lgodfjnL, @)&# sf]  
cg';"rL !% cg';f/sf] ljj/0f 	 @@

cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷)&* ljQLo ljj/0fx¿ 	 @*

cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷)&* sf] n]vf;DaGwL gLltx¿	 #%

cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷)&* sf] ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg  
ug{ g]kfn / fi6« a}+ssf] :jLs[lt kq	 !)^

k|aGw–kq tyf lgodfjnLsf] k|:tfljt ;+zf]wg	 !)*

ljifo–;"rL
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g]kfn qm]l86 P08 sd;{ a}+s lnld6]8sf]
rf}aL;f}“ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf

-k|yd k6s k|sflzt ldlt @)&* kf}if )$ ut]_

o; a}+ssf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)&* kf}if )@ ut] a;]sf] *&%cf}F a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ a}+ssf] rf}aL;f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef 
lgDg ldlt, :yfg / ;dodf b]xfosf ljifox¿df 5nkmn ug{ a:g] ePsf]n] ;a} z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] pkl:yltsf] nflu xflb{s 
cg'/f]w ub{5f}F .

!=	 ;ef x'g] ldlt, :yfg / ;do M 
ldlt	 M	 @)&* kf}if @( ut], laxLjf/ -tbg';f/ hgj/L !#, @)@@_ . 
;do	 M	 laxfg !!M)) ah] .
:yfg	 M	 a}+ssf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no glhs} /x]sf] xf]6n xflb{s, afuahf/ sf7df8f}+af6 sf]le8 –!( sf] dxfdf/Lsf] ljz]if 

kl/l:yltnfO{ b[li6ut u/L eRo'{cn (Virtual) dfWodaf6 ;DkGg ul/g] .

@=	 5nkmnsf ljifox¿ M 
-s_	 ;fwf/0f k|:tfjx¿ M 

-!_	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] rf}aL;f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg ;DaGwdf . 
-@_	 cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa / ;f]xL cjlwsf] gub 

k|jfx ljj/0f nufot ;+nUg cg';"rLx¿ ;d]tsf] PsLs[t ljQLo ljj/0f kfl/t ug]{ ;DaGwdf . 
-#_	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !!! adf]lhd cfly{s jif{ @)&*÷&( sf]] n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{sf] nflu n]vfk/LIfs 

lgo'lQm ug]{ / lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ ;DaGwdf .
-$_	 o;} ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ljz]if k|:tfjsf] -v_ -!_ cGtu{t cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] d'gfkmfaf6 a}+ssf] xfn sfod 

r'Qmf k"FhLsf] * k|ltzt af]g; z]o/ hf/L ug]{ k|:tfj k]z eP cg';f/ pQm af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f ubf{ nfUg] s/ 
k|of]hgsf nflu r'Qmf k"FhLsf] )=$@ k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] ¿= $,#$,@(,%$$.– gub nfef+z ljt/0f ug{ k|:tfj 
kfl/t ug]{ ;DaGwdf .

-v_	 ljz]if k|:tfjx¿ M 
-!_	 cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] d'gfkmfaf6 r'Qmf k"FhLsf] * k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] ¿= *@,%!,^!,##$.– a/fa/sf] af]g; 

z]o/ hf/L ug]{ ljz]if k|:tfj kfl/t ug]{ . ;fy}, af]g; z]o/ hf/L kZrft\ sfod x'g] leGg c+s -Fraction_ nfO{ 
eljiodf ;dfof]hg ug]{ u/L oyfjt\ /fVg] ;DaGwdf . 

-@_	 a}+ssf] k|aGwkqdf b]xfo adf]lhd ;+zf]wg ug]{ . 
@=!	 k|aGwkqsf] bkmf % df /x]sf] k"FhLut ;+/rgfdf b]xfo adf]lhd ;+zf]wg ug]{ ;DaGwdf .

-s_	 a}+ssf] clws[t k"FhL ¿= !!,%),)),)),))).– k'¥ofpg' kg]{ ePsf]n] ;f]xL adf]lhd ;+zf]wg ug]{ .
-v_	 a}+ssf] tTsfn hf/L ug]{ z]o/ k"FhL j[l4 u/L ¿= !!,!#,(^,&*,)!$.– k'Ug] ePsf]n] ;f]xL adf]lhd 

;+zf]wg ug]{ . 
-u_	 a}+ssf] r'Qmf k"FhL j[l4 u/L ¿= !!,!#,(^,&*,)!$.– k'Ug] ePsf]n] ;f]xL adf]lhd ;+zf]wg ug]{ . 

-#_	 a}+ssf] k|aGwkqdf ePsf ;+zf]wg;DaGwL ljz]if k|:tfjx¿ ;DalGwt lgofds lgsfoaf6 :jLs[lt lng] qmddf 
pQm lgsfox¿sf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ km]/abn, kl/dfh{g, yk36 ug'{ k/]df ;f] sfo{ ug{sf nflu ;~rfns 
;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ .

-$_	 g]kfn qm]l86 P08 sd;{ a}+s ln= / cGo pko'Qm a}+s tyf ljQLo ;:+yfx¿ Ps cfk;df ufEg] / ufleg] -dh{_ 
jf k|flKt -PlSjlhzg_ ug{ tyf j}b]lzs /0fgLlts ;fe]mbf/Ldf hfg pko'Qm b]lvPdf a}+ssf] rn crn ;DklQ 
/ bfloTj tyf sf/f]af/sf] d"NofÍg ug{ /fli6«o jf cGt/f{li6«o dfGotf k|fKt d"NofÍgstf{ lgo'lQm ug{ tyf ufEg] 
jf ufleg] jf k|flKt ug{] ;DaGwL ;xdlt÷;Demf}tf ug{] tyf ;f] ;DaGwdf k|rlnt sfg"g, lgod cg';f/ a}+ssf] 
tk{maf6 ug'{kg]{ ;Dk"0f{ sfo{ ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ .
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-u_	 ljljw M 
;fwf/0f ;ef;DaGwL cGo hfgsf/L
!=	 o; ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng] k|of]hgsf nflu a}+ssf] z]o/ bflvn vf/]hsf] sfd ldlt @)&* kf}if !@ ut] Ps lbg 

aGb /xg]5 . pQm ldlteGbf cl3Nnf] lbg;Dd g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h ln= df sf/f]af/ u/L l;=l8=P;= lSnol/Ë ln=af6 
/fkm;fkm ePsf] / a}+ssf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ ;g/fOh Soflk6n ln=sf] z]o/ clen]vdf btf{ ePsf z]o/wgLx¿ ;fwf/0f 
;efsf nflu of]Uo dflgg]5g\ . z]o/ sf/f]af/ aGb x'g' eGbf cufl8 g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h lnld6]8df sf/f]af/ eO{ 
o; a}+ssf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L ;g/fOh Soflk6n ln= df k|fKt ljj/0fsf] cfwf/df lxtu|fxL vftfdf sfod ePsf 
z]o/wgLx¿n] dfq ;efdf efu lng, dtbfg ug{ / cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] nfef+z lng kfpg]5g\ . g]kfn :6s 
PS;r]~h ln= df sf/f]af/ eO{ lwtf]kq Joj;foL -;b:o bnfn_ sf] Pool Account df /x]sf] z]o/sf cfwf/df z]o/wgL 
sfod gx'g] ePsfn] plNnlvt ldltleq z]o/wgLx¿sf] vftfdf ;dfj]z ug{ ;d]t ;DalGwt lwtf]kq Joj;foLnfO{ 
cg'/f]w ul/G5 . 

@=	 eRo'{cn -Virtual_ dfWod dfkm{t cfkm\gf] dGtJo /fVg rfxg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] ncc24agm@nccbank.com.np 
df Od]n u/L ;ef x'g'eGbf $* 306f cufj} cfkm\gf] gfd l6kfpg' kg]{5 . eRo'{cn dfWodaf6 ;efdf ;xefuL x'gsf 
nflu Meeting ID / Password pknAw u/fOg]5 .

#=	 ;ef z'? x'g'eGbf ! 306f cufj} eRo'{cn dfWod v'Nnf ul/g]5 . pQm Ps 306fsf] ;do cufj} ;efdf ;xefuL x'g] 
z]o/wgLx¿n] lbOPsf] ID / Password sf] dfWodaf6 Login u/L cfkm\gf] kl/ro, lxtu|fxL vftf g++= / z]o/ ;+Vof ;lxt 
pkl:yltsf] hfgsf/L ;ef;dIf u/fpg' kg]{5 .

$=	 ljZjJofkL ¿kdf km}lnPsf] COVID-19 sf] hf]lvdaf6 aRg / arfpg g]kfn ;/sf/n] hf/L u/]sf] :jf:Yo;DaGwL 
lgb]{zg / dfkb08n] tf]s]sf] eGbf a9L pkl:ylt gx'g] Joj:yfsf nflu eRo'{cn dfkm{t ;xefuL x'g User ID / 
Password pknAw u/fOg] ePsf] x'Fbf o; ljifonfO{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] ;sf/fTds ¿kdf lnO{ Online dfkm{t 
;xeflutf hgfpg / ;xefuL x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 . o; lsl;dsf] pkl:yltnfO{ ;ef xndf pkl:yt eP ;/xsf] dfGotf 
lbO{ pkl:yltdf u0fgf ul/g]5 .

%=	 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjsf] hfgsf/Lsf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg nufotsf ljj/0fx¿ a}+ssf] Website: www.
nccbank.com.np df /flvPsf] 5 / ljZjJofkL ¿kdf km}lnPsf] COVID-19 sf] hf]lvdsf sf/0f ;Dej eP;Ddsf] k|ljlw 
k|of]u u/L z]o/wgLx¿n] pknAw u/fPsf] Od]n dfkm{t l8lh6n k|ltj]bg k7fOg]5 .

^=	 ;efdf efu lngsf nflu k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] k|f]S;L lbFbf tf]lsP adf]lhdsf] 
9fFrfdf lbPsf] x'g'kg]{5 . k|f]S;L kmf/d ;ef x'g'eGbf (^ 306f cufj} sfof{no ;doleq a}+ssf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no 
afuahf/l:yt sDkgL ;lrjsf] ;lrjfnodf btf{ u/fO;Sg'kg]{5 . pQm lbg ;fj{hlgs labf k/]df plNnlvt k|of]hgsf 
nflu sDkgL ;lrjsf] ;lrjfno v'Nnf /xg]5 .

&=	 k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ul/;Sg' ePsf] z]o/wgL cfkm}F ;efdf pkl:yt x'g rfx]df ;f] sf] lnlvt ;"rgf ;ef 
x'g'eGbf $* 306f cufj} sfof{no ;doleq a}+ssf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no afuahf/l:yt sDkgL ;lrjsf] ;lrjfnodf btf{ 
u/fO;Sg'kg]{5 . pQm lbg ;fj{hlgs labf k/]df plNnlvt k|of]hgsf nflu sDkgL ;lrjsf] ;lrjfno v'Nnf /xg]5 .

*=	 s'g} z]o/wgLn] PseGbf a9L JolQmnfO{ clVtof/gfdf÷k|f]S;L lbPdf klxnf] k6s btf{ x'g cfPsf] k|f]S;LnfO{ dfGotf 
lbOg]5 / kl5Nnf] k6s btf{ x'g cfPsf] k|f]S;L :jtM ab/ x'g]5 .

(=	 ;+o'Qm ¿kdf z]o/ vl/b u/]sf] cj:yfdf z]o/ nut lstfadf klxn] gfd pNn]v ePsf] JolQm cyjf ;j{;Ddt¿kdf 
lgo'Qm ul/Psf] Ps JolQmn] dfq ;efdf efu lng / dtbfg ug{ kfpg]5 .

!)=	 ;+/Ifs /xg' ePsf z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] tkm{af6 a}+ssf] z]o/ nut lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ¿kdf gfd ePsf] JolQmn] 
dfq ;efdf efu lng jf k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug{ kfpg]5 .

!!=	 gfafns jf ljlIfKt JolQm z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af6 a}+ssf] z]o/ nut lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ¿kdf gfd btf{ ePsf] JolQmn] 
;efdf efu lng, dtbfg ug{ / k|ltlglw tf]Sg kfpg]5 . t/ ;+/Ifs cfkm}F z]o/wgL gePdf ;+/Ifsn] c¿ z]o/wgLsf] 
k|ltlglwTj u/L ;efdf efu lng ;Sg]5}g .

!@=	 s'g} ;Ful7t ;+:yf jf sDkgLn] z]o/ vl/b u/]sf] xsdf To:tf ;Ful7t ;+:yf jf sDkgLsf] tkm{af6 dgf]gLt ePsf 
k|ltlglwn] z]o/jfnfsf] x}l;otn] ;efdf efu lng / dtbfg ug{ ;Sg]5 .

k'gZrM -rf}aL;f}F+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg, k|aGwkqdf k|:tfljt ;+zf]wgsf] tLg dxn], k|f]S;L kmf/d tyf ;fwf/0f 
;ef;DaGwL lj:t[t hfgsf/Lsf] nflu ldlt @)&* kf}if $ ut]sf] sf/f]af/ /fli6«o b}lgs klqsfdf k|sflzt ;"rgf, a}+ssf]  
Website : www.nccbank.com.np df x]g{ / Download ug{ ;lsg]5 ._ 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] lg0f{ofg';f/ 
sDkgL ;lrj
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cWoIfsf] dGtJo
rf}aL;f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef

-cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&*_
-;~rfns ;ldltsf] @)&* kf}if @ ut]sf] a}7saf6 :jLs[t_

@$cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf eRo'{cn tyf ef}lts ¿kdf pkl:yt x'g'ePsf ;Dk"0f{ cfb/0fLo ;~rfns ;b:o, z]o/wgL, k|d'v 
sfo{sf/L clws[t Pj+ sd{rf/L ;fyLx¿df ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] x}l;otn] xflb{s :jfut clejfbg JoQm ub{5' . ljZje/ 
km}lnPsf] sf]le8–!( sf] dxfdf/L sfod g} /x]sf] / gofF gofF e]l/oG6x¿sf] lj:tf/ e}/x]sf] x'Fbf g]kfn ;/sf/n] hf/L u/]sf] :jf:Yo 
;DaGwL dfkb08 ;d]tsf] kfngf ug'{kg]{ ePsf]n] cfh;Dd klg xfdL ef}lts b"/LnfO{ d]6fO{ xfd|f sfo{qmdx¿ ;Dkfbg ug{ ;Sg] 
cj:yfdf ePgf}F . ;fy}, sf]le8–!( sf] gofF k|hflt cf]ldqmf]g efO/;sf sf/0f ljleGg d'n'sn] e]nf, ;ef–;Dd]ng / ofqfnfO{ 
k|f]T;flxt gu/]sf], ;'/Iff ;+j]bgzLntfnfO{ dWogh/ u/L @$cf}F ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;d]t k|ToIf ¿kdf pkl:ylt x'g] cj:yf g/x]sf] 
/ c;xhtf dx;'; x'Fbfx'Fb} klg o; ljifd kl/l:yltsf sf/0f of] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efnfO{ Go"gtd ef}lts pkl:yltd} ;DkGg 
ug'{k/]sf] 5 . ctM o:tf] ljifd kl/l:yltdf ;fwf/0f ;efnfO{ j}wflgstfsf nflu k|f]S;L ;lxt cfkmF} / eRo'{cn dfWod dfkm{t pkl:yt 
x'g'ePsf z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿k|lt k'gM Ps k6s cfef/ JoQm ub}{ s'g} c;'ljwf ePsf] eP ;do ;[lht c;xhtf dgg u/L Ifdf 
ug'{x'g]5 eGg] ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' .

ljZjJofkL¿kdf km}lnPsf] sf]le8–!( / o;sf gofF :j¿ksf sf/0f pko'Qm ljsNksf] vf]hL / klxrfg ub}{ eRo'{cn dfWodaf6 
;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ug{ / cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] k|ltkmn lbg ul/Psf] k|oTgnfO{ ;sf/fTds ¿kdf lnO lbg'x'g]5 eGb} 
z]o/wgLx¿ Pj+ a}+s Joj:yfkg, lgIf]kstf{, shf{ lnO{ a}+snfO{ ;xof]u k'¥ofpg'x'g] ;a} JolQmTjnfO{ cfef/ JoQm ug{ rfxG5' . ;fy}, 
kRrL; jif{sf] nfdf] ofqfsf] Pp6f ;xofqL x'g kfpFbf d}n] klg uj{ ug]{ df}sf kfPsf] 5' . kRrL; jif{ ;Dd tkfO+{x¿ ;a}sf] ;xof]u 
Pj+ z'e]R5faf6 cfh xfdL ufpFb]lv zx/;Ddsf cfd hg;d'bfodfem ;Dk"0f{ a}+lsË ;]jf ;'ljwf k'¥ofpg] nIosf ;fy ;ftj6} k|b]zdf 
a}+ssf] ;~hfn lj:tf/df cu|;/ /xFb} xfdL o; a}+snfO{ cfd ;j{;fwf/0fsf] kx'Fr;Dd k'¥ofO{ cfkm\g} 3/cfFugsf] a}+ssf] ¿kdf lrgfpg] 
k|of;df klg cu|;/ /xFb} o; cj:yf;Dd cfOk'u]sf] s'/f oxfFx¿ ;dIf /fVg rfxG5' . d o; cj;/df a}+ssf] ;fv clej[l4df ;xof]u 
k'¥ofpg' x'g] ;a}df xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub}{ wGojfb JoQm ug{ rfxG5' .

sf]le8–!( sf sf/0f nfdf] ;do;Dd ePsf] lgif]wf1fsf sf/0f k"0f{ ¿kdf cfly{s lqmofsnfk a9\g ;s]sf 5}gg\ . Aofh cfDbfgLsf] 
7"nf] /sd c;'nL x'g g;Sg', lgIf]k nfut a9]sf] sf/0f Aofh cGt/ b/ sd eO{ v'b Aofh cfDbfgL Go"g x'g uPsf] ;fy} shf{df 
yk ul/Psf] k|fjwfg / g]kfn ;/sf/n] hf/L u/]sf] :jf:Yo;DaGwL dfkb08 kfngf ug{sf] nflu ePsf] vr{;d]tsf sf/0f a}+ssf] o; 
cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df ;d]t v'b d'gfkmfdf cfPsf] ;+s'rgsf] cj:yf ;a}nfO{ ljlbt} /x]sf] 5 eGg] ljZjf; d}n] lnPsf] 5' . o; 
ljifd kl/l:yltdf klg /fi6« / lgofds lgsfon] lnPsf gLlt tyf lgb]{zgsf] kfngf ub}{ !#& zfvfx¿ dfkm{t ;ftj6} k|b]zdf a}+lsË 
;]jf lbFb} cfO/x]sf 5f}F . a}++ssf] Joj;fodf ;+s'rg gcfcf];\ egL xfd|f ;a} k|oTg hf/L /x]sf] Joxf]/f klg lgj]bg ug{ rfxG5' . rfn" 
cfly{s jif{sf ;"rsx¿ t'ngfTds ¿kdf ;sf/fTds g} /x]sf 5g\ . ctM a}+ssf z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] xfd|f sfo{x¿nfO{ ut 
jif{h:t} o; jif{ klg ;sf/fTds ¿kdf g} lng' x'g]5 eGg] cfzf lnPsf] 5' .

o; dxfdf/Lsf] cjlwdf ;d]t k"FhL / vr{sf] ;kmn Joj:yfkg ug{ ;s]sf sf/0f a}+lsË If]qdf /x]sf] k|lt:kwf{sf aLr o; a}+sn] 
cfkm\gf] ljQLo sf/f]af/ j[l4 ub}{ d'gfkmf cfh{g a9fpFb} nUg]tkm{ a}+ssf] k|fyldstf /x]sf] s'/f oxfF lgj]bg ug'{ jf~5gLo 7fGb5' . 
d hlxn] klg ;a} ;d:ofsf] lgsf; lgod, k4lt / k|0ffnLaf6 g} vf]Hg'kb{5 eGg] dfGotf /fVg] ePsf]n] k|rlnt sfg"gL k|lqmofaf6 
xfdLn] cfkm"nfO{ cufl8 a9fPsf] s'/f bf]xf]¥ofpg rfxG5' . csf]{ tkm{ xfdLn] rfn]sf x/]s kfOnfx¿ sfg"g, gLlt / lgodsf] kl/lwdf 
/xL ;~rflnt x'g' kb{5 eGg] dfGotfaf6 cufl8 a9\g] xfd|f] k|oTg /lx/xg]5 . o;sf nflu cf–cfkm\gf] If]qaf6 of]ubfg k'¥ofpg' x'g] 
z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, d]/f ;~rfns ;fyLx¿, u|fxsju{, a}+s Joj:yfkg / sd{rf/Lx¿ nufot z'e]R5's tyf cGo ;Dk"0f{ ;Da4 
lgsfox¿nfO{ k'gM wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' .

xfdLn] ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj dfkm{t nlIft ;d'bfosf] lbuf] cfly{s ljsf; / ;fdflhs ljsf;sf] k|j4{g ug{] sfo{sf nflu 
ljutb]lv g} of]ubfg ub}{ cfPsf 5f}F . a}+lsË If]qn] ;du| cy{tGq / JolQmut hLjgsf cfly{s ultljlwdf cxd\ e"ldsf v]Ng] x'gfn] 
xfdL xfd|f u|fxsju{x¿nfO{ ;''ne, ;/n, ;dofg's"n, e/kbf]{ / ;'/lIft ;]jf lbO{ ;du| b]zsf] cfly{s j[l4df 6]jf k'¥ofpg k|lta4 
/x]sf 5f}F eg] a}+snfO{ ufpF3/sf] a}+ssf ¿kdf :yflkt u/fO{ ;an / ljZj;gLo agfpg cfw'lgs k|ljlwo'Qm l8lh6n a}+lsË ;]jfsf] 
j[l4sf ;fy} o;sf] hf]lvd Go"gLs/0fsf nflu cfjZos hgzlQmsf] Joj:yfkg ;'b[9 / ;Ifd agfpg] tkm{ klg ;r]t /x]sf 5f}F .
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jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷)&*

cfly{s jif{ @)&^÷&& df sfod /x]sf] s'n lgIf]kdf a}+sn] #(=!&Ü j[l4 u/L cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df ¿= !!) ca{ *) s/f]8 lgIf]k 
kl/rfng u/L cfly{s jif{ @)&^÷&& df sfod /x]sf] shf{ nufgLdf $$=(&Ü j[l4 u/L cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df ¿= (* ca{ #@ 
s/f]8 v'b shf{ nufgL k|jfx ug{ ;Ifd /x]sf] 5 . a}+sn] xfn;Dd u/]sf cfly{s nufot cGo ultljlwsf af/]df ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
k|ltj]bgdf lj:t[t ¿kdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 . sf]le8–!( sf] ;+qmd0fdf qmlds ;'wf/ cfO{ cfly{s lqmofsnfkn] ;fdfGo ult lnP 
kZrft\ rfn" cfly{s jif{sf] k|yd q}dfl;s shf{sf] dfu a9\g uO{ shf{ nufgL a9]sf] / ;f]xL cg'kftdf lgIf]k a9\g g;s]sf] x'Fbf a}+lsË 
ahf/df nufgLof]Uo k"FhLsf] cefj eO{ t/ntfsf] k|efj k/]sf] 5 . o;n] ubf{ a}+ssf] Joj;fo clej[l4 ug]{ ljifodf s]xL sl7gfO 
cfPsf] b]lvG5 . t/ntfsf] rfk nfdf] ;do;Dd hfg glbg ;DalGwt kIfaf6 cfjZos kxnsbdL x'g] ljZjf; xfdLn] lnPsf 5f}F . 
t/ntfsf] cj:yfdf ;du| cy{tGqdf kg]{ gsf/fTds k|efjnfO{ kSs} klg ;a} kIfn] a'em]sf] x'Fbf o:tf] kl/l:ylt cGTo ug{ PsLs[t 
k|of;df xfdL ;b}j ;r]t /xL ;xsfo{ ub}{ cufl8 a9\g] s'/f ljZjf; lbnfpg rfxG5' .

;"rgf k|ljlw / ;fOj/ ;'/Ifftkm{ klg xfd|f k|aGwx¿ pRr:t/df x'g'k5{  . xfdLn] k|of]u ub}{ cfPsf ;km\6j]o/nfO{ gofF ;km\6j]o/n] 
k|lt:yfkg u/L ToxL ¿kdf cufl8 a9fpg' cfhsf] cfjZostf dfq geO{ clgjfo{tf eO;s]sf] 5 . o:tf tYo / tYofÍnfO{ ljZn]if0f 
ub}{ xfdLn] dh{/sf] nflu ;fem]bf/sf] vf]hL ul//x]sf 5f}F . hgzlQmsf] pRrtd Joj:yfkg ug'{kg]{ r'gf}tL klg /x]sf] 5 . dh{/sf nflu 
;ldlt u7g u/L u[xsfo{ ;d]t e}/x]sf] 5 . a}+s tyf z]o/wgLsf] clwstd lxt x'g]u/L dh{/ k|lqmof cufl8 a9fpg] s'/fdf o;} ;efaf6 
;Dk"0f{ dxfg'efjdf k|lta4tf ug{ rfxG5' . ;fy}, dh{/ ;ldlt ;d]t ;f]xL tl/sfn] lqmofzLn /x]sf] Joxf]/f ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fpFb5' . 

;fy}, o; ul/dfdo ;fwf/0f ;efdf d s]xL gLltut ljifo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿;dIf /fVg] cg'dlt rfxG5' . o; a}+ssf] klxrfgnfO{ 
cem dflyNnf] :t/df k'¥ofpg xfd|f] cfkm\gf] kx'Fr g]kfnsf ;a} k|b]z / lhNnfdf k'¥ofpg' kg]{ x'Fbf % jif{leq ;a} gu/kflnsfleq 
cfkm\gf] pkl:ylt agfpg] tkm{ xfd|f] k|fyldstf /xg]5 . ;fy;fy}, cfufdL !) jif{ leqdf ;a} :yfgLo:t/df xfd|f] kx'Fr k'¥ofpg] 
sfo{nfO{ hf]8 lbOg]5 . tTsfn skf]{/]6 sfof{nosf] nflu ejg ef8fdf lnO{ sfo{ ;~rfng ug]{ ;f]r xfdLn] lnPsf] ePtf klg 
bL3{sfnLg ¿kdf cfkm\g} hUufdf Jojl:yt skf]{/]6 sfof{no agfpg pko'Qm x'g]x'Fbf o;} cfly{s jif{leq skf]{/]6 clkm;sf] nflu 
pko'Qm :yfgdf hUuf klxrfg u/L a}+snfO{ eljiodf Jojl:yt¿kdf ;~rfng ug]{ nIo xfdLn] /fv]sf 5f}F .

a}+sx¿aLr Pg;L;L a}+ssf] k|f]kmfOnnfO{ ;Gtf]ifhgs ¿kdf pEofpg] u/L xfdLn] ;a} k|of; u/]sf] s'/f oxfF /fVg rfxG5' . c¿ 
a}+saf6 ;Dkfbg x'g] ;a} sfo{ xfdLaf6 klg ;Dkfbg x'g] u/L a}+ssf ljljw ;]jf / o;sf nflu cfjZos ;+/rgfx¿ agfpg] tkm{ 
xfdL s]lGb|t /xg] s'/f o; ;efdf /fVg jf~5gLo 7fGb5' . st{Jo lgjf{x g} xfd|f] k|yd kfOnf x'g]5 . Pg;L;L a}+s /fli6«o qm]l8l6jn 
sdl;{on OlG:6Ro';gsf] ¿kdf :yflkt x'g] s'/f oxfF ;dIf /fVg kfpFbf xfdLnfO{ ;Gtf]if nfu]sf] 5 .

cGTodf, ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] x}l;otn] o; ;efdf cfkm\gf] dGtJo /fVg kfPsf]df cToGt v'zL JoQm ub}{ oxfFx¿n] b]vfpg' 
ePsf] ;b\efj / ;xof]uk|lt xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ug{ rfxG5' . ;fy}, o; a}+snfO{ of] cj:yf;Dd k'¥ofpg lgofds lgsfo g]kfn /fi6« 
a}+s, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h nufot ;Dk"0f{ lgofds lgsfox¿, z]o/wgL, lgIf]kstf{, 
shf{ lnO{ a}+snfO{ ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] JolQm tyf ;+:yfx¿k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf JoQm ub{5' . ;fy}, a}+s Joj:yfkgdf dnfO{ ;xof]u ug'{x'g] 
d]/f ;~rfns ;fyLx¿, a}+s Joj:yfkgsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t, ljefuLo k|d'vx¿, k|b]z k|d'vx¿ nufot ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx¿k|lt 
ljz]if wGojfb 1fkg ug{ rfxG5' . tkfO{+x¿sf] nugzLntf g} a}+snfO{ cem dfly p7fpg] s8Lsf] ¿kdf /xG5 eGg] ljZjf; /fVb} 
a}+ssf sd{rf/L tyf z]o/wgLx¿nfO{ cem a9L ;]jf, ;'ljwf / k|ltkmn k|bfg ug]{tkm{ k"0f{ k|lta4tf /x]sf] s'/f oxfF bf]xf]¥ofpFb} cfkm\gf] 
egfOnfO{ lj>fd lbg rfxG5' .

pBf]lug+ k'¿ifl;+xd'k}lt nIdL b}j{]g b]oldlt sfk'¿iff jblGt .
b}j+ lgxTo s'¿ kf}¿ifdfTdzs\Tof oTg] s[t] olb gl;b\Wolt sf]˜q bf]ifM ..

cy{ M pBf]uL dflg;x¿nfO{ ;DklQ k|fKt x'G5 . pBd gug]{ sfo/ dflg;x¿ efUon] ldN5 eg]/ To;} a:b5g\ .
ctM efUosf] e/df ga;]/ dflg;x¿n] k'¿iffy{ u/L pknlAw xfl;n ug{ k|oTg ug'{kb{5 . k|oTg ubf{ klg ldn]g eg] s] bf]if Û

wGojfb Û
pk]Gb|s]z/L Gof}kfg]
cWoIf
ldltM @)&*÷)(÷@(
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cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿,

g]kfn qm]l86 P08 sd;{ a}+s lnld6]8sf] rf}aL;f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf eRo'{cn tyf k|ToIf¿kdf pkl:yt x'g' ePsf cfb/0fLo 

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿af6 kfNg' ePsf k|ltlglw nufot pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ :jfut ub{5f}F . 

o; ;efdf cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg, cGt/f{li6«o Pj+ /fli6«o cfly{s kl/b[Zo / o;n] a}+ssf] sf/f]af/df 

kf/]sf] c;/, xfn;Ddsf] pknlAw Pj+ efjL of]hgf, sDkgLsf] Jofj;flos ;DaGw, sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ tŒjx¿ Nfufotsf 

ljifo Pj+ sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)( n] clgjfo{ u/]sf ljifo ;lxtsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 . a}+s 

tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&#, sDkgL P]g, @)^#, k|rlnt cGo sfg"g tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{zg adf]lhd 

of] k|ltj]bg o; jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k|:t't u/]sf 5f}F .

!=	 ljut jif{sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg

ljj/0f cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&& km/s

r'Qmf k"FhL 10,314,516,680 (,#%#,(!^,($% 960,599,735

hu]8f sf]if 4,329,771,113 #,*)&,)*%,^%# 522,685,460

lgIf]k 110,801,229,681 &(,^!&,)%!,$)@ 31,184,178,279

v'b shf{ tyf ;fk6 98,317,328,421 ^&,*!(,$%#,)%@ 30,497,875,369

s'n ;DklQ 134,730,022,477 (^*,*@!,%&,^*( 37,847,864,788

Aofh cfDbfgL 8,575,657,701 *,$%^,($!,($) 118,715,761

Aofh vr{ 5,425,772,165 %,@$&,#(@,(#) 178,379,235

v'b Aofh cfDbfgL 3,149,885,535 #,@)(,%$(,)!! (59,663,476)

sldzg tyf z'Ns cfDbfgL 1,330,399,108 *@$,)$$,#^@ 506,354,746

s'n cfDbfgL 4,480,284,644 $,)##,%(#,#&# 446,691,271

sd{rf/L tyf ;~rfng vr{ 2,246,906,899 !,(%$,*%&,!&* 292,049,721

v'b gf]S;fgL Joj:yf 313,351,306 $)%,^!*,&)# (92,267,397)

s/ tyf af]g; cufl8sf] gfkmf 2,133,362,709 !,*^),^*^,!)@ 272,676,607

v'b gfkmf 1,330,625,253 !,!)*,$&#,()^ 222,151,347

lgliqmo shf{ k|ltzt 1.76℅ @=*^% (1.10%)

k"FhL kof{Kttf cg'kft 13.75℅ !#=*$% (0.09%)

	

ldlt @)&& df3 )( ut] ;DkGg a}+ssf] t]O{;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efn] af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f ug]{ k|:tfj :jLs[t u/] kZrft\ a}+ssf] 

r'Qmf k"FhL ¿= !) ca{ #! s/f]8 $% nfv !^ xhf/ ^ ;o *) k'u]sf] 5 . a}+lsË Joj;fodf a9\b} u/]sf] k|lt:kwf{, v'b Aofhb/ 

cGt/ ;+s'rg h:tf r'gf}tL ljBdfg /xFbf klg cfly{s jif{ @)&&.&* df a}+sn] sl/a ¿= !!) ca{ *) s/f]8 lgIf]k kl/rfng 

u/L ¿= (* ca{ #@ s/f]8 v'b shf{ k|jfx ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . ;fy}, a}+sn] cfly{s jif{ @)&&.&* df ¿= ! ca{ ## s/f]8 

v'b gfkmf cfh{g u/]sf] 5 . a}+sn] cfly{s jif{ @)&&.&* df lgliqmo shf{ !=&^ k|ltztdf ´fg{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . a}+ssf] s'n 

k"FhLsf]if cg'kft Go"gtd !! k|ltzt tf]lsPsf]df ;dLIff jif{df a}+ssf] s'n k"FhLsf]if !#=&% k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg
rf}aL;f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef

-cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&*_
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jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷)&*

@=	 /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o cfly{s kl/b[Zo / a}+ssf] sf/f]af/df ;f]sf] c;/

-s_ cGt/f{li6«o cfly{s kl/b[Zo

	 sf]le8–!( dxfdf/Lsf] sf/0f ;g\ @)@) / @)@! df ljZj cfly{s ultljlwdf pNn]vgLo k|efj k/]sf] 5 . sf]le8–!( 

lj?4sf] vf]ksf] kx'Frdf lj:tf/ eP;Fu} cfly{s ultljlwx¿ qmdzM ;fdfGo x'Fb} hfg] cg'dfg /x]sf] lyof] . oBlk, sf]/f]gf 

efO/;sf] gofF gofF :j¿k (Variant) b]lvFb} hfg'n] ljBdfg dfgjLo Pj+ :jf:Yo ;+s6sf] lgoGq0fdf yk Wofg lbg'kg]{ 

b]lvPsf] 5 . ;fy}, Go"g tyf clt sd ljsl;t d'n'sx¿df sf]le8–!( lj?4sf] vf]ksf] pknAwtf kof{Kt dfqfdf x'g 

g;Sbf sf]le8 ;+qmldt / d[To' x'g]sf] ;+Vofdf pNn]vgLo sdL cfPsf] 5}g . 

		  kl5Nnf] !%) jif{sf] cjlwdf ljZjdf b]lvPsf cfly{s dGbLsf] t'ngfdf sf]le8–!( dxfdf/Lsf] sf/0f l;lh{{t cfly{s dGbLsf] 

k|efj Jofks / pRr /x]sf] 5 . kmn:j¿k ;g\ @)@) df ljZj cy{tGq #=# k|ltztn] ;+s'lrt ePsf] 5 . cGt/f{li6«o d'b|f 

sf]ifn] ;g\ @)@! df ljZj cy{tGq ^=) k|ltzt / ;g\ @)@@ df $=( k|ltztn] lj:tf/ x'g] cg'dfg u/]sf] 5 . 

	 kl5Nnf] ;dodf ljZjsf ljleGg d'n'sx¿sf] ;du| d"No:t/df b]lvPsf] bjfan] s'n dfu / cfk"lt{aLr plrt tfnd]n 

x'g ;s]sf] 5}g . ljZjdf b]lvPsf] ;du| d"No:t/sf] k|j[lQaf6 jt{dfg clglZrttfsf] aLrdf ;d]t ljZj d'b|f:kmLlt ;g\ 

@)@@ dxfdf/Lk"j{s} xf/fxf/Ldf k'Ug] cg'dfg /x]sf] 5 . ;du| d"No:t/df bjfa l;h{gf x'Fbf ;+s'rgsf/L ljQ / df}lb|s 

gLltnfO{ cjnDag ug'{kg]{ cj:yf /x] klg sf]le8–!( af6 l;lh{t cfly{s dGbLsf] ;Gbe{df ;+s'rgsf/L gLlt yk 3fts 

x'g;Sg] x'Fbf xfn b]lvPsf] gLltut låljwfnfO{ ;Daf]wg ug{ ;Gt'ngsf/L ljQ tyf df}lb|s gLlt cjnDag ug'{kg]{ b]lvG5 . 

ljz]ifu/L clxn]sf] ljifd kl/l:yltdf s'n dfunfO{ j[l4 ug{ / cfd pkef]Qmfsf] cfTdljZjf;nfO{ sf]le8 k"j{s} cj:yfdf 

k'¥ofpg cy{tGqsf] k'g?Tyfg Ifdtf (Resilience Capacity) a9fpg' kg]{ cfjZostf 5 .

	  	-cy{ dGqfno M cy{ a'n]l6g, cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] tYof+sdf cfwfl/t, af6 ;fef/ ul/Psf]_

-v_ /fli6«o cfly{s kl/b[Zo

;g\ @))* sf] ljZjJofkL ljQLo ;+s6af6 g]kfnsf] cy{tGqdf Go"g k|efj k/]sf] eP klg sf]le8–!( dxfdf/Laf6 l;lh{t 

dfgjLo tyf :jf:Yo ;+s6af6 g]kfnL cy{tGqdf pNn]Vo k|efj k/]sf] 5 . dxfdf/Lsf] sf/0f cy{tGqsf k|foM ;a} If]q 

tyf pkIf]qx¿sf] pTkfbgdf sdL cfpFbf cfly{s jif{ @)&^÷&& df g]kfnsf] cy{tGq @=! k|ltztn] ;+s'rg ePsf] lyof] . 

sf]le8–!( dxfdf/Lsf] afjh'b cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df g]kfnsf] cy{tGq $=) k|ltztn] lj:tf/ x'g] k|f/lDes cg'dfg 

/x]sf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] t];|f] rf}dfl;ssf] cGTo;Dddf sf]le8–!( sf] k|efj cy{tGqdf qmdzM Go"g x'Fb} hfg] 

k"jf{g'dfgsf cfwf/df cfly{s j[l4b/ $=) k|ltzt /xg] cg'dfg ul/Psf] lyof] . oBlk @)&* ;fnsf] j}zfv dlxgfaf6 

z'? ePsf] sf]/f]gf dxfdf/Lsf] bf];|f] nx/ lgoGq0fsf nflu b]zsf ljleGg :yfgdf hf/L ul/Psf lgif]wf1f tyf aGbfaGbLsf] 

sf/0f gful/sx¿sf] b}lgs hghLljsf tyf cfly{s ultljlwx¿ k|efljt x'g k'u]sf 5g\ . kmn:j¿k, cg'dflgt cfly{s 

j[l4 xfl;n x'g r'gf}tL b]lvPsf] 5 . 

sf]le8–!( dxfdf/Lsf] sf/0f ljz]ifu/L ko{6g Joj;fo÷pBf]u, oftfoft, lzIff / pTkfbgd"ns pBf]ux¿df a9L k|efj 

k/]sf] b]lvPsf] 5 . sf]/f]gf ;+qmd0fsf] sf/0f @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt;Dddf klg z}lIfs ;+:yfx¿df lgoldt k7gkf7gsf] 

sfo{ ;'rf¿ x'g ;s]g, oftfoft tyf cGt/f{li6«o xjfO{ p8fg ;d]t k"0f{ Ifdtfdf ;~rfng x'g ;s]gg\ . xf]6n tyf 

/]i6'/]06sf] Occupancy Rate Go"g /xg'sf] ;fy} ljb]zaf6 cfpg] ko{6sx¿sf] ;+Vofdf ;d]t ef/L lu/fj6 cfPsf] 5 . 

j}b]lzs /f]huf/df hfg] g]kfnL sfdbf/sf] ;+Vof ;d]t 36]sf] 5 .

	 s]Gb|Lo tYofÍ ljefusf cg';f/ cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df $=)! k|ltzt cfly{s j[l4 /x]sf] cg'dfg 5 . s[lif If]qsf] j[l4 

@=^$ k|ltzt, pBf]u If]qsf] %=)% k|ltzt tyf ;]jf If]qsf] j[l4 $=$# k|ltzt /x]sf] cg'dfg 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* 

df s'n ufx{:y pTkfbgdf s[lif, pBf]u / ;]jf If]qsf] c+z qmdzM @%=*# k|ltzt, !#=!! k|ltzt / ^!=)^ k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . 

cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df s'n ufx{:y art s'n ufx{:y pTkfbgsf] ^=^@ k|ltzt k'u]sf] 5 . s'n l:y/ k"FhL lgdf{0f / s'n 

/fli6«o artsf] s'n ufx{:y pTkfbg;Fusf] cg'kft qmdzM @&=@^ k|ltzt / #@=#) k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 .
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cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df jflif{s cf};t pkef]Qmf d'b|f:kmLlt #=^) k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] cfly{s jif{ o:tf] 

d'b|f:kmLlt ^=!% k|ltzt /x]sf] lyof] .

		  cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df s'n j:t' lgof{t $$=$ k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ ¿= !$! ca{ !@ s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ 

o:tf] lgof{t )=^ k|ltztn] j[l4 ePsf] lyof] . uGtJosf cfwf/df ef/t tyf cGo d'n'stkm{ qmdzM %!=& k|ltzt / 

@&=& k|ltztn] lgof{t j[l4 ePsf] 5 eg] rLgtkm{sf] lgof{tdf !$=& k|ltztn] sdL cfPsf] 5 . ;fy}, s'n j:t' cfoft 

@*=& k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ ¿= !%#( ca{ *$ s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ o:tf] cfoft !%=^ k|ltztn] 36]sf] lyof] . 

j:t' cfoft ul/g] d'n'ssf cfwf/df ef/t, rLg tyf cGo d'n'saf6 ePsf] cfoft qmdzM #@=! k|ltzt, @*=^ k|ltzt 

/ !(=^ k|ltztn] j[l4 ePsf] 5 . 

s'n j:t' Jofkf/ 3f6f @&=# k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ ¿= !#(* ca{ &! s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ o:tf] 3f6f !^=* 

k|ltztn] 36]sf] lyof] . ;dLIff jif{df lgof{t–cfoft cg'kft (M@ k|ltzt k'u]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ o:tf] cg'kft *M@ 

k|ltzt /x]sf] lyof] .

ljk|]if0f cfk|jfx (=* k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ ¿= (^! ca{ % s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ ljk|]if0f cfk|jfx )=% k|tlztn] 

36]sf] lyof] . cd]l/sL 8n/df ljk|]if0f cfk|jfx *=@ k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ * ca{ !% s/f]8 k'usf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ o:tf] 

cfk|jfx #=# k|ltztn] 36]sf] lyof] . 

rfn" vftf ¿= ### ca{ ^& s/f]8n] 3f6fdf /x]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ rfn' vftf ¿= ## ca{ &^ s/f]8n] 3f6fdf /x]sf] 

lyof] . cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df k"FhLut 6«fG;km/ &=$ k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ ¿= !% ca{ @^ s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 eg] v'b k|ToIf 

j}b]lzs nufgL )=@ k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ ¿= !( ca{ %! s/f]8 sfod ePsf] 5 . zf]wgfGt/ l:ylt ¿= ! ca{ @# s/f]8n] 

artdf /x]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ zf]wgfGt/ l:ylt ¿= @*@ ca{ $! s/f]8n] artdf /x]sf] lyof] .

  	 cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] cfoftnfO{ cfwf/ dfGbf a}+lsË If]q;Fu /x]sf] ljb]zL ljlgdo ;l~rlt !!=@ dlxgfsf] j:t' 

cfoft / !)=@ dlxgfsf] j:t' tyf ;]jf cfoft wfGg kof{Kt /xg] b]lvG5 . 

	 ;dLIff jif{df a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] lgIf]k @!=$ k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ o:tf] lgIf]k !*=& k|ltztn] 

a9]sf] lyof] . @)&* c;f/df a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] s'n lgIf]kdf rNtL, art / d'2tLsf] c+z qmdzM !)=$ 

k|ltzt, #$=@ k|ltzt / $&=) k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ o:tf] c+z qmdzM !) k|ltzt, #!=( k|tlzt / $*=^ 

k|ltzt /x]sf] lyof] . @)&* c;f/ d;fGtdf a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] s'n lgIf]kdf ;+:yfut lgIf]ksf] c+z $@=& 

k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . @)&& c;f/ d;fGtdf o:tf] lgIf]ksf] c+z $$=# k|ltzt /x]sf] lyof] .

;dLIff jif{df a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿af6 lghL If]qdf k|jflxt shf{ @&=# k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5 . clwNnf] jif{ o:tf] shf{ 

!@ k|ltztn] a9]sf] lyof] . ;dLIff jif{df lghL If]qtkm{ k|jflxt shf{dWo] jfl0fHo a}+sx¿sf] shf{ k|jfx @&=* k|ltztn], 

ljsf; a}+sx¿sf] shf{ k|jfx #)=% k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5 eg] ljQ sDkgLx¿sf] shf{ k|jfx ^=# k|ltztn] 36]sf] 5 . @)&* 

c;f/ d;fGtdf a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{dWo] ^^=! k|ltzt shf{ 3/ hUufsf] lwtf]df / !@=& 

k|ltzt shf{ rfn" ;DklQ -s[lif tyf u}/ s[lifhGo j:t'_ sf] lwtf]df k|jfx ePsf] 5 . @)&& c;f/ d;fGtdf o:tf] lwtf]df 

k|jflxt shf{sf] cg'kft qmdzM ^%=& k|ltzt / !# k|ltzt /x]sf] lyof] . cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df a}+s tyf ljQLo 

;+:yfx¿sf] s[lif If]qtkm{sf] shf{ $#=^ k|ltztn], cf}Bf]lus pTkfbg If]qtkm{sf] shf{ @)=^ k|ltztn], lgdf{0f If]qtkm{sf] 

shf{ !*=$ k|ltztn], oftfoft, ;~rf/ tyf ;fj{hlgs ;]jf If]qtk{msf] shf{ @)=$ k|ltztn], yf]s tyf v'b|f Jofkf/ 

If]qtkm{sf] shf{ @^=@ k|ltztn] / ;]jf pBf]u If]qtkm{sf] shf{ @)=( k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5 . ;dLIff jif{df a}+s tyf ljQLo 

;+:yfx¿af6 k|jflxt cfjlws shf{ @(=& k|ltztn], cf]e/8«fkm\6 shf{ @(=* k|ltztn], 6«i6 l/l;K6 -cfoft shf{_ $*=& 

k|ltztn], l8df08 tyf rfn' k"FhL shf{ @%=$ k|ltztn], l/on :6]6 shf{ -JolQmut cfjf;Lo 3/ shf{ ;d]t_ !%=* 

k|ltztn] / dflh{g k|s[lt shf{ !!)=* k|ltztn] a9]sf] 5 eg] xfo/ kr]{h shf{ &=& k|ltztn] 36]sf] 5 .

@)&& c;f/df (!–lbg] 6«]h/L lansf] efl/t cf};t Aofhb/ !=@& k|ltzt /x]sf]df @)&* c;f/df $=%% k|ltzt /x]sf] 

5 . jfl0fHo a}+sx¿aLrsf] cGt/–a}+s sf/f]af/sf] efl/t cf};t Aofhb/ @)&& c;f/df )=#% k|ltzt /x]sf]df @)&* 
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c;f/df $=!@ k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . df}lb|s gLltsf] ;~rfng nIosf] ¿kdf lnOg] cf};t cGt/–a}+s Aofhb/ @)&* c;f/df 

$=!$ k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . jfl0fHo a}+sx¿sf] cf};t cfwf/ b/ @)&& c;f/df *=%) k|ltzt /x]sf]df @)&* c;f/df ̂ =*^ 

k|ltzt sfod ePsf] 5 . @)&* c;f/df jfl0fHo a}+sx¿sf] lgIf]ksf] efl/t cf};t Aofhb/ $=^% k|ltzt / shf{sf] 

efl/t cf};t Aofhb/ *=$# k|ltzt /x]sf] 5 . cl3Nnf] jif{ o:tf b/x¿ qmdzM ^=)! k|ltzt / !)=!! k|ltzt lyP .

	 -g]kfn /fi6« a}+s M b]zsf] jt{dfg cfly{s tyf ljQLo l:yltaf6 ;fef/ ul/Psf]_

#= 	 k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt;Dd rfn" jif{ -cfly{s jif{ @)&*÷&(_ sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fx¿sf ljifodf 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff 

	 -s_ a}+ssf] rfn" cfly{s jif{sf] klxnf] tLg dlxgfsf] ljQLo emns lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

ljj/0f cflZjg d;fGt @)&*

r'Qmf k"FhL 10,314,516,680

hu]8f sf]if 4,724,022,784

lgIf]k 122,756,442,244

v'b shf{ tyf ;fk6 112,979,540,478

s'n ;DklQ 147,923,735,060

Aofh cfDbfgL 2,674,444,996

Aofh vr{ 1,737,644,695

v'b Aofh cfDbfgL 936,800,301

sldzg tyf z'Ns cfDbfgL 273,430,338

s'n cfDbfgL 1,210,230,639

sd{rf/L tyf ;~rfng vr{ 538,989,529

v'b gf]S;fgL Joj:yf (49,160,903)

s/ tyf af]g; cufl8sf] gfkmf 800,446,682

v'b gfkmf 518,057,896

lgliqmo shf{ k|ltzt 1.48%

k"FhL kof{Kttf cg'kft 12.51%

-v_	 lgIf]k kl/rfng

a}+sn] rfn" cfly{s jif{sf] klxnf] q}dfl;sdf s'n lgIf]k ¿= !@@ ca{ !( s/f]8 k'¥ofpg ;kmn ePsf] 5 . a}+sdf 

/x]sf] lgIf]knfO{ ljljwLs/0f u/L ;fwf/0f art lgIf]knfO{ cfslif{t ug]{ p2]Zon] ljleGg k|sf/sf vftfx¿ dfkm{t 

lgIf]k ;+sng ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . a}+sdf ;fwf/0f art lgIf]ksf] c+z j[l4 ug{ cfufdL jif{df klg ljz]if of]hgfsf 

;fy lg/Gt/tf lbOg]]5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] cfiff9 d;fGtsf] t'ngfdf a}+ssf] lgIf]k rfn" cfly{s jif{sf] 

klxnf] q}dfl;sdf !)=#! k|ltztn] j[l4 ePsf] 5 .

-u_	 shf{ Joj:yfkg

klxnf] q}dfl;s ;dLIff cjlwdf a}+ssf] s'n shf{ /sddf cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] cfiff9 d;fGtsf] t'ngfdf 

!$=$! k|ltztn] j[l4 eO{ s'n shf{ ¿=!!$ ca{ #) s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . a}+sn] ;w}Fem}F lgofds lgsfon] ;do 

;dodf tf]s]sf ljz]if k|fyldstfsf s[lif, ko{6g, hnljB't nufot cGo If]qx¿df shf{ nufgL ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 

To;}u/L ljkGg ju{ shf{nfO{ klg k|fyldstfdf /fvL g]kfn ;/sf/ / g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] gLlt lgb]{zg adf]lhd 

shf{ lj:tf/ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . To; afx]s shf{ lj:tf/sf qmddf a}+sn] JolQmut lwtf] shf{, z}lIfs shf{, ;jf/L 
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shf{, ;'g rfFbL shf{, z]o/ shf{, d'2tL /l;b shf{, 3/ shf{ cflb h:tf pkef]Qmfd'vL shf{ / cGo Jofkf/ 

shf{x¿sf] dfWodaf6 ;d]t shf{sf] lj:tf/ ul//x]sf] 5 . a}+sn] shf{ nufgLsf] If]qnfO{ ljljwLs/0f u/L If]qut 

shf{ k|jfx of]hgf agfO{ nfu' u/]sf]] 5 .

-3_	 u}/ a}lsË ;DklQ

	 a}+sn] u}/ a}+lsË ;DklQ c;'nLsf] k|lqmofnfO{ k|fyldstfsf] ;fy cufl8 a9fO{ /x]sf] 5 .  cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* 

df yk ¿= & s/f]8 !^ nfv u}/ a+}lsË ;DklQdf n]vfÍg ul/Psf] / ;f]xL cjlwdf ¿= !@ s/f]8 %% nfvsf] u}/ 

a}+lsË ;DklQ lnnfd laqmL ul/Psf] lyof] . pQm u}/ a}+lsË ;DklQ laqmL ubf{ ¿= ! s/f]8 !$ nfv gfkmf ePsf] 

lyof] . @)&* cfiff9 d;fGtdf lnnfd laqmL ug{ afFsL u}/ a}+lsË ;DklQ ¿= () s/f]8 @( nfv /x]sf] 5 . pQm 

;DklQ afkt lgod cg';f/ lgodgsf/L sf]ifdf /sdsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 / cfufdL lbgdf pQm ;DklQ laqmL 

ePkl5 a}+ssf] ;l~rt d'gfkmfdf of]ubfg k'Ug] ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f} . 

-ª_ 	 eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfnssf] wf/0ff	

a}+sn]  "Your Business Bank" gf/f cfTd;fy ub}{ z]o/wgLx¿sf] lxt ;+/If0f ug]{ nIo lnP/ u|fxsx¿ df´ e/kbf]{ 

tyf ljZj;gLo a}+ssf] :yfg sfod ub}{ a}+sn] kfFr jif]{ bL3{sflng gLlt tof/ kf/L ;f]xL adf]lhd lgDgfg';f/ 

/0fgLlt÷sfo{of]hgfx¿ cjnDag ub}}{ cufl8 al9/x]sf] 5 M 

-!_	 a}+ssf] cg'kfng sfo{nfO{ yk dha't agfpg] nIosf ;fy 5'§} ul7t cg'kfngf PsfOnfO{ c´} ;'b[9 agfO{ 

;du| cg'kfng sfo{nfO{ :jtGq / k|efjsf/L agfpFb} nlug]5 .

-@_	 ljZjJofkL ¿kdf km}lnPsf] sf]le8–!( sf] hf]lvdaf6 aRg / arfpg ljQLo sf/f]af/ l8lh6ntkm{ k|j]z 

ul/;s]sf]n] a}+sn] cjnDag ug]{ ;"rgf k|ljlwsf] k|of]uaf6 u|fxsx¿nfO{ l56f] 5l/tf] Pj+ e/kbf]{ ;]jf 

k|bfg ug{ tyf dfgj;|f]tsf] Ifdtf / pTkfbsTj j[l4 ug{ cfufdL lbgx¿df l8lh6n a}+lsË ;]jfnfO{ yk 

k|efjsf/L Pj+ ljZj;gLo agfpFb} nlug]5 . 

-#_	 a}+ssf k|To]s zfvfaf6 l8–Dof6 vftf vf]Ng;Sg] Pj+ l;–cfZjf k|0ffnL dfkm{t z]o/ eg{{] / sf/f]af/ ug{ 

kfpg] Joj:yfnfO{ yk k|efjsf/L agfpg] sfo{ cufl8 a9fOPsf] / o;nfO{ yk lj:tf/ ub}{ nlug]5 . 

-$_	 a}+ssf] hgzlQmnfO{ yk bIf agfpg pgLx¿nfO{ /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o tflnddf ;xefuL agfpFb} 

cfPsf]df o; cjlwdf ljZjJofkL ¿kdf km}lnPsf] sf]le8–!( sf] k|efj c´} g;lsPsf]n] sd{rf/Lx¿sf] 

dgf]an a9fpg 5'§} k|sf/sf] tflnd tyf j[lQ ljsf;sf sfo{x¿ ul/g]5 . 

-%_	 sfg"g cg'kfngfsf] b[li6n] e/f];fof]Uo, ;'zf;gsf] b[li6sf]0fn] cAan, cfoftnfO{ k|lt:yfkg ug{ lgof{t 

k|j4{g ug]{ pBf]u Joj;fonfO{ 6]jf k'¥ofpg] / æ;d[4 g]kfn, ;'MvL g]kfnLsf]Æ /fli6«o cleef/fnfO{ k"/f ug]{ 

c7f]6nfO{ k"/f ug{ k|lta4 eO{ g]kfnL hgtfsf] kxF'r ePsf] ;+:yfsf] ¿kdf Pg;L;L a}+s lnld6]8nfO{ ljsf; 

ul/g] 5 . 

-^_	 a}+ssf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no sf7df8f}+df :yfgfGt/0f ePkZrft\ / a}+ssf] Joj;fo j[l4 x'Fb} uPsf] kl/k|]Iodf 

s]Gb|Lo sfof{nosf] ljefu tyf PsfOx¿nfO{ Ps} ejgdf ;d]6]/ Joj;fo ;~rfng ug{sf nflu xfn s]Gb|Lo 

sfof{no /x]sf] ejgdf :yfg ckof{Kttf eO{ sl7gfO x'g] b]lvPsf]n] pko'Qm :yfgdf s]Gb|Lo sfof{nosf 

nflu hUuf vl/b u/L ejg lgdf{0f ug]{ sfo{ cufl8 a9fOg]5 . 

-&_	 xfn ;~rfngdf /x]sf] a}+ssf] Core Banking Software (Pumori Plus Banking Software) nfO{ lj:tf/ x'Fb} uPsf] 

zfvf ;~hfn / a9\bf] sf/f]af/nfO{ b[li6ut u/L cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;'b[9 ug{ ;dofg's"n kl/jt{g 

ul/g]5 .

-*_	 u}/Aofh cfDbfgL (Non Interest Income) sf gofF ;|f]tx¿ klxrfg u/L a}+ssf] d'gfkmfdf j[l4 ub{} nlug]5 .
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-(_	 ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{t ljleGg sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng ul/g]5 .

-!)_	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L df}lb|s gLltn] lnPsf] nIocg'¿k o; a}+s cGo a}+s;Fu ufleg]÷ufEg]÷k|flKt ug]{ 

sfo{nfO{ 7f]; lgisif{df k'¥ofOg]5 .

-!!_	 a}+ssf] cfkm\gf] zfvf ;~hfn lj:tf/ of]hgf cg';f/ / g]kfnsf] s'n hg;+Vofsf] 7"nf] lx:;f cem} a}+lsË 

k|0ffnLeGbf aflx/ /x]sf] oyfy{tfnfO{ dgg ub}}{ tL If]qx¿df a}+lsË ;]jf k'¥ofpg] sfo{nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbFb} 

k|To]s lhNnfsf ;b/d'sfd / gu/kflnsfx¿df nfut / k|ltkmnsf] ljZn]if0f u/L yk zfvfx¿ ;~rfngdf 

Nofpg] of]hgf /x]sf] 5 . 

-!@_ 	lgIf]ksf] cf};t Aofhb/df sdL Nofpg] lsl;dn] lgIf]ksf gofF of]hgfx¿ th'{df u/L sfof{Gjog ug]{ / 

;+:yfut lgIf]ksf] dfqfnfO{ sd ub}{ JolQmut lgIf]ksf] cfwf/nfO{ j[l4 ug]{ of]hgf agfOPsf] 5 .

-!#_	 shf{sf] u'0f:t/nfO{ cem ;'wf/ ug]{ / shf{ lj:tf/ ubf{ s[lif If]qsf ;fy} ;fgf tyf 3/]n' pBf]utkm{ nufgL 

a9fpg] of]hgf /x]sf] 5 . ;fy}, ljutdf ckn]vg u/]sf shf{x¿sf] c;'nLnfO{ pRr k|fyldstfdf /fVg] 

nIo lnOPsf] 5 .

-!$_ 	a}+sn] cfkm\g} ;xfos sDkgL cGtu{t 5'§} a|f]s/ sDkgL :yfkgf ug]{ / cg'dlt k|fKt eP kZrft rfn" 

cfly{s jif{df ;~rfngdf Nofpg] of]hgf /x]sf] 5 .

$=	 a}+ssf] cf}Bf]lus tyf Jofj;flos ;DaGw

a}+sn] /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o If]qdf /fd|f] cf}Bf]lus tyf Jofj;flos ;DaGw sfod ub{} cfPsf] 5 . ;fy}, ljleGGf cg'ej 

tyf of]Uotf af]s]sf] ;Dk"0f{ txsf sd{rf/L tyf u|fxs ju{x¿;Fusf] ;DaGwnfO{ ;Ddfg ub{} cem k|uf9 / k|efjsf/L 

agfpg] tkm{ k|oTgzLn /x]sf] 5 . a}+sn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+s ;lxt a}+s;++u ;DalGwt cGo Jofj;flos, cf}Bf]lus ;+3 

;+:yfx¿;Fu Jofj;flos Pj+ ;f}xfb|{k"0f{ ;DaGw sfod /fVb}] cGo lgsfox¿;Fu sfod /x]sf] cf}Bf]lus tyf Jofj;flos 

;DaGwnfO{ cem} a9L 3lgi6 tyf kf/bzL{ agfO{ yk dhj't agfpFb} hfg] s'/fdf a}+s ljZj:t /x]sf] 5 .

%=	 ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0f

a}+ssf] ldlt @)&& df3 )( ut] ;DkGg ePsf] t]O{;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf lgjf{rg eP adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltdf 

xfn lgDgfg';f/sf ;~rfns ;b:ox¿ sfod /x]sf 5g\ . 

!= 	 >L pk]Gb|s]z/L Gof}kfg] 		  cWoIf

@= 	 >L df]xg axfb'/ a:g]t		  ;~rfns

#= 	 >L O{dfg l;+x nfdf		  ;~rfns

$= 	>L rGb| k|;fb jf:tf]nf		  ;~rfns

%= 	>L ;'dg s'df/L hf]zL		  ;~rfns

^= 	 >L lgz]if k|wfg		  ;~rfns	

&= 	 >L /fhf/fd v8\sf		  ;~rfns

^=	 sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx¿

	 k|ToIf ;f/e"t ¿kdf a}+ssf] sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kg]{ lsl;dsf s'g} kl/l:ylt ;[hgf gePtf klg a}+sn] lgDg kl/ l:yltx¿nfO{ 

hf]lvdsf ¿kdf b[li6ut ub}{ ;f]xL adf]lhdsf /0fgLltx¿ cjnDag ul//x]sf] 5 .

!=	 g]kfn ;/sf/ Pj+ lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 jfl0fHo a}+s;DaGwL gLltdf kl/jt{g ubf{ x'g;Sg] ;Defljt hf]lvdx¿ .

@=	 cfly{s, df}lb|s tyf ljQLo gLltdf ;do ;dodf x'g] kl/jt{gaf6 x'g;Sg] hf]lvdx¿ .

#=	 ljb]zL ljlgdo sf/f]af/ ubf{ ljlgdo b/df x'g] kl/jt{gaf6 x'g ;Sg] ;Defljt hf]lvdx¿ .
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$=	 ljQLo ;+:yfx¿aLr a9\g;Sg] k|lt:kwf{sf] sf/0f x'g;Sg] hf]lvdx¿ .

%=	 lgIf]k tyf shf{sf] Aofhb/df cfpg;Sg] kl/jt{gn] lgDTofpg] hf]lvdx¿ .

^=	 ;~rfng hf]lvdsf sf/0fn] cfpg;Sg] ;d:ofx¿ .

&=	 ;/sf/L vr{df lg/Gt/tf gePsf sf/0f lgIf]k kl/rfngdf x'g;Sg] hf]lvdx¿ .

*=	 ljQLo t/ntfdf x'g;Sg] ptf/ r9fjsf] sf/0faf6 cfpg] r'gf}tLx¿ .

(=	 shf{ c;'nLaf6 pTkGg x'g;Sg] hf]lvdx¿ .

!)=	cy{ ahf/df x'g;Sg] ptf/ r9fjaf6 cfpg;Sg] hf]lvdx¿ .

!!=	 cGt/f{li6«o ahf/sf] cfly{s dGbLaf6 cfO{ kg{;Sg] hf]lvdx¿ .

!@=	 k|fs[lts k|sf]k / dxfdf/Laf6 cfpg;Sg] hf]lvdx¿ .

&=	 n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof 

g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg :jLs[lt ubf{ lbPsf s}lkmot;DaGwL kq / ;f] pk/sf] 

k|ltlqmof jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 .

*=	 nfef+z afF8kmfF8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd M

a}+sn] cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] d'gfkmfaf6 xfn sfod ePsf] r'Qmf k"FhLsf] * k|ltzt x'g cfpg] ¿ *@%,!^!,##$.– 

a/fa/sf] af]g; / af]g; z]o/sf] s/ k|of]hgsf nflu )=$@ k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] ¿ $#,$@(,%$$.– gub nfef+z ljt/0f 

ug]{ k|:tfj ul/Psf] 5 .

(=	 z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] clÍt d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g' eGbf cufj} ;f] 

afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd 

tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/ afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M

o; cfly{s jif{df s'g} klg z]o/ hkmt ul/Psf] 5}g .

!)=	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf] 

k'g/fjnf]sg M

a}+ssf] s'g} klg ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf] .

!!=	 sDkgL tyf To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]af/x¿ / ;f] cjlwdf sDkgLsf] 

sf/f]af/df cfPsf] s'g} dxŒjk"0f{ kl/jt{g M

a}+ssf] s'g} klg ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf] .

!@=	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx¿n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L M

cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx¿n] To:tf] s'g} klg hfgsf/L pknAw gu/fPsf] .

!#=	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / sDkgLsf] z]o/ 

sf/f]af/df lghx¿ ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx¿af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L M

gePsf] .  

!$=	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;Fu ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx¿df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut 

:jfy{sf] af/]df pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/f M

To:tf] sf/f]af/sf] hfgsf/L gePsf] .  
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!%=	 sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}Fn] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfkm\gf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof / clÍt 
d"No tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/] afkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd M
a}+sn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}F vl/b gu/]sf] .

!^=	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f] sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f M
o; a}+sn] ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ ;b}j pRr dxŒj lbO{ ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] pNn+3gdf z"Go ;xgzLntf (Zero Tolerance) sf] 

gLlt cjnDag ub}{ cfPsf]] 5 . g]kfn /fi6« a}+s tyf cGo lgofds lgsfox¿jf6 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g;DaGwL hf/L ePsf gLlt, 

lgod tyf o;sf] dd{ / efjgfsf] kfngfdf ;d]t a}+ssf] ;~rfns ;ldlt ;r]t /x]sf] 5 . o; a}+sn] ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf 

dfkb08x¿nfO{ cjnDag ub}{ ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf a}+ssf ;a} sfo{x¿sf] kf/blz{tfdf ljz]if hf]8 lbFb} ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ 

cem ;'b[9 ub}{ n}hfg a}+s ;b}j lqmofzLn /x]sf] 5 . ;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfof{Gjog, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f 

k|0ffnLsf] ;du| Joj:yfsf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿sf] g]t[Tjdf ;~rfns ;ldltx¿ u7g ul/Psf] 5 .

-s_  n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt
	 u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L O{dfg l;+x nfdfsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns >L lgz]if k|wfg / cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f 

ljefusf k|d'v ;b:o ;lrj ePsf] tLg ;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . ;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] ;du| 

ljQLo cj:yf, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, n]vfk/LIf0f of]hgf, cfGtl/s tyf afXo n]vfk/LIfsn] k]z u/]sf] n]vfk/LIf0f 

k|ltj]bgdf cf}FNofOPsf a'Fbf÷s}lkmotx¿ pk/ ;dLIff u/L ;'wf/fTds sbd rfNg Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg, /fo 

;'emfj tyf yk lgb]{zgsf] nflu ;~rfns ;ldltdf k]z ug]{ Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy}, a}+ssf] sfd sf/jfxLdf 

lgoldttf, ldtJolotf, cf}lrTo, k|efjsfl/tf h:tf s'/fx¿ cjnDag eP÷gePsf] af/] ;dLIff u/L ;~rfns 

;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;'emfj lbg] sfo{x¿ o; ;ldltn] lgoldt ¿kdf ;DkGg ug]{ u/]sf] 5  . cfly{s jif{ 

@)&&÷&* df n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] @) j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] . 

-v_	 sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt
u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L df]xg axfb'/ a:g]tsf] ;+of]hsTjdf sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . 

cGo ;b:ox¿df ;~rfns >L rGb| k|;fb jf:tf]nf, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t, n]vf ljefu k|d'v / dfgj ;+;fwg 
ljefu k|d'v ;b:o ;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . ;ldltn] g]kfn /fi6« a}++ssf] lgb]{zg g+ ^ df pNn]lvt pQ/bfloTjx¿ 

axg ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . o; cfly{s jif{df sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldltsf] * j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .

-u_	 hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt
	 u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L rGb| k|;fb af:tf]nfsf] ;+of]hsTjdf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt /x]sf]] 5 . cGo 

;b:ox¿df ;~rfns >L df]xg axfb'/ a:g]t, ;~rfns >L O{dfg l;+x nfdf, ;~rfng ljefu k|d'v ;b:o 
/ k|d'v hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu ;b:o ;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] a}+ssf] ;du| hf]lvd cj:yfsf] 

af/]df cWoog tyf d"Nof+sg u/L ;~rfns ;ldlt;dIf k|ltj]bg k]z ug]{ tyf ;f] ;DaGwdf a}+s Joj:yfkgnfO{ 

cfjZos ;'emfj lbg] ub{5 . o; cfly{s jif{df hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] ^ j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] . 

-3_	 ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f;DaGwL ;ldlt
	 u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L ;'dg s'df/L hf]zLsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f lgjf/0f;DaGwL ;ldlt /x]sf] 

5 . cGo ;b:ox¿df ;~rfns >L /fhf/fd v8\sf, k|d'v hf]lvd clws[t, k|d'v cg'kfngf clws[t / cg'kfngf 
ljefu k|d'v ;b:o ;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f -dlg nfpG8l/Ë_ lgjf/0f P]g, 

@)^$, ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f -dgL nfpG8l/Ë_ lgjf/0f lgodfjnL, @)&#, g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{Zfg -O=k|f= 

lgb]{zg g+= !(_ adf]lhd eP÷u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLsf] ;dLIff u/L k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltdf k]z ug]{, a}+ssf] 

;du| cg'kfngfsf] cj:yf, a}+sdf /x]sf u|fxssf] hf]lvdsf] :t/ lgwf{/0f ug]{ tyf AML/CFT sf] hf]lvd 

Joj:yfkg;DaGwL k|ltj]bgsf] q}dfl;s ¿kdf 5nkmn ug]{, /fli6«o Pj+ cGt/f{li6«o If]qdf ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f tyf 

cft+sjfbL lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo nufgL;DaGwL ePsf] ljifox¿÷36gfx¿ / To;af6 a}+snfO{ kg{;Sg] c;/x¿sf] 
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ljZn]if0f u/L hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ug{ s] s:tf] gLltut Joj:yf ug'{kg]{ xf] ;f] ;DaGwdf cfjZos ;'emfj ;~rfns 

;ldlt ;dIf k]z ug]{ nufot g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] PsLs[t lgb]{zg cg'¿k tf]lsPsf] sfo{x¿ ;ldltn] ug]{ u/]sf] 

5 . o; cfly{s jif{df o; ;ldltsf] !) j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .

	 To;}u/L ;du| a}+lsË Joj;fonfO{ kf/bzL{ Pj+ pQ/bfoL agfpg / ljsl;t k|ljlwx¿sf] Go"g hf]lvddf clwstd 

k|of]u ug{ Joj:yfkg txdf Ps ;+:yfut ;'zf;g PsfO, cg'kfngf PsfO, l8lh6n a}+lsË PsfO u7g u/L 

sfo{x¿ x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 .

!&=	 ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M
  ljj/0f	   		  cf=j= @)&&÷)&*
s'n sd{rf/L vr{ 	  	¿= !,%%%,)^&,$%@.–

s'n sfof{no ;~rfng vr{		  ¿= ^(!,*#(,$$&.–

s'n Joj:yfkg vr{		  ¿ @,@$^,()^,*((.–

!*=	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿sf] gfdfjnL, lghx¿n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf] 
sfd sf/jfxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M

	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L O{dfg l;+x nfdfsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns >L lgz]if k|wfg / cfGtl/s 

n]vfk/LIf0f ljefusf k|d'v ;b:o ;lrj ePsf] tLg ;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 . 

	 a}7s eQf :j¿k ;ldltsf ;+of]hs Pj+ ;b:onfO{ ¿=!$,))).– / ;b:o ;lrjnfO{ ¿=^,))) .– e'QmfgL lbg] ul/Psf] 

5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] @) j6f a}7s a;]sf] 5 . ;ldltsf ;+of]hs Pj+ ;b:oHo"x¿nfO{ 

;ldltsf] a}7s eQf :j¿k ¿= ^ nfv ** xhf/ e'QmfgL ePsf] 5 .

	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] a}+ssf] ljQLo l:ylt, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg, n]vfk/LIf0f of]hgf, cfGtl/s tyf 

afxo n]vfk/LIfsn] k]z u/]sf] n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf cf}FNofOPsf a'Fbf÷s}lkmotx¿ pk/ ;dLIff u/L ;'wf/fTds sbd 

rfNg Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg, /fo ;'emfj tyf yk lgb]{zgsf] nflu ;~rfns ;ldltdf k]z ug]{ Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy}, 

a}+ssf] sfd sf/jfxLdf lgoldttf, ldtJolotf, sfo{bIftf, k|efjsfl/tf / cf}lrTo h:tf s'/fx¿ cjnDag eP÷gePsf] 

af/] ;dLIff u/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;'emfj lbg] sfo{x¿ o; ;ldltn] lgoldt ¿kdf ;DkGg ug]{ u/]sf] 5 .

!(=	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, a}+ssf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg 
/x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;Ful7t ;+:yfn] a}+snfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f] s'/f M
gePsf] .

@)=	 ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwfsf] 
ljj/0f M
;~rfnsx¿nfO{ k|bfg ul/Psf] ;'ljwfx¿ M

jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o Pj+ g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] :jLs[lt adf]lhd k|To]s a}7s eQf jfkt cWoIfnfO{ ¿=!^,))).– / 

;~rfnsx¿nfO{ ¿=!$,))).– e'QmfgL lbg] ul/Psf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿nfO{ 

a}7s eQf afkt lgDg adf]lhd /sd k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .

qm=;+= ljj/0f /sd ¿=

s a}7s eQf &%,)@,))).–

v cGo vr{ $!,*&,%)!.–

hDdf !,!^,*(,%)! .–
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a}7s eQf afx]s ;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIf tyf ;b:ox¿nfO{ 6]lnkmf]g tyf kqklqsfsf nflu dfl;s ¿=*,))).– 

pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 .

sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf cGo sfo{sf/L kbflwsf/L÷Joj:yfksx¿sf] cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] jflif{s tnj, eQf ;'ljwfx¿ M

ljj/0f k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t cGo sfo{sf/L kbflwsf/L÷Joj:yfks

jflif{s tnj eQf ;'ljwfx¿ ¿= 1,52,37,635/- 3,26,23,535/-

o; ;DaGwL lj:t[t ljj/0f k|ltj]bg cGtu{t ljQLo ljj/0fsf] n]vf;DaGwL l6Kk0fLdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

@!=	 z]o/wgLn] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M
gePsf] .

@@=	 bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/0f M
gePsf] .

@#=	 bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgLaLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f M
o;} k|ltj]bg cGtu{t ljQLo ljj/0fsf] n]vf;DaGwL l6Kk0fLdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

@$=	 sDkgL P]g, @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg'kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/fx¿ M
o;} k|ltj]bgsf] ;fGble{s a'Fbfx¿df v'nfOPsf] 5 .

@%=	 cGo cfjZos s'/fx¿ M
-s_	 o; a}+ssf] ;~rfns jf kbflwsf/Lx¿sf] glhssf] gft]bf/, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, lwtf]kq af]8{ jf g]kfn 

/fi6« a}+sdf sDtLdf clws[t txdf sfo{/t /x]sf] ;DaGwL ljj/0f 
gePsf] .

-v_	 zfvf ;~hfn lj:tf/
cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df a}+ssf] !## j6f zfvfx¿, ( j6f PS;\6]G;g sfpG6/x¿ / !)( Pl6Pd d]]l;gx¿ 

;~rfngdf /x]sf lyP . a}+sn] xfn !#& zfvfx¿, !) PS;\6]G;g sfpG6/x¿ / !!$ Pl6Pd d]]l;gx¿ ;~rfngdf 

NofO{ ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] 5 . g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg cg'¿k & j6} k|b]zdf k|fb]lzs sfof{no dfkm{t a}+sn] 

;]jf k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . a}+sn] zfvf lj:tf/ cleofgnfO{{ lg/Gt/tf lbFb} rfn" cfly{s jif{df klg cGo yk 

zfvfx¿ ;~rfngdf Nofpg] of]hgf /fv]sf] 5 .

-u_	 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg
a}+lsË Joj;fodf lglxt hf]lvdx¿ shf{, ;~rfng, ahf/ tyf cGo hf]lvdx¿nfO{ b[li6ut u/L a}+sn] cfkm\gf] 

cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ r':t b'?:t agfpg] gLlt lnP adf]lhd Joj;fosf] qmddf cfO{kg{ ;Sg] ;a} k|sf/sf 

hf]lvdx¿nfO{ Go"gLs/0f ug{ a}+sn] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cg'kfngfsf sfo{x¿ dfkm{t\ 

cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ Jojl:yt t'NofPsf] 5 . a}+sdf u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfnssf] ;+of]hsTjdf /x]sf] 

hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] lgu/fgLdf /xg] u/L hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;+oGq agfOPsf] 5 . k|d'v hf]lvd clws[t 

dfkm{t hf]lvd;DaGwL ;Dk"0f{ sfo{x¿ ;~rfng eO/x]sf 5g\ . ;f]xL cg'¿k k|d'v hf]lvd clws[t dftxtdf 

/xg] u/L shf{ / ;~rfng hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu u7g ul/Psf] 5 . xfn pQm 

ljefun] shf{ k|jfx ubf{ tyf gjLs/0f ubf{ hf]lvdsf] dfqfx¿sf] af/]df ljZn]if0f ug]{, a}+s ;~rfng ;DaGwL 

hf]lvd, ahf/ hf]lvd nufot cGo hf]lvdx¿ ljZn]if0f ug]{ / plrt /fo ;Nnfx lbg] sfo{ ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . ;fy}, 

lgoldt ¿kdf hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] af/]df hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltdf 5nkmn ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . To:t} a}+ssf 

x/]s sd{rf/Lx¿sf] JolQmut lhDd]jf/L / bfloTjnfO{ :yflkt ub}{ sfo{ ;Dkfbgdf cfk;L lgoGq0f / ;Gt'ng 

k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L ¿kdf sfof{Gjog ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 
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-3_	 ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f -dgL nfp08l/Ë_ lgjf/0f 
a}+sdf s]Gb|Lo:t/df Pp6f 5'6\6} cg'kfng (Compliance ) ljefusf] u7g ul/Psf] / zfvfut ¿kdf cg'kfng 

clws[t (Compliance Officer) tf]s]/ ljBdfg ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f -dgL nfp08l/Ë_ lgjf/0fsf ;DaGwdf hf/L ePsf 

gLlt, lgod, lgb]{zgx¿sf] kfngf k"0f{¿kn] ug]{ sfo{ eO/x]sf] 5 .

-ª_ 	 dfgj ;+;fwg Joj:yfkg 
cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] cfiff9 d;fGtdf s'n !,#*^ hgf sd{rf/Lx¿ sfo{/t lyP . k|To]s :yfgLo txx¿df 

a}+sx¿sf] ;]jf k'¥ofpg] g]kfn ;/sf/sf] gLlt Pj+ g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ a}+sx¿n] tLa| ¿kdf zfvf 

lj:tf/ u/];Fu} sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vofdf klg j[l4 x'Fb} uPsf] / a}+sn] u/]sf] cfDbfgL / sd{rf/Lsf] ;]jf ;'ljwfdf 

;fd~h:o sfod ug{ ablnFbf] kl/l:ylt tyf Jofj;flos lj:tf/;Fu;Fu} bIf sd{rf/Lsf] lgo'lQm / ;]jfdf sfo{/t 

sd{rf/Lsf] ;]jf lg/Gt/tfnfO{ sfod ug{ sd{rf/Lsf] 5gf}6, ;?jf, a9'jf tyf j[lQ ljsf;df a}+sn] kf/bzL{ gLlt 

agfO{ nfu' u/]sf] 5 .

-r_ 	 ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj
a}+sn] ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{t ljljw ;fdflhs sfo{ tyf cleofgx¿df ljleGg lsl;dn] ;xeflutf 

hgfO{ ljljw ;xof]u u/]sf] 5 . a}+sn] d'gfkmf cfh{g ug]{ Jofj;flos ;f]r lng'sf cltl/Qm a}+ssf] d'gfkmf j[l4 ug{ 

k|ToIf jf k/f]If ¿kdf hf]l8Psf ;dfhsf ljleGg ;d'bfo, ju{x¿df pgLx¿af6 cfh{g u/]sf] d'gfkmfaf6 ;f]xL ju{ 

/ ;d'bfodf To;sf] k|ltkmn ljt/0f ug]{ sfo{nfO{ o; a}+sn] ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{t /fvL To:tf If]qx¿sf] 

klxrfg u/L ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj;DaGwL sfo{x¿ ;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . a}+sn] lzIf0f If]q, :jf:Yo tyf 

k/f]ksf/ If]qdf, ;fj{hlgs lxt, ljkb\ Joj:yfkg tyf a}+ssf sd{rf/L / u|fxsju{nfO{ COVID 19 sf] dxfdf/Laf6 

;'/lIft /xg ljleGg ;fdfgx¿ h:t} df:s, kGhf, ;]lg6fOh/ cflbsf] Joj:yfsf ;fy} sd{rf/Lx¿sf] PCR Test tyf 

sf]/f]gf ;+qmldt sd{rf/Lx¿sf] pkrf/ h:tf sfo{x¿ nufotsf ;fdflhs sfo{qmdx¿df cfkm\gf] ;xeflutfnfO{ 

hf/L g} /fv]sf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)&&.&* df ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{t ¿= &@ nfv vr{ sf]if dfkm{t ePsf] 

lyof] . eljiodf o; sfo{nfO{ yk k|efjsf/L lsl;daf6 ;~rfngdf NofOg]5 .

-5_	 ;/sf/L /fh:jdf of]ubfg
cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df a}+sn] cfos/ afkt ¿= $$ s/f]8 % nfv lt/]sf] 5 / kfl/>lds s/ afkt ?= ( 

s/f]8 @@ nfv, Aofh s/ afkt ?= ## s/f]8 !^ nfv / cGo s/ afkt ?= ?=& s/f]8 $$ nfv u/L hDdf ?= 

(# s/f]8 *& nfv ;/sf/L /fh:jdf of]ubfg u/]sf] 5 .

-h_	 ufEg]÷ufleg] ;DaGwdf
a}+ssf] t]O{;f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ufEg]÷ufleg] ;DaGwL k|:tfj :jLs[t ePkZrft\ a}+ssf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 

ldlt @)&* ;fn efb| @) ut] a;]sf] a}7ssf] lg0f{on] o; a}+s / cGo pko'Qm a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ Ps 

cfk;df ufEg]÷ufleg] -dh{_ jf k|flKt -PlSjlh;g_ ug]{ tkm{ cufl8 a9fpg ;~rfns >L rGb| k|;fb af:tf] nfHo"sf] 

;+of]hsTjdf lgDg ;b:ox¿ /xg] u/L dh{/ ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy}, dh{/ ;ldlt a}+s tyf z]o/wgLsf] 

clwstd lxt x'g] u/L dh{/sf] k|lqmof cufl8 a9fpg] s'/fdf lqmofzLn /x]sf] 5 . 

>L rGb| k|;fb af:tf]nf, ;~rfns		  ;+of]hs

>L O{dfg l;+x nfdf, ;~rfns			  ;b:o

>L /fhf/fd v8\sf, ;~rfns			   ;b:o

>L /d]z/fh cof{n, k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t	 ;b:o–;lrj

-em_	 C0fkq lgisf;g
a}+sn] Joj;fo j[l¢sf] nflu ldlt @)&&.!@.!# df c+lst d"No ¿=!))) /x]sf] ¿= # ca{ a/fa/sf] !) jif{ cjlw 

/x]sf] (=%)% Pg;L;L C0fkq @)*^ hf/L u/]sf] 5 .	
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@^=	 g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{n] hf/L u/]sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g lgb]{lzsf, @)&$ sf] sfof{Gjog 
g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{n] hf/L u/]sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g lgb]{lzsf, @)&$ cg';f/ a}+sn] cfjlws k|ltj]bgx¿ k]z ub}{ cfPsf] 

/ pQm lgb]{lzsfdf pNn]v ePcg';f/ a}+sn] kl/kfng clws[t (Compliance Officer) lgo'Qm u/]sf] tyf pQm clws[tn] 

P]g, lgodfjnL tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;do–;dodf hf/L u/]sf] lgb]{zg tyf lgb]{lzsf adf]lhd ug'{kg]{ s'/fx¿ 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{sf avt tf]s]sf sfo{x¿ / lgodgsf/L lgsfon] a}+ssf] lgodg, lg/LIf0f tyf 

;'kl/j]If0f ubf{ lbPsf] lgb]{zg kfngf u/]sf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f}+ .

@&=	 afXo n]vfk/LIf0f
	 cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf]] n]vfk/LIf0f ug{ @# cf}F ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 n]vfk/LIfs >L lk=h]=lk=Pg= P08 sDkgLnfO{ lgo'lQm 

u/L cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] ljQLo ljj/0fsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ul/Psf] 5 .

@*=	 lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lg:sf;g lgodfjnL, @)&# sf] lgod @^ sf] pklgod -@_ ;Fu ;DalGwt cg';"rL !% adf]lhdsf] 
ljj/0f cg';"rL æsÆ df k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .

@(=	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] cfr/0f;DaGwL lgb]{zg g+ ^ kfngf
	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L ul/Psf] lgb]{zg g+ ^ df plNnlvt cfr/0fx¿ kfngf ul/Psf] hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f}F .

wGojfb tyf s[t1tf 1fkg
cGTodf, a}+ssf z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, ;d:t u|fxsju{x¿, sd{rf/Lju{x¿, g]kfn ;/sf/, g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, g]kfn lwtf]kq 

af]8{, g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h lnld6]8, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë lnld6]8 tyf a}+ssf] Joj;fo 

;~rfngdf k|ToIf tyf k/f]If ¿kdf ;xof]u k'¥ofpg' x'g] g]kfn ;/sf/sf ;DalGwt lgodgsf/L lgsfox¿, afxØ n]vfk/LIfs, 

kqsf/ju{x¿nfO{ wGojfb lbg rfxG5f}F . a}+ssf] Joj;fodf k|ToIf÷ck|ToIf ¿kdf ;+nUg artstf{ Pj+ shf{ lnO{ cfkm\gf] 

Joj;fo ;~rfng ug]{ ;]jfu|fxL dxfg'efjx¿sf] a}+sk|ltsf] ljZjf; / ;b\efjsf nflu s[t1tf 1fkg ub{5f}F . ;fy}, ;a} 

kIfx¿af6 ;bfem}F a}+sn] cfufdL lbgdf klg lg/Gt/ ;xof]u / ;b\efj kfpg] ljZjf; lnPsf 5f}F .

wGojfb

	 b===================	 b===============

	 /fhf/fd v8\sf	 lgz]if k|wfg

	 ;~rfns	 ;~rfns

	 b=====================	 b=========================

	 ;'dg s'df/L hf]zL	 rGb| k|;fb jf:tf]nf

	 ;~rfns	 ;~rfns

	 b=========================	 b===========================

	 O{dfg l;+x nfdf	 df]xg axfb'/ a:g]t

	 ;~rfns	 ;~rfns

b===========================

pk]Gb|s]z/L Gof}kfg]

cWoIf



22

jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷)&*

cg';"rL æsÆ

lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisf;g lgodfjnL, @)&# sf] cg';"rL !% 
-lgod @^ sf] pklgod -@_ ;Fu ;DalGwt jflif{s k|ltjb]g_

!=	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg M
jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] .

@=	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg M
jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] .

#=	 n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] ljQLo ljj/0f M
jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] .

$=	 sfg"gL sf/jfxL;DaGwL ljj/0f M
-s_ 	 cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* df Joj;fo;Fu ;DalGwt C0f c;'nL Gofoflws/0fdf a}+sn] bfo/ ug]{ d'2f afx]s a}+snfO{ 

bL3{sfnLg ¿kdf cfly{s bfloTj yk x'g] lsl;dsf d''2f dfldnf g/x]sf] .
-v_	 ;Ful7t ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj?4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf kmf}hbf/L 

ck/ fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ u/]sf] jf ePsf] eP M
	 plNnlvt k|s[ltsf s'g} d'2f /x]÷ePsf] hfgsf/L a}+sdf k|fKt gePsf] .
-u_	 s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;+rfns lj?4 cly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ ePsf] eP M
	 g/x]sf] .

%=	 ;Ful7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ tyf k|ultsf] ljZn]if0f M
-s_	 lwtf]kq ahf/df ePsf] ;Ful7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/0ff M
	 ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ahf/sf] l;4fGt cg';f/ ;~rfng x'g] ePsf]n] o; ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] s'g} wf/0ff 

g/x]sf] .
-v_	 ut jif{sf] k|To]s q}dfl;s cjlwdf ;Ful7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go"gtd / clGtd d"Nosf ;fy} s'n sf/f]af/ 

z]o/ ;+Vof / sf/f]af/ lbg .

q}df;÷dlxgf
z]o/sf] 

clwstd d"No
z]o/sf] 

Go"gtd d"No
z]o/sf] 

clGtd d"No
s'n sf/f]af/ z]o/ 

;+Vof
s'n sf/f]af/ 

lbg

k|yd q}df;       
-c;f]h d;fGt )&&_

@#$ !*% @@% &,!(#,%(% ^$

bf];|f] q}df; -kf}if 
d;fGt )&&_

#*% @@# ##@ !%,@)$,%!$ %*

t];|f] q}df; -r}q 
d;fGt )&&_

#&( @(# #@# !@,#)%,$%# %(

rf}yf] q}df; -cfiff9 
d;fGt )&*_

#(% #)( #^& @%,&@%,#&( ^%
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^=	 ;d:of tyf r'gf}tL M
cfGtl/s ;d:of tyf r'gf}tL
-s_	 zfvf ;~hfn j[l4 eP;Fu} sf/f]af/df ePsf] j[l4n] ;~rfng hf]lvdnfO{ Joj:yfkg ug'{kg]{ r'gf}tL b]lvPsf] .
-v_	 Aofhb/ cGt/df /x]sf] rfksf] Joj:yfkg .
-u_	 ;~rfng vr{df ePsf] j[l4nfO{ Joj:yfkg
-3_	 sd{rf/L Joj:yfkg .

afx\o ;d:of tyf r'gf}tL
-s_	 sf]le8 !( dxfdf/Lsf] sf/0f ljZj cfly{s ultljlwdf k/]sf] k|efjsf sf/0f shf{ tyf Aofh c;'nLdf kg{;Sg] c;/  .
-v_	 ljQLo t/ntfdf x'g;Sg] bjfa .
-u_	 a}+lsË If]qdf a9\b} uPsf] k|lt:kwf{;Fu} Joj;fo lj:tf/sf] r'gf}tL a9\b} uPsf] .
-3_ cfly{s, df}lb|s tyf ljQLo gLltdf ;do ;dodf x'g] kl/jt{g .
-ª_	 ;"rgf k|ljlwsf] If]qdf b]vf k/]sf r'gf}tLx¿ . 

;d:of tyf r'gf}tL ;fdgf ug{ Joj:yfkgn] lnPsf] /0fgLlt M
-s_	 a}+sdf /x]sf] hgzlQmnfO{ bIf, ;an Pj+ pTk|]l/t agfpgsf nflu k|efjsf/L cfGtl/s tyf afx\o tflndsf] Joj:yf .
-v_	 u|fxsx¿sf] OR5f Pj+ rfxgfnfO{ dWogh/ ub}{ gofF of]hgf tyf ;]jfx¿ lj:tf/ ub}{ n}hfg] .
-u_	 ;~rfng vr{sf] lgoldt cg'udg tyf ljZn]if0f u/L ldtJolotf ckgfpg] .
-3_	 lgIf]k tyf shf{df ljljwLs/0f u/L clwstd nfe lng] of]hgf sfof{Gjog ug]{ .
-ª_	 :yfgLo lgsfodf vf]lnPsf zfvf dfkm{t ;fgf tyf demf}nf Joj;fosf] klxrfg u/L ;f]nfO{ a9fjf lbg] nIo /x]sf]  .
-r_	 a}+sn] k|of]udf NofPsf ;km\6j]o/x¿nfO{ cfw'lgsLs/0f / ljsf; ub}{ n}hfg] .
-5_	 g]kfn ;/sf/ Pj+ /fi6« a}+sn] lnPsf] gLlt cg'¿k :yfgLo lgsfodf zfvf lj:tf/ ug]{ of]hgf /x]sf] .

&=	 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g M
;+:yfut ;'zf;g clej[l4sf nflu Joj:yfkgåf/f rflnPsf sbd;DaGwL ljj/0f M
-s_	 a}+saf6 ul/g] sfo{x¿df plrt lgoGq0f /fvL, kf/bzL{ 9+uaf6 sfo{x¿ ;DkGg ug{sf nflu lgofds lgsfox¿af6 

tf]lsP adf]lhdsf gLltx¿, kfngf ug{'kg]{ lgb]{zgx¿, a}+s cfkmF}n] cfjZostf cg';f/ lgdf{0f u/L ljleGg 
lgb]{lzsfx¿nfO{ sfof{Gjog u/L nfu' ul/Psf] 5 .

-v_	 a}+ssf] sfo{x¿nfO{ k|efjsf/L ¿kdf ;DkGg ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ljleGg 
pk;ldltx¿ Uf7g u/L lgoldt ¿kdf a;L u/]sf] lg0f{ox¿sf sfof{Gjogsf] ;"Id cg'udg ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .

-u_	 a}+ssf ;~rfns tyf sd{rf/Lx¿sf nflu cfrf/ ;+lxtf agfO{ nfu' ul/Psf] 5 .
-3_	 a}+ssf] ;"rgfx¿nfO{ u|fxsju{, k|j4{s, ;fwf/0f nufgLstf{x¿sf ;fy} cGo lgofds lgsfox¿sf nflu ;do–;dodf 

tf]lsP adf]lhdsf] 9fFrfdf k|sflzt u/L ;"lrt ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfOPsf] 5 .
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ljj/0f  gf]6 cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&
;DklQ
gub tyf gub ;dfg 4.1  6,928,200,217  8,606,158,430 
g]kfn /fi6« a}+sdf /x]sf] df}Hbft tyf lng'kg]{ jSof}tf 4.2  8,491,306,936  8,472,933,064 
a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfdf /x]sf] df}Hbft 4.3  1,609,875,000  -   
8]l/e]l6e ljQLo pks/0f 4.4  1,506,029,824  1,192,390,828 
cGo Jofkfl/s ;DklQx? 4.5  -    -   
a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L 4.6  3,735,160,732  2,797,521,680 
u|fxsnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L 4.7  94,582,167,688  65,021,931,372 
lwtf]kqdf nufgL 4.8  13,885,826,263  7,502,685,570 
rfn' s/ ;DklQ 4.9  9,420,533  120,416,294 
;xfos sDkgLdf nufgL 4.10  -    -   
;Da4 sDkgLdf nufgL 4.11  20,000,000  54,657,126 
;DklQdf nufgL 4.12  902,950,516  956,777,405 
;DklQ tyf pks/0f 4.13  994,486,291  917,962,148 
u'8ljn -Voflt_ / cd"t{ ;DklQ 4.14  14,480,064  11,777,984 
:yug s/ ;DklQ 4.15  -    69,347,195 
cGo ;DklQ 4.16  2,050,118,412  1,157,598,591 
s'n ;DklQ  134,730,022,477  96,882,157,689 
bfloTj
a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{{ ltg{ jfFsL 4.17  4,134,077,091  6,801,224,506 
g]kfn /fi6« a}+snfO{ ltg{ jfFsL 4.18  2,225,270,616  975,707,948 
8]l/e]l6e ljQLo pks/0f 4.19  1,500,835,676  1,134,467,139 
u|fxssf] lgIf]k 4.20  106,667,152,590  72,815,826,896 
;fk6L 4.21  -    -   
rfn' s/ bfloTj 4.9  -    -   
Joj:yf 4.22  -    -   
:yug s/ bfloTj 4.15  52,512,859  -   
cGo bfloTj 4.23  2,435,037,589  1,993,928,603 
hf/L ul/Psf] C0fkq 4.24  3,070,848,262  -   
;'/If0f g/flvPsf] ;xfos cfjlws bfloTj 4.25  -    -   
s'n bfloTj    120,085,734,684  83,721,155,091 
OlSj6L  
z]o/ k"FhL 4.26  10,314,516,680  9,353,916,945 
z]o/ lk|ldod    -    -   
;+lrt d'gfkmf    868,858,220  1,048,157,616 
hu]8f sf]ifx? 4.27  3,460,912,894  2,758,928,037 
z]o/ wgLx?nfO{ jfF8kmfF8 of]Uo s'n OlSj6L    14,644,287,793  13,161,002,598 
u}/ lgolGqt :jfy{    -   
s'n OlSj6L    14,644,287,793  13,161,002,598 
s'n bfloTj / OlSj6L    134,730,022,477  96,882,157,689 
;+efljt bfloTj tyf k|ltj4tf 4.28  46,990,593,858  39,472,793,499 
k|lt z]o/ v'b ;DklQ    141.98  140.70 

ljQLo cj:yfsf] ljj/0f
cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* -!% h'nfO{ @)@!_

/sd ?= df

b=

b=

b= b=b=

b=
/fh s'df/ >]i7

k|d'v ljQLo clws[t

df]xg axfb'/ a:g]t
;~rfns

lgz]if k|wfg
;~rfns

pk]Gb|s]z/L Gof}kfg]
cWoIf

;'dg s'df/L hf]zL
;~rfns

rGb| k|;fb af:tf]nf
;~rfns

b=
lk=h]=lk=Pg= P08 sf]=
rf6{{8{ PsfpG6]G6\;\

l;P= lgb]{z >]i7
-kf6{g/_

ldlt M @)&*÷)*÷!$ 
:yfg M sf7df8f}+, g]kfn .

/d]z/fh cof{n
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

b=
O{dfg l;+x nfdf

;~rfns

b=
/fhf/fd v8\sf

;~rfns

cfhsf] ldltsf] xfd|f] ;+nUg k|ltj]bg cg';f/
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ljj/0f  gf]6 o; jif{ ut jif{

Jofh cfDbfgL 4.29  8,575,657,701  8,456,941,940 

Jofh vr{ 4.30  5,425,772,165  5,247,392,930 

v'b Jofh cfDbfgL    3,149,885,535  3,209,549,011 

z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL 4.31  682,414,085  592,286,905 

z'Ns tyf sldzg vr{ 4.32  30,317,548  23,984,136 

v'b z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL    652,096,537  568,302,769 

v'b Jofh, z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL    3,801,982,073  3,777,851,779 

v'b Jofkfl/s cfDbfgL 4.33  241,018,562  184,761,404 

cGo ;+rfng cfDbfgL 4.34  437,284,008  70,980,189 

s'n ;+rfng cfDbfgL    4,480,284,644  4,033,593,373 

shf{ hf]lvd tyf cGo gf]S;fgL Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_ 4.35  313,351,306  405,618,703 

v'b ;+rfng cfDbfgL    4,166,933,337  3,627,974,669 

;+rfng vr{  

sd{rf/L vr{ 4.36  1,555,067,452  1,249,761,258 

cGo ;+rfng vr{ 4.37  555,086,259  567,403,901 

Ãf; s6\6L / kl/iff]wg 4.38  136,753,188  137,692,019 

;+rfng d'gfkmf    1,920,026,438  1,673,117,491 

u}/ ;+rfng cfDbfgL 4.39  -    1,500,000 

u}/ ;+rfng vr{ 4.40  -    -   

cfos/ cl3sf] d'gfkmf    1,920,026,438  1,674,617,491 

cfos/ vr{ 4.41

rfn' s/    557,275,288  507,153,971 

:yug s/    32,125,897  58,989,614 

o; cjlwsf] d'gfkmf    1,330,625,253  1,108,473,906 

gfkmf jfF8kmfF8  

a}+ssf] z]o/wgL    1,330,625,253  1,108,473,906 

u}/ lgolGqt :jfy{    -    -   

o; jif{sf] d'gfkmf    1,330,625,253  1,108,473,906 

k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL  

cfwf/e't k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL    12.90  10.75 

8fOn'6]8 k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL    12.90  10.75 

gfkmf gf]S;fg ljj/0f
>fj0f !, @)&& b]lv cfiff9 #!, @)&* ;Dd -!^ h'nfO{ @)@) b]lv !% h'nfO{ @)@! ;Dd_

/sd ?= df

b=

b=

b= b=b=

b=
/fh s'df/ >]i7

k|d'v ljQLo clws[t

df]xg axfb'/ a:g]t
;~rfns

lgz]if k|wfg
;~rfns

pk]Gb|s]z/L Gof}kfg]
cWoIf

;'dg s'df/L hf]zL
;~rfns

rGb| k|;fb af:tf]nf
;~rfns

b=
lk=h]=lk=Pg= P08 sf]=
rf6{{8{ PsfpG6]G6\;\

l;P= lgb]{z >]i7
-kf6{g/_

ldlt M @)&*÷)*÷!$ 
:yfg M sf7df8f}+, g]kfn .

/d]z/fh cof{n
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

b=
O{dfg l;+x nfdf

;~rfns

b=
/fhf/fd v8\sf

;~rfns

cfhsf] ldltsf] xfd|f] ;+nUg k|ltj]bg cg';f/
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 ljj/0f gf]6 o; jif{ ut jif{

o; jif{sf] d'gfkmf    1,330,625,253  1,108,473,906 

cfos/ kl5sf] cGo lj:t[t cfDbfgL  

s_ gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_df k'gMjuL{s/0f gul/g] a'Fbfx?  

km]o/ e]No'df dfkg ul/Psf OlSj6L pks/0fsf nufgLaf6 ePsf] gfkmf÷gf]S;fg    408,270,738  7,695,861 

k'gM d'Nof°gaf6 ePsf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_    -    -   

kl/eflift nfe of]hgfaf6 ljdfl°s gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_    (109,156,879)  78,223 

dfly pNn]v ul/Psf a'Fbf;Fu ;DalGwt cfos/    (89,734,158)  (2,332,225)

gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_df k'gMjuL{s/0f gul/g] cGo v'b lj:t[t cfDbfgL    209,379,702  5,441,859 

v_ gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_df k'gMjuL{s/0f ul/g] jf ug{ ;lsg] a'Fbfx?  

gub k|jfxsf] x]lhËaf6 ePsf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_    -   

ljb]zL ;+rfngsf] sf/0f ljQLo ;DklQsf] ljlgdo kl/jt{g ubf{ ePsf] ;6xL gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_    -    -   

dfly pNn]v ul/Psf a'Fbf;Fu ;DalGwt cfos/  

gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_df k'gMjuL{s/0f gul/Psf cGo v'b lj:t[t cfDbfgL  

gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_df k'gMjuL{s/0f ul/Psf jf ug{ ;lsg] cGo v'b lj:t[t cfDbfgL    -    -   

u_ OlSj6L ljlwaf6 n]vfª\sg ul/Psf] ;Da4 ;+:yfsf] cGo lj:t[t cfDbfgLdf lx:;f    -    -   

o; jif{sf] cfos/ kl5sf] cGo lj:t[t cfDbfgL    209,379,702  5,441,859 

s'n lj:t[t cfDbfgL    1,540,004,955  1,113,915,765 

lj:t[t cfDbfgLsf] jfF8kmfF8M  

a}+ssf] OlSj6L z]o/wgL    1,540,004,955  1,113,915,765 

u}/ lgolGqt :jfy{    -    -   

s'n lj:t[t cfDbfgL    1,540,004,955  1,113,915,765 

cGo lj:t[t cfDbfgLsf] ljj/0f
>fj0f !, @)&& b]lv cfiff9 #!, @)&* ;Dd -!^ h'nfO{ @)@) b]lv !% h'nfO{ @)@! ;Dd_

/sd ?= df

b=

b=

b= b=b=

b=
/fh s'df/ >]i7

k|d'v ljQLo clws[t

df]xg axfb'/ a:g]t
;~rfns

lgz]if k|wfg
;~rfns

pk]Gb|s]z/L Gof}kfg]
cWoIf

;'dg s'df/L hf]zL
;~rfns

rGb| k|;fb af:tf]nf
;~rfns

b=
lk=h]=lk=Pg= P08 sf]=
rf6{{8{ PsfpG6]G6\;\

l;P= lgb]{z >]i7
-kf6{g/_

ldlt M @)&*÷)*÷!$ 
:yfg M sf7df8f}+, g]kfn .

/d]z/fh cof{n
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

b=
O{dfg l;+x nfdf

;~rfns

b=
/fhf/fd v8\sf

;~rfns

cfhsf] ldltsf] xfd|f] ;+nUg k|ltj]bg cg';f/
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ljj/0f o; jif{ ut jif{

sf/f]jf/ ;+rfngaf6 gub k|jfx

Jofh k|flKt  8,153,826,187  8,102,350,418 

z'Ns tyf cGo cfDbfgL  682,414,085  592,286,905 

nfef+z k|flKt  -    -   

cGo sf/f]jf/ ;+rfngaf6 k|flKt  668,151,301  245,265,464 

Jofh e'QmfgL  (5,425,772,165)  (5,247,392,930)

sldzg tyf z'Ns e'QmfgL  (30,317,548)  (23,984,136)

sd{rf/L vr{  (1,555,067,452)  (1,249,761,258)

cGo vr{  (555,086,259)  (567,403,901)

;+rfng ;DklQ / bfloTj kl/jt{g cl3sf] ;+rfng gub k|jfx  1,938,148,149  1,851,360,561 

;+rfng ;DklQdf 36÷-a9_

g]kfn /fi6« a}+sdf /x]sf] df}Hbft  (18,373,872)  (1,100,338,529)

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?df /x]sf] df}Hbft  (1,609,875,000)  164,625,000 

cGo Jofkfl/s ;DklQ  (313,638,996)  (151,550,937)

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  (937,639,052)  (414,952,783)

u|fxsnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ tyf ;k6L  (29,873,587,622)  (4,576,617,896)

cGo ;DklQ  (860,989,140)  (261,680,648)

;+rfng bfloTjdf -36_÷a9 

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ lbg' kg]{ afFsL /sd  (2,667,147,416)  (607,231,083)

g]kfn /fi6« a}+snfO{ lbg' kg]{ jfFsL /sd  1,249,562,668  (268,755,677)

u|fxssf] lgIf]k  33,851,325,695  6,836,028,161 

C0f ;fk6L  -    -   

cGo bfloTj  859,990,382  569,906,500 

cfos/ cufl8sf] ;+rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  1,617,775,796  2,040,792,669 

cfos/ e'QmfgL  (440,588,909)  (617,335,928)

;+rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  1,177,186,887  1,423,456,741 

nufgL sf/f]jf/df gub k|jfx

lwtf]kq nufgL vl/b  (6,348,483,567)  -   

nufgL ljqmLaf6 k|fKt  -    1,352,888,297 

;DklQ tyf pks/0f vl/b  (214,528,158)  (115,302,813)

l:y/ ;DklQsf] ljqmLaf6 k|fKt ;DklQ tyf pks/0f  4,998,327  5,407,448 

cd"t{ ;DklQsf] vl/b  (6,449,579)  (2,587,700)

nufgL ;DklQsf] vl/b  (71,696,000)  (76,152,492)

nufgL ;DklQsf] ljqmLaf6 k|fKt  125,522,889  10,083,990 

Jofh k|fKt  421,831,514  354,591,522 

nfef+z k|fKt  10,188,162  8,208,669 

nufgL sf/f]jf/df v'b gub k|jfx  (6,078,616,412)  1,537,136,922 

gub k|jfx ljj/0f
>fj0f !, @)&& b]lv cfiff9 #!, @)&* ;Dd -!^ h'nfO{ @)@) b]lv !% h'nfO{ @)@! ;Dd_

/sd ?= df
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ljj/0f o; jif{ ut jif{

ljQLo sf/f]jf/af6 gub k|jfx

C0fkq lgisfzgaf6 k|fKt  3,070,848,262  -   

C0fkqsf] e'QmfgL  -    -   

;'/If0fdf g/flvPsf] bfloTjsf] lgisfzgaf6 k|fKt  -    -   

;'/If0fdf g/flvPsf] bfloTjsf] e'QmfgL  -    -   

z]o/ lgisfzgaf6 k|fKt  -    -   

nfef+z e'QmfgL  -    -   

Jofh e'QmfgL  -    -   

cGo k|flKt÷-e'QmfgL_  152,659,942  44,473,962 

ljQLo sf/f]jf/af6 v'b gub  3,223,508,204  44,473,962 

gub tyf gub ;dfgdf ePsf] v'b -36_÷a9  (1,677,921,321)  3,005,067,625 

gub tyf gub ;dfgsf] ;'?jftL df}Hbft  8,606,158,430  5,597,323,345 

gub tyf gub ;dfgdf ljlgdo b/df ePsf] kl/jt{gaf6 cfDbfgL÷-vr{_  (36,892)  3,767,460 

gub tyf gub ;dfgsf] clGtd df}Hbft  6,928,200,217  8,606,158,430 

/sd ?= df

b=

b=

b= b=b=

b=
/fh s'df/ >]i7

k|d'v ljQLo clws[t

df]xg axfb'/ a:g]t
;~rfns

lgz]if k|wfg
;~rfns

pk]Gb|s]z/L Gof}kfg]
cWoIf

;'dg s'df/L hf]zL
;~rfns

rGb| k|;fb af:tf]nf
;~rfns

b=
lk=h]=lk=Pg= P08 sf]=
rf6{{8{ PsfpG6]G6\;\

l;P= lgb]{z >]i7
-kf6{g/_

ldlt M @)&*÷)*÷!$ 
:yfg M sf7df8f}+, g]kfn .

/d]z/fh cof{n
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

b=
O{dfg l;+x nfdf

;~rfns

b=
/fhf/fd v8\sf

;~rfns

cfhsf] ldltsf] xfd|f] ;+nUg k|ltj]bg cg';f/
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year ended 15th July 2021

1.	 BANK	

1.1	 General Information
Nepal Credit & Commerce Bank Ltd. (NCC Bank) is a public limited company established in Nepal on October 14, 1996 
registered under Companies Act and licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank under Bank and Financial Institutions related Act, 2073 
(then prevailing Commercial Bank Act 2031).The registered office of the Bank is at Bagbazar, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Bank 
carries out commercial banking activities in Nepal under license from Nepal Rastra Bank (the Central Bank of Nepal) as class 
`A’ licensed institution. The shares of the Bank are listed with the Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

At present, NCC Bank provides its financial facilities and services to rural and urban areas through its 133 branches spread 
throughout the country. 

This financial statement covers the period commencing from Shrawan 1, 2077 to Ashadh 31, 2078 (16th July 2020 to 15th 
July 2021).

1.2	 Principal Activities and Operations

Bank
The principal activities of the Bank are to provide full-fledged commercial banking services including, agency services, trade 
finance services, card services, e-commerce products and services, remittance services to its customers through its strategic 
business units, branches, ATMs and network of agents.

Subsidiary and Associates
The Bank has no any subsidiary as on reporting date but has following associates.

Associates Principal Activities
Ownership as on:

15th July 
2021

15th July 
2020

Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

“D” class financial institution extending micro 
finance products and services to the deprived/ 
economically disadvantaged/ rural communities/
sectors.

7.78% 9.18%

The Bank has also appointed one of its employees representing in the board of directors of Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya 
Sanstha Ltd.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) and Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) adopted by the Accounting Standards Board of Nepal within the framework 
prescribed by Directive No. 4 of Unified Directive issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

The financial statement comprises of the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of cash flows along with the Notes to Accounts and other significant 
disclosures required by the reporting standard as well as regulators. 

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below in Note 3. These 
policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically. 

2.1. Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) 
and carve outs issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) on September 20, 2018 and August 19, 
2020 on NFRS requirements which allowed alternative treatments and in compliance with other NRB Directives, Companies 
Act and other prevailing laws.
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2.2. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements 
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar starting from first day of Shrawan (Mid July) 
of each year to the last day of Ashad (Mid July) of the next year. The corresponding dates for the Nepalese calendar are as 
follows:

Relevant Financial Statement Date/Period Nepalese Calendar Date/ Period
Reporting Date 31 Ashad 2078
Comparative Reporting Date 31 Ashad 2077
Reporting Period	 01 Shrawan 2077 – 31 Ashad 2078
Comparative Reporting Period 01 Shrawan 2076 – 31 Ashad 2077

The accompanied financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in its meeting 
held on 2078/08/14 (30/11/2021) and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements of Bank are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Bank operates. There was no change in Bank’s presentation and functional currency during the 
period under review. All the amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rupee, except when otherwise indicated.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) requires the 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ due to these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have most 
significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:

2.4.1 Going Concern
The Directors have made an assessment of Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that it has the 
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt upon Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or 
to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2.4.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position can be derived 
from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However, if this is not available, judgment is required to 
establish fair values. The valuation of financial instruments is described more detailed in Notes 3.4.

2.4.3 Impairment of Financial Assets – Loans and Advances
The Bank review individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial position date to assess whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement. The Bank has conducted objective evidence test for individual 
impairment through different parameters like inability to meet loan agreements, substantial drop in profits/ turnover, significant 
adverse cash flows, significant adverse net worth situation, problematic borrower financial position, etc. In particular, 
judgment of the management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows while determining 
the impairment loss.

These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future 
changes to the impairment allowance.

Loans and advances of top 50 borrowers and top 50 borrowers having loss loan have been assessed individually and some 
found to be impaired and all individually insignificant loans and advances are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets 
with similar risk characteristics, to determine whether impairment charge should be made due to incurred loss events for 
which there is objective evidence, but the effects of which are not yet evident. The Bank has segregated risk assets into five 
groups with similar risk characteristics i.e. home loan, auto loan, personal loan, short term loan and term loan for collective 
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impairment assessment. The collective assessment takes in to account data from the loan portfolio such as levels of arrears, 
credit quality, portfolio size etc. and judgments based on current economic conditions as per Para 63 of NAS 39. Also the 
collective assessment takes into account the past eight years data for Probability of Default (PD) computation and past eight 
years data for Loss Given Default (LGD) computation. Collective impairment assessment on loans and advances is derived 
from product of PD and LGD.

The Bank has opted to apply the carve outs on impairment of loan and advances. Accordingly, individual and collective 
impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB directives 
no. 2, higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loan and advances.

2.4.4 Impairment of Investments measured through OCI
The Bank reviews its investments classified as available for sale, at each reporting date to assess whether they are impaired. 
Bank records impairment charges on available for sale equity investments where there is significant or prolonged decline in 
fair value below their cost. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. Bank generally treats 
‘significant’ as 25% and ‘prolonged’ as longer than six months. In addition, the Bank evaluates, among other factors, historical 
share price movements, duration and extent up to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

2.4.5 Taxation
Bank is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for current, deferred and other taxes 
due to the uncertainties that exist with respect to the interpretation of the applicable tax laws, at the time of preparation of 
these Financial Statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of impairment allowances which will be recovered in the foreseeable future 
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. 
Judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and 
level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

Details on deferred tax assets/liability are disclosed in Note 4.15 to the financial statements.

2.4.6 Defined Benefit Plans
The cost of the defined benefit obligations and the present value of their obligations are determined using actuarial valuations.

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increments, mortality rates and 
possible future liability increment, if any. Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainty. 

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Bases of assumptions are as follows:

Discount rate for the valuation is based on Yield to Maturity (YTM) available on government bonds having similar term to 
decrement-adjusted estimated term of liabilities. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the 
average interest rates of Nepal savings bonds with maturities of three years or more. 

Salary escalation rate has been based on the estimates of overall long-term salary growth rates after taking into consideration 
expected earnings inflation as well as performance and seniority related increases based on the past trend.

Withdrawal rate is based on the estimates of expected long-term future employee turnover based on the past trend.

The mortality rate is based on Nepali Lives Mortality tables issued by Beema Samiti, Nepal for the actuarial valuation.

2.4.7 Useful Life-time of the Property, Plant and Equipment
The Bank reviews the residual values, useful lives or depreciation rate used, methods of depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment at each reporting date. Judgment of the management is exercised in the estimation of these values, rates, 
methods and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

a) Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment except land are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation. Acquisition cost includes 
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
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Assets with a value less than Rs. 5,000 are charged off as an expense irrespective of its useful life in the year of purchase. 

Leasehold improvements are capitalized at cost and amortized over the lease period or five years whichever is earlier. The 
amount of amortization is charged as expenses.

b) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets comprise the value of core banking software and other software for the use of the Bank. These intangible 
assets are carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure 
is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which it relates.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. These 
assets are amortized over their useful life estimated as 5 years from the date of acquisition or over the period of the license, 
whichever is less. 

2.4.8 Commitments and Contingencies
All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent liabilities are possible 
obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the transfer of 
economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Statement of 
Financial Position but are disclosed unless they are remote.

2.4.9 Provisions for Liabilities and Contingencies
The Bank receives legal claims against it in the normal course of business. Management has made judgments as to the 
likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The time of concluding legal claims is uncertain, as is the amount of 
possible outflow of economic benefits. 

2.5. Changes in Accounting Policies
The Bank has changed its accounting policies to ensure compliance with NFRS during the previous year and has applied 
the same accounting policies for the preparation of Financial Statement this year. Detailed accounting policies have been 
mentioned and separately disclosed in Point No.3. 

2.6. New Standards issued but not yet effective
Standards as pronounced by the Accounting Standards Board Nepal (ASB Nepal) have been used in the preparation of 
financial statements. Any departure from the requirements of NFRS, if any, has been separately disclosed in the Notes to 
Accounts/ Explanatory Notes. 

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) after the pronouncements of IFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable 
when ASB, Nepal incorporates within NFRS. 

Further, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has issued NFRS 2018 on 2077/03/11 vide its 244th council 
meeting which requires NFRS 9 Financial Instruments, NFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, NFRS 14 
Regulatory Deferral Accounts, NFRS 16 Leases and NFRS 17 Insurance Contracts to be effective from 2021/07/16 . The 
application of these standards, especially NFRS 9 Financial Instruments, NFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
and NFRS 16 Leases, may have significant impact upon financial statements, the quantification of which is yet to be made.

Provision of carve-out adapted by the Bank
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) issued “Notice regarding Decision on Carve-outs in NFRS with 
Alternative Treatments” on various dates and alternative treatments as per carve-outs has been adapted while preparing the 
financial statements. The detail of carve-out provisions adapted by the Bank is given hereunder.

1. Incurred Loss Model to measure the impairment Loss on Loan and Advances (NAS 39: Financial Instruments, Para 
58: Recognition and Measurement)
As per carve out prescribed for fiscal year 2077/78, “An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such 
evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any impairment loss unless the entity is bank 
or financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss 
on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision 
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and amount determined as per paragraph 63: and shall apply paragraph 63 to measure the impairment loss on financial 
assets other than loan and advances. The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of 
impairment loss determined as per paragraph 63.

Further, Bank and Financial Institutions shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived 
as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63;and shall 
apply paragraph 63 to measure the impairment loss on financial assets and other assets other than loan	  and advances. 
The Bank and Financial Institutions shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of impairment loss 
determined as per paragraph 63.”

2. Impracticability to determine transactions cost of all previous years which is the part of effective Interest rate (NAS 
39, Para 9: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement)
As per carve out prescribed for fiscal year 2077/78 , “The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period 
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall 
estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments ( for example, prepayment call and similar 
options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received, unless it 
is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate ( see NAS 18 Revenue), transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the 
cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare 
cases when it is not possible to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of 
financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument 
( or group of financial instruments).”

2.7. Discounting
The fair value of debt securities shall be determined by discounting by the future cash flows by the coupon interest rate. 
The Bank has a policy to treat share/debenture issue expenses up to 1.5% of share/debentures issue price as immaterial. 
Considering those expenses as immaterial and impracticable to determine reliably, same has not been considered in 
computation of effective interest rate as per Carve-out announcements. 

An employee benefit has been determined by considering discount rate as the annual average interest rate.

2.8. Responsibility for Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements of Nepal Credit and 
Commerce Bank Limited as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063 and Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073.

2.9. Presentation of Financial Statements
The assets and liabilities of the Bank presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped in an order of liquidity.

2.10. Materiality and Aggregation
In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each material class of similar 
items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately 
unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement 
of Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

2.11. Comparative Information
The Financial Statement of the Bank provides comparative information in respect of previous periods. The accounting policies 
have been consistently applied by Bank with those of the previous financial year in accordance with Nepal Accounting 
Standard - NAS 01(Presentation of Financial Statements), except those which had to be changed as a result of application of 
the new NFRS. Further, comparative information is reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the current presentation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES	

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial Statements, 
and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly. 

3.1. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of Bank have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material items in 
the Statement of Financial Position:
	Financial assets other than measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
	Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value, if any.
	Net defined benefit liabilities are measured at Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation less the Total Plan Assets.

3.2. Basis of consolidation
The Bank does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of financial statements. Investments in associates 
are accounted for in financial statements as per cost model although associate’s financial statements are not prepared using 
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and events in similar circumstances as it is impracticable to do so.

3.3. Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks, money at call and at short notice with maturity less 
than three months.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

3.4. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

a. Recognition
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date that Bank becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes ‘regular way trades’. Regular way trade means purchases or sales of 
financial assets that required delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the 
market place.

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the 
management’s intention in acquiring them. 

b. Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets
All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition 
or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of such  financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, as per the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Transaction 
cost in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of 
Profit or Loss.

At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
	 i. Financial assets held for trading
	 ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
b. Financial Assets at amortized cost
c. Financial assets at fair value through OCI

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.  

A. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at fair value through 
profit or loss.
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i. Financial Assets Held for Trading
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in 
the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for  short-term profit or position taking. This category 
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by Bank that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are 
recognized in ‘Net trading income’. Dividend income is recorded in ‘Net trading income’ when the right to receive the payment 
has been established. 

Bank evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether the intention to sell them in the 
near future is still appropriate. When Bank is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s 
intention to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, Bank may elect to reclassify these financial assets.

Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as government securities and equity instruments that have been 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. 

ii. Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstances:

	 Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise 
arise from measuring the assets

	 The assets are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and their performance 
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy

	 The asset contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise 
have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. 
Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net gain or loss on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or 
losses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned is accrued under ‘Interest income’, using the effective interest rate 
method, while dividend income is recorded under ‘Other operating income’ when the right to receive the payment has been 
established.

The Bank has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair value through profit or loss.

B. Financial Assets measured at amortized cost
Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities 
which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After the initial measurement, held to maturity financial 
investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate, less impairment. The amortization 
is included in ‘Interest income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial 
recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any 
difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Loans and Receivables from Customers
Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market, other than:

	 Those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that the Bank, upon initial recognition, 
designates as fair value through profit or loss

	 Those that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as available for sale
	 Those for which the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial investment through contractual cash flows, 

other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables shall be subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate, less allowance for impairment. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Impairment charge / reversal for 
loans and other losses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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However, Bank has a policy to treat loan administration fees up to 1.5% of loan amount as immaterial. Considering those fees 
as immaterial and impracticable to determine reliably, same has not been considered in computation of effective interest rate 
as per Carve-out announcement. 

Staff Loans measured at fair value
The Bank has a policy to provide home loan, hire purchase loan and home loan tied up with insurance to employees at 
subsidized interest rate. The Bank has measured the staff loans at fair value using the fair market interest rate. The difference 
of book value with fair value of loans has been shown as prepaid employee benefits.

C. Financial Assets measured at fair value through OCI
Financial assets measured through OCI include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified as ‘Fair value 
through OCI’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for neither Trading ’nor ‘Designated. Debt securities in this 
category are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in 
response to changes in the market conditions.  

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Fair value is 
determined in reference to quoted market price in the active share market for listed ordinary shares (Level-1 hierarchy). In 
case of listed promoter shares not traded in the active market, fair value has been determined with fifty percent of differential 
adjustment between the cost price of such shares and the quoted market price of ordinary shares of such concerned 
company in accordance with Level-2 hierarchy.  Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other 
comprehensive income / expense’ in the ‘Fair value reserve’. Where Bank holds more than one investment in the same 
security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in-first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding ‘Financial   investments 
at fair value through OCI’ is reported as ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate. Dividend earned whilst holding 
‘Financial   investments at fair value through OCI’ are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss as ‘other operating income’ 
when the right to receive the payment has been established. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Impairment charge for loans and other losses’ and removed from the 
‘Available for sale reserve’.

Financial Liabilities  
At the inception, the Bank determines the classification of its financial liabilities. Accordingly, financial liabilities are classified 
as:

a. 	Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
	 i. Financial liabilities held for trading
	 ii. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

b. 	Financial liabilities at amortized cost

A. Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss	
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

(i) Financial Liabilities Held for Trading
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 
in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking. This category 
includes derivative financial instrument entered into by Bank that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

(ii) Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at following circumstances:

	  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise 
arise from measuring the liabilities.

	 The liabilities are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and their 
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment 
strategy
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	 The liability contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise 
have been required under the contract.

B. Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Financial instruments issued by Bank that are not classified as fair value through profit or loss are classified as financial 
liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in Bank having an obligation either 
to deliver cash or another financial asset to another Bank, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another 
Bank under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Bank or settling the obligation by delivering variable number of 
Bank’s own equity instruments.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate 
method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Reclassification
(i)  Reclassification of Financial Instruments ‘At fair value through profit or loss’,
Bank does not reclassify derivative financial instruments out of the fair value through profit or loss category when it is held or 
issued.

Non-derivative financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition is not reclassified 
subsequently out of fair value through profit or loss category.
Bank may, in rare circumstances reclassify financial instruments out of fair value through profit or loss category if such 
instruments are no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term notwithstanding that such financial 
instruments may have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets 
classified as fair value through profit or loss at the initial recognition which would have also met the definition of ‘Loans and 
Receivables’ as at that date is reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category only if Bank has the intention 
and ability to hold such asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity. 

The fair value of financial instruments at the date of reclassification is treated as the new cost or amortized cost of the financial 
instrument after reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in respect of the reclassified financial instrument until the 
date of reclassification is not reversed to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently increases its estimates of the future cash receipts as a result 
of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the effective 
interest rate from the date of the change in estimate rather than an adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset at the date 
of change in estimate.

(ii)  Reclassification of ‘Financial Assets measured at fair value through OCI’
Bank may reclassify financial assets out of available for sale category as a result of change in intention or ability or in rare 
circumstances that a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available.

The fair value of financial instruments at the date of reclassification is treated as the new cost or amortized cost of the financial 
instrument after reclassification. Difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity value is amortized over the 
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. Any gain or loss already recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income in respect of the reclassified financial instrument is accounted as follows:

1.	 Financial assets with fixed maturity :
Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the 
investment using the effective interest rate. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss 
that has been recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

2.	 Financial assets without fixed maturity :
Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification is recognized in profit or loss only when the financial asset 
is sold or otherwise disposed of. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has 
been recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
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If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of 
increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the effective 
interest rate from the date of the change in estimate rather than an adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset at the date 
of change in estimate.

(iii) Reclassification of ‘Financial Instruments amortized at cost’
As a result of a change in intention or ability, if it is no longer appropriate to classify an investment as amortized at cost, Bank 
may reclassify such financial assets as at fair value through OCI and re- measured at fair value. Any difference between the 
carrying value of the financial asset before reclassification and fair value is recognized in equity through other comprehensive 
income.

However, if Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held to maturity investments before maturity 
[other than in certain specific circumstances permitted in Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement)], the entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as ‘Investment 
measured at fair value through OCI’. Furthermore, Bank would be prohibited from classifying any financial assets as ‘Held 
to Maturity’ during the following two years. These reclassifications are at the election of management and determined on an 
instrument by instrument basis.

c. De-recognition 
De-recognition of Financial Assets 
Bank derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 
when:

	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
	 Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or 
	 Bank has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 

‘pass-through’ arrangement and either Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or it 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of 
the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount 
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset 
obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive 
income is recognized in profit or loss.

When Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement and 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, 
the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, Bank also recognizes 
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that Bank has retained.

When Bank’s continuing involvement that takes the form of guaranteeing the transferred asset, the extent of the continuing 
involvement is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 
received by Bank that Bank could be required to repay.

When securities classified as financial  instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are sold , 
the accumulated fair value adjustment recognized in the other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement 
as gain or loss from investment.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in profit 
or loss.
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Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position when 
and only when Bank has a legal right to set off the recognized amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under 
NFRSs or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transaction such as in trading activity.

d. Determination of fair value
‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

•	 In the principal market for the asset or liability  or
•	 In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole: 

•	 Level 1 - Valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical 
instruments in active markets. 

•	 Level 2 - Valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar 
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial 
instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable. 

•	 Level 3 – Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued using valuation 
techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable. 

Level 1
When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument 
or dealer price quotations (assets and long positions are measured at a bid price, liabilities and short positions are measured 
at an asking price), without any deduction for transaction costs.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring 
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2
If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Bank establishes fair value using a valuation technique. Valuation 
techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to 
the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing 
models. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates 
specific to the Bank, incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with 
accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent 
market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Bank calibrates valuation 
techniques and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument or 
based on other available observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of 
the consideration given or received, unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument, i.e. without modification or repackaging, or based on a valuation technique 
whose variables include only data from observable markets. When transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value 
at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially measured at the transaction price and any difference between this 
price and the value initially obtained from a valuation model is subsequently recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate 
basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or 
the transaction is closed out.

Level 3
Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques in which current market transactions or 
observable market data are not available. Their fair value is determined using a valuation model that has been tested against 
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prices or inputs to actual market transactions and using the Bank’s best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. 
Models are adjusted to reflect the spread for bid and ask prices to reflect costs to close out positions, credit and debit valuation 
adjustments, liquidity spread and limitations in the models. Also, profit or loss calculated when such financial instruments are 
first recorded (day 1 profit or loss) is deferred and recognized only when the inputs become observable or on de- recognition 
of the instrument.

Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Bank entity 
and the counterparty where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such 
as liquidity risk or model uncertainties; to the extent that the Bank believes a third-party market participant would take them 
into account in pricing a transaction.

e. Impairment
At each reporting date, Bank assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss is impaired.  A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be 
impaired if and only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events, that have occurred after the 
initial recognition of the asset (an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 

Objective evidence of impairment may include: indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant 
financial difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; default or delinquency in 
interest or principal payments; and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Impairment of Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, such as amounts due from banks, held to maturity investments etc., Bank first 
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant or 
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. In the event Bank determines that no objective evidence of 
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, financial assets in a group with similar credit risk characteristics 
such as collateral type, past due status and other relevant factors, etc. are collectively assessed for impairment. However, 
assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not 
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Impairment of loans and advances (financial assets measured at amortized cost) has been determined as per the directive 
of Nepal Rastra Bank.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future 
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be 
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for 
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

f) Individually Assessed Financial Assets
The criteria used to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment include and not limited to:

	 Significant financial difficulty of the borrowers such as adverse financial ratios of the borrower, significant adverse 
future outlook, etc.

	Unfavorable statutory indicators
	 Breach of contract such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
	 Significant drop down in fair value of collateral given and other recovery issues
	 Economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost has been incurred, 
the amount of the loss is measured by discounting the expected future cash flows of a financial asset at its original effective 
interest rate and comparing the resultant present value with the financial asset’s current carrying amount. The impairment 
allowances on individually significant accounts are reviewed more regularly when circumstances require. This normally 
encompasses re-assessment of the enforceability of any collateral held and the timing and amount of actual and anticipated 
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receipts. Individually assessed impairment allowances are only released when there is reasonable and objective evidence of 
reduction in the established loss estimate. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of 
the discount.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all 
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write off is later recovered, 
the recovery is credited to the impairment charges for loans and other losses. The recoverable value of loan is estimated on 
the basis of realizable value of the collateral.

When impairment losses are determined for those financial assets where objective evidence of impairment exists, the 
following common factors are considered:
	 Bank’s aggregate exposure to the customer;
	 The viability of the customer’s business model and their capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficulties and 

generate sufficient cash flows to service debt obligations;
	 The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;
	 The extent of other creditors ‘commitments ranking ahead of, or pari-pasu with the Bank and the likelihood of other 

creditors continuing to support the company;
	 The realizable value of security and likelihood of successful repossession;

ii) Collectively Assessed Financial Assets
Impairment is assessed on a collectively basis on following basis:

	 To cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject to individual assessment; 
and

	 For homogeneous groups of loans those are not considered individually significant.

Incurred but not yet been identified impairments
Individually assessed financial assets for which no evidence of loss has been specifically identified on an individual basis are 
grouped together according to their credit risk characteristics for the purpose of calculating an estimated collective loss. This 
reflects impairment losses that the bank has incurred as a result of events occurring before the reporting date, which the Bank 
is not able to identify on an individual loan basis and that can be reliably estimated.

These losses will only be individually identified in the future. As soon as information becomes available which identifies 
losses on individual financial assets within the group, those financial assets are removed from the group and assessed on an 
individual basis for impairment.

The collective impairment allowance is determined after taking into account:
	Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk; and
	Management’s experience and judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the 

actual level of inherent losses at the reporting date is like to be greater or less than that suggested by historical 
experience.

Homogeneous groups of Financials Assets
Statistical methods are used to determine impairment losses on a collective basis for homogenous groups of financial assets. 
Losses in these groups of financial assets are recorded on an individual basis when individual financial assets are written off, 
at which point they are removed from the group.

Bank uses the following method to calculate historical loss experience on a collective basis:

After grouping of loans on the basis of homogeneous risks, the Bank uses net flow rate method. Under this methodology; the 
movement in the outstanding balance of customers into default categories over the periods; are used to estimate the amount 
of financial assets that will eventually be irrecoverable, as a result of the events occurring before the reporting date which the 
Bank is not able to identify on an individual loan basis.

Under this methodology, loans are grouped into ranges according to the number of days in arrears and statistical analysis is 
used to estimate the likelihood that loans in each range will progress through the various stages of delinquency and ultimately 
prove irrecoverable.
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The Bank has categorized overall loan into 5 products namely Term Loan, Personal Loan, Home Loan, Auto loan and Short 
Term Loan. The loan has been classified into various buckets on the basis of due days as: 0-90 days, 90- 180 days, 180 – 365 
days and over 365 days

The Loss rate on each period has been calculated by multiplying Probability of Default (PD) with Loss Given Default (LGD). 
Probability of Default has been calculated on the basis of probability matrix by taking loan data since Ashad end 2069 as the 
basis. For the purpose of calculation of Loss Given Default (LGD), the loan which has been categorized as loss as per NRB 
directive, has been taken and the recovery history of the same has been analyzed upon to reach the LGD. The individually 
impaired loan has been subtracted from the total loan and the same has been multiplied by loss rate to calculate collective 
impairment. Total impairment is the sum of the collective and individual impairment.

The Bank has opted to apply carve-out issued by ICAN on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and 
collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB 
directive no. 2 and higher of the amount derived from these two is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables as 
tabulated below:

Particulars 31st  Ashad 2078
Total Impairment on Loan and advances to customers & BFIs 1,134,398,092
Individual Impairment 607,728,796
Collective Impairment 526,669,296
Total Loan Loss provision as per NRB norms 3,106,022,489
Higher of Total Impairment as per Para 63 of NAS 39 or Loan Loss provision as 
per NRB norms in accordance with carve-out issued by ICAN 3,106,022,489

Reversal of Impairment 
If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the excess is written back by reducing the financial asset impairment 
allowance account accordingly. The write-back is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Write-off of Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost 
Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off either partially or in full, when there 
is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds from 
the realization of security.  

Impairment of Rescheduled Loans and Advances
Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the 
payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is 
measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. 
Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to 
occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual impairment assessment, calculated as per the central bank’s directive.

Collateral Valuation 
The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in various 
forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets 
and credit enhancements such as netting agreements. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, at 
inception and based on the guidelines issued by the central bank (Nepal Rastra Bank). Non-financial collateral, such as real 
estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as independent valuator and audited financial statements.

Collateral Repossessed or Where Properties have devolved to the Bank
The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal operations or should be sold. The 
immovable property acquired by foreclosure of collateral from defaulting customers has been accounted for as an investment 
property or as part of the assets of the Bank in accordance with directions issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

Collateral repossessed are considered as Non-Banking Assets, are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances 
subsequently taken over by the Bank in the course of loan recovery. Such assets are valued at fair market value or total 
amount due from the borrower, whichever is lower and the balance loan remaining is charged to profit or loss account in the 
same year.
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Impairment of Financial Assets measured at fair value through OCI
For financial investments measured at fair value through OCI, Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective 
evidence that an investment is impaired. 

In the case of debt instruments, Bank assesses individually whether there is objective evidence of impairment based on the 
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative 
loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that 
investment previously recognized in the Income Statement. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount 
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related 
to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the impairment loss is reversed through the Income 
Statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as fair value through OCI, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’ or 
‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative 
loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that 
investment previously recognized in profit or loss is removed from equity and recognized in the Statement of profit or loss. 
However, any subsequent increase in the fair value of an impaired available for sale equity security is recognized in other 
comprehensive income.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An 
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or the fair value of the Cash Generating Units (CGU) fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre–tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

3.5. Trading Assets
Financial assets such as government securities, equity etc. held for short term with an intention to trade have been classified 
as trading assets. Trading assets are measured at fair value with any changes in fair value being recognized in Profit or Loss.

3.6. Derivative assets and derivative liabilities
Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial instrument 
prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk and indices. Derivatives are categorized as trading unless they 
are designated as hedging instruments. 

Derivatives are initially recognized and subsequently measured at fair value, with revaluation gains recognized in profit or loss 
(except where cash flow or net investment hedging has been achieved, in which case the effective portion of changes in fair 
value is recognized within other comprehensive income).

Fair value may be obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, recent market transactions, and valuation techniques, 
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropriate. Where the initially recognized fair value of a 
derivative contract is based on a valuation model that uses inputs which are not observable in the market, it follows the same 
initial recognition accounting policy as for other financial assets and liabilities. 

3.7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of services, for rental 
to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period. The Bank applies the 
requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these assets. 
Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow 
to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably measured. 
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Measurement
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of 
an item of property, plant & equipment. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any 
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling 
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality 
of the related equipment is capitalized as part of computer equipment. When parts of an item of property or equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model
Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day–to–day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost is incurred, 
if the recognition criteria are met.

Revaluation Model 
The Bank has not applied the revaluation model to any class of freehold land and buildings or other assets. Such properties 
are carried at a previously recognized GAAP Amount.

On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognized in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and 
accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used to reverse a previous revaluation decrease relating to the same asset, 
which was charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the increase is recognized as income to the extent 
of previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
or debited to the Other Comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the capital reserve in respect of 
that asset.

The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under capital reserves. 
Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained earnings on retirement 
or disposal of the asset.

Subsequent Cost
The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the Bank and it can 
be reliably measured. The cost of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are charged to the Statement of Profit 
or Loss as incurred.

De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.  When replacement costs are recognized in 
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognized. Major inspection costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the 
previous cost of inspections is derecognized. The gain or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated by using written down value method.

The depreciable amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is allocated on systematic basis over its useful life and 
is depreciated as follows:

Nature of Asset Depreciation Rate
Building 5%
Office Equipment, Computer & Accessories and Furniture & Fixtures 25%
Vehicles 20%
Leasehold Assets Lease term or a 5 year’s period, whichever 

is earlier
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Depreciation on assets acquired during the year is computed on a proportionate basis from date of available for use, whichever 
is earlier.

Changes in Estimates
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
financial year end.

Capital Work in Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of freehold and leasehold buildings, major plant 
and machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization, of which final billing is yet to be obtained at reporting date. 
Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is 
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Recognition
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the production or supply 
of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an intangible item that was initially 
recognized as an expense by the Bank in previous annual Financial Statements or interim Financial Statements are not 
recognized as part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later date.

Computer Software
Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the Bank, which are not integrally 
related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified, reliably measured, and it’s probable that they will lead to future 
economic benefits, are included in the Statement of Financial Position under the category ‘Intangible assets’ and carried at 
cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill
Goodwill, if any that arises upon the acquisition of Subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.

Subsequent Expenditure
Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate 
future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and this expenditure can be measured 
and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight–line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss from the date 
when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful economic life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic 
benefits are consumed by the bank. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial year 
end and adjusted if appropriate. The Bank assumes that there is no residual value for its intangible assets.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of cost incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific 
software and are amortized over their useful life estimated as 5 years from the date of acquisition or over the period of the 
license, whichever is less. 

De-recognition of Intangible Assets
The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition of an item of intangible assets is included in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

3.9. Investment Property and Non-current Assets held for sale 

3.9.1 Investment property
Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not 
sold in ordinary course of business.
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Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost model. Accordingly, such properties are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. When the use of a property 
changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost 
for subsequent reporting.  

Investment property also includes land, land and building acquired as non-banking assets by the Bank but not sold.

3.9.2 Non-Current Assets held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale and carried at lower of carrying amount and 
fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through 
continuing use. The assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale. Any impairment loss 
on initial classification and subsequent measurement is recognized as an expense. Any subsequent increase in fair value 
less costs to sell (not exceeding the accumulated impairment loss that has been previously recognized) is recognized in the 
statement of Profit or Loss.

3.10. Income Tax
As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes), tax expense is the aggregate amount included in determination 
of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in the statement 
of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which 
case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department in 
respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences 
except: 

	Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that 
is not a business combination, and at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

	 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal 
of the temporary differences can be controlled and is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and unused 
tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that the  taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:
	 Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an 

asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

	 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in Subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are 
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 
taxable profit will be available against which  the temporary difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is probable that 
sufficient profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date.
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Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to income taxes imposed by the 
same taxation authority. 

3.11. Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities have been measured at amortized cost. Bank has a policy to treat 
debt securities issue expenses up to 1.5% of debt securities issue price as immaterial thus the same has not been considered 
in computation of fair value of debt securities.

3.12. Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be 
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount 
recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking in 
to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Where a provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is determined based on the present value of those cash 
flows. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract 
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured as the present 
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. The 
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss net off any reimbursement.

3.13. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue can be 
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Interest Income
For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as measured at fair value 
through OCI and financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded 
using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability.

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and 
includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not 
future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the bank revises its estimates 
of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR and the change in carrying 
amount is recorded as ’Interest income’ for financial assets and ’Interest and similar expense’ for financial liabilities. However, 
for a reclassified financial asset for which the bank subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of 
increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the EIR from the 
date of the change in estimate.

The Bank has a policy to treat loan administration fees up to 1.5% of loan amount as immaterial.  Considering loan administration 
and other fees as immaterial and impracticable to determine reliably, same has not been included in computation of effective 
interest rate as per Carve-out pronouncements. 

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment 
loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the 
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Further, as per Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS)-18, revenue shall be measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising in the course of ordinary 
activities of an entity when those inflows result in increase in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity 
participants. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.
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Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
entity. As per the conceptual framework, the concept of probability is used in the recognition criteria to refer to the degree 
of uncertainty that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to or from the entity. The concept is in 
keeping with the uncertainty that characterizes the environment in which an entity operates. Assessments of the degree 
of uncertainty attaching to the flow of future economic benefits are made on the basis of the evidence available when the 
financial statements are prepared.

Further, Nepal Rastra Bank had issued the Interest Recognition Guidelines, 2019 which set the framework for the recognition 
of interest income. Accordingly, the Bank has recognized the interest income except for the interest accrued from following 
criteria as stated by the Guidelines:
a.	 Loans where there is reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of principal or interest;
b.	 Loans against which individual impairment as per NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS 9 has been made;
c.	  Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3months in arrears and where the “net 

realizable value” of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest;
d.	  Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than12 months in arrears, irrespective of the net 

realizable value of collateral;
e.	 Overdrafts and other short term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not renewed 

within 3 months of the expiry, and where the net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal 
and accrued interest;

f.	 Overdrafts and other short term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not renewed 
within 12 months of the expiry, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral.

Out of total interest accrual of Rs. 2,773,069,581 till Ashad end 2078 , the Bank has not recognized interest income of Rs. 
1,961,496,759  in accordance with above clause (d) and (f), of Rs. 373,452,340 in accordance with above clause (a) and of 
Rs. 2,514,484 in accordance with above clause (c) and (e). Accordingly, the Bank has recognized accrued interest income of 
Rs. 435,605,998 in the financial statements of FY 2077/78.

Fee and Commission Income
Fees & commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in measurement of 
effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee, service charges, and syndication fee 
and foreign exchange transaction commission are recognized as the related services are performed.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Net Trading Income
Gain and losses arising in changes in fair value of financial instrument held at fair value through profit or loss are included in 
Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise.

These includes the net gain / (loss) on translation of period and balances carried in foreign exchange to the Nepalese Rupee.

Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of other financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss 
are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise. 

3.14. Interest expense
For all financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, interest expense is recognized using the EIR. EIR is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liabilities or a shorter period, 
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

3.15. Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Bank makes fixed contribution into a separate 
Bank account (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does not 
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods as defined in 
Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
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The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services rendered to Bank by the 
employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel Expense’ as and when they become due. Unpaid contributions 
are recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’ in Notes 4.23.

Bank contributed 10% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund. The above expenses are identified 
as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly, staff gratuity and 
leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards – NAS 19 (Employee 
Benefits). 

(a) Gratuity
An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity. Bank’s obligation in respect of 
defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned for their service 
in the current and prior periods and discounting that benefit to determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any 
plan assets to determine the net amount to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position. The value of a defined benefit 
asset is restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on 
the future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any 
minimum funding requirement that apply to any plan in Bank. An economic benefit is available to Bank if it is realizable during 
the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the discount rate used to measure the 
defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period. The discount rate is the average yield on government bonds 
issued during the period having maturity of five years or more.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during the year ended 15th July, 2021 
(current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the 
net interest expense. Bank recognizes the total actuarial gain/ (loss) that arise in computing Bank’s obligation in respect of 
gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (60 years), early withdrawal from service and 
retirement on medical grounds.

(b) Unutilized Accumulated Leave
The Bank has provision of providing annual leave and sick leave facility in accordance with Employee By-laws of the Bank. 
Annual leave can be accumulated up to 90 days while sick leave can be accumulated upto the date of retirement in accordance 
with Employee By-laws of the Bank. The Bank’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized 
beyond one year from the end of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits. Bank’s net obligation 
towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount of future benefit that employees have earned 
in return for their service in the current and prior periods to determine the present value of such benefits. The discount rate 
is the average yield on government bonds issued during the period having maturity of five years or more. The calculation 
is performed using the Projected Unit Credit method. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any 
actuarial gain and loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in the period in which 
they arise. 

3.16. Leases
Minimum lease payments made under finance lease are apportioned between the finance expense and reduction of 
outstanding liabilities. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce the constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of liabilities.

The leases entered into by the Bank are primarily operating leases. When an operating lease is terminated before the end of 
the lease period, any payment made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period of termination.

As per NAS 17, Lease payment under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit. Accordingly, the 
bank has recognized the operating lease expenses under straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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3.17. Foreign currency translation
All foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, which is Nepalese Rupees, using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates when the transactions were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Nepalese Rupees 
using the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date and all differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to ‘Other 
Operating Income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference 
between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments 
during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the 
reporting period.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange 
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured at fair value are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those which were 
initially recorded are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency differences arising on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.18. Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those 
present obligations where the outflow of resources are uncertain or cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not 
recognized in financial statements but are disclosed unless they are remote.
	
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and 
if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period 
in which the change occurs. Details of contingent liabilities and commitments provided by the bank on the reporting date are 
presented in Note 4.28.

Financial guarantee and loan commitment
A financial guarantee contract is contract that requires the issuer to make specified payment to reimburse the holder for loss it 
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make the payment when due. Financial guarantee contracts may have various legal 
forms such as guarantee, some type of letter of credit, etc. Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide the fund to 
a customer or on behalf of customer in the form of loan and advances, whether cancellable or not and the Bank had not made 
payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in this financial statement as commitment.

3.19. Share capital and reserves
Share capital and reserves have been treated as equity instrument as per NAS 32 representing the net assets of the entity. 
Bank has a policy to treat share/debenture issue expenses upto 1.5% of issue amount as immaterial. Thus, same has not 
been deducted from capital/debenture and has been charged to profit or loss of relevant period.

3.20. Earnings per share including diluted
Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the 
profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if 
any. Basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) have been restated for prior period in accordance with NAS 33- Earning per 
Share.

3.21. Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the bank that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs 
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with any of the bank’s other components, whose 
operating results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess 
its performance.
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Segment results that are reported to the CEO (being the Chief Operating Decision Maker) include items directly attributable 
to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on reasonable/ appropriate basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly 
common un-allocable assets/liabilities/expenses and tax assets /liabilities/expenses. 

3.22. Regulatory Reserve
Regulatory Reserve include the amount allocated from the profit or retained earnings of the Bank as per NRB Directive since 
the implementation of NFRS. The amount allocated to this reserve shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend 
(cash as well as bonus shares).			 

												            Rs. in 000

Fiscal Year Interest 
receivable

Short 
provision on 

NBA

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Actuarial 
Loss 

Recognized
Total Balance

2074/75 132,133 975,590 - 112,413 1,220,136 1,220,136
2075/76 (75,332) (414,444) 130,669 11,215 (347,891) 872,244
2076/77 6,822 41,623 (61,322) (55) (12,932) 859,313
Adjustment for actuarial 
reserve - - - 5,172 5,172 864,485

2077/78 123,179 (33,911) 621 76,410 166,299 1,030,784
Total 186,802 568,859 69,968 205,155 1,030,784

3.23 Impact of COVID and compliance with NRB Directive related to COVID
The Bank has complied all directions issued by Nepal Rastra Bank for minimizing the effects of COVID. Summary of 
forbearance/ relaxation, refinancing & business continuity and subsided loan is as follows:

Additional Details relating to Loan

Particulars As of Ashad end 2078
No of Customers Amount (NRs.)

Accrued Interest Received after Asadh end 2078 till 15 bhadra 2078 9,625 141,534,819.72
Additional 0.3% Loan loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio 15,180 276,122,523
Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project 
under construction 1 59,878,853

Restructured/ Reschedule Loan with 5% loan loss provision 364 1,579,038,479
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected 
borrowers - -

Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers 851 625,280,022
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (COVID Loan) 
extended for up to 1 year with 5% provisioning - -

Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan) extended for up 
to 1 year with 5% provisioning 16 25,546,000

Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for up to 
two years as per clause 41 of NRB Directives 2 323 75,671,091

Particulars As of Ashadh end 2078
No of Customers Amount (NRs.)

Refinance Loan 167 2,225,270,616
Business Continuity loan 2 19,000,000

Particulars As of Ashadh end 2078
No of Customers Amount (NRs.)

Subsidized loan 1,523 3,850,728,203
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3.24 Interest Capitalization 
Following are the loans, on which interest is capitalized to recognize income in accordance with NRB approval. These loans 
are the project loans, interest on which was capitalized for moratorium period. Detail of such loans and interest recognized in 
FY 2077/78 is as follows:

S.No. Borrower Name Total Interest 
Capitalized

1 B & C Medical College Teaching Hospital & Research Center Pvt. Ltd. 15,822,879
2 Himalayan Power Patner Ltd. 10,693,209

3 Shiva Shree Hydropower Development Ltd. 21,737,847

5 Pan Himalaya Energy Pvt. Ltd. 12,586,570

6 Peoples Hydropower  Company Pvt.Ltd 33,043,136

8 Samrat Cement Company P.Ltd 26,717,768

9 Sanigad Hydro Pvt.Ltd 20,156,697

10 Super Madi Hydropower Public Ltd 11,045,769

11 Purbanchal Cancer Hospital Pvt.Ltd 38,274,359

12 C.G Cement Industries  Palpa Pvt Ltd 20,229,962

13 Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd 15,162,425

14 Middle Modi Hydro Power Limited 11,061,387

15 Moonlight Hydropower P. Ltd 11,848,411

16 Multi Energy Dev. P. Ltd. 4,493,136

17 Sahas Urja Limited 12,695,297

18 Secure Hospitality P.Ltd 5,736,522

19 K.B.N.R Isuwa Power Limited 4,472,446
Total 275,777,821

In case of B & C Medical College Teaching Hospital & Research Center Pvt. Ltd. and Purbanchal Cancer Hospital Pvt. Ltd., 
the Bank has transferred amount of Rs. 54,097,238 to capital adjustment fund during this fiscal year as per NRB approval 
letter. 

3.25 Adjustment in opening balance of retained earnings, regulatory reserve and actuarial reserve
The Bank had booked additional actuarial loss of Rs. 5,172,347 relating to past years in accordance with Actuarial Report 
which has increased the regulatory reserve by same amount. Net effect of this adjustment has been provided by restating the 
opening balance of actuarial loss reserve and regulatory reserve in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Further, the Bank has recovered the excess interest paid (on deposit) amounting Rs. 1,060,655 relating to FY 2076/77 from 
the depositor. The effect of prior period adjustment has been provided by restating the opening balance of retained earnings 
in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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4.1  gub tyf gub ;dfg /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

gub df}Hbft  3,563,293,850  2,981,602,285 

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfdf /x]sf] df}Hbft  985,850,316  2,684,443,645 

dfu tyf cNk ;"rgfdf k|fKt x'g] /sd  -    -   

cGo  2,379,056,051  2,940,112,500 

hDdf  6,928,200,217  8,606,158,430 

4.2 g]]kfn /fi6« a}+sdf /x]sf] df}Hbft tyf lng'kg]{ jSof}tf  /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

g]kfn /fi6« a}+s;Fu /x]sf] j}wflgs df}Hbft  6,860,082,638  2,146,758,752 

k'gMljqmL ;Demf}tf cGtu{t vl/b ul/Psf] lwtf]kq  -    -   

g]kfn /fi6« a}+sdf /x]sf] cGo lgIf]k tyf lng jfFsL jSof}tf /sd  1,631,224,299  6,326,174,312 

hDdf  8,491,306,936  8,472,933,064 

4.3 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?df ePsf] df}Hbft /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

:jb]zL a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf;Fusf] df}Hbft  20,631,057  20,631,057 

ljb]zL a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf;Fusf] df}Hbft  1,609,875,000  -   

36fpg]M hf]lvd Joj:yf  (20,631,057)  (20,631,057)

hDdf  1,609,875,000  -   

4.4 8]l/e]l6e ljQLo pks/0fx? /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

Jofkfl/s k|of]hgsf] nflu

  Jofhb/ :jfk  -    -   

  d'b|f :jfk  -    -   

  clu|d ljlgdo ;Demf}tf  1,506,029,824  1,192,390,828 

  cGo  -    -   

hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu

  Jofhb/ :jfk  -    -   

  d'b|f :jfk  -    -   

  clu|d ljlgdo ;Demf}tf  -    -   

  cGo  -    -   

hDdf  1,506,029,824  1,192,390,828 

ljQLo ljj/0f ;DaGwL gf]6x?
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4.5 cGo Jofkfl/s ;DklQx? /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

6«]h/L ljn  -    -   

g]kfn ;/sf/sf] C0fkq  -    -   

g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] C0fkq  -    -   

:jb]zL ;+:yfut aG8  -    -   

z]o/  -    -   

cGo  -    -   

hDdf  -   -  

4.6 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

n3'ljQ ;+:yfnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{  3,784,356,925  2,827,720,984 

cGo  -    -   

36fpg] M hf]lvd Joj:yf  (49,196,192)  (30,199,304)

hDdf  3,735,160,732  2,797,521,680 

$=^=! shf{ hf]lvd Joj:yf /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

>fj0f ! sf] df}Hbft  30,199,304  24,028,345 

o; jif{sf] hf]lvd Joj:yf M  18,996,888  6,170,959 

  o; jif{sf] hDdf  18,996,888  6,170,959 

  c;'nL÷lkmtf{  -    -   

ckn]vg  -    -   

hDdf  49,196,192  30,199,304 

4.7 u|fxsnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

ckn]lvt d'Nodf dfkg ul/Psf] shf{ / ;fk6L  97,638,993,986  67,786,311,558 

36fpg] M hf]lvd Joj:yf

  ;fd"lxs hf]lvd Joj:yf  (1,374,149,853)  (934,977,246)

  Psn hf]lvd Joj:yf  (1,682,676,444)  (1,829,402,940)

v'b /sd  94,582,167,688  65,021,931,372 

FVTPL df dfkg ul/Psf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  -    -   

hDdf  94,582,167,688  65,021,931,372 
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$=&=! shf{ k|sf/sf] cfwf/df shf{ tyf ;fk6Lsf] ljZn]if0f /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

shf{ k|sf/

cfjlws shf{  29,626,399,000  18,343,474,600 

cf]e/8«fkm\6  21,721,643,800  15,742,644,200 

6«i6 l/l;K6÷cfoft shf{  2,970,316,600  2,342,717,700 

dfu tyf cGo rfn' k"FhL shf{  13,573,497,500  9,529,194,400 

JolQmut cfjfl;o shf{  5,135,745,700  4,352,291,600 

l/on :6]6 shf{  1,234,098,300  1,015,148,900 

dflh{g n]lG8Ë shf{  2,126,154,900  932,034,300 

xfo/ kr]{h shf{  5,017,842,600  5,068,542,300 

ljkGg ju{nfO{ shf{  1,941,530,710  647,063,250 

ljn vl/b  -    22,500,000 

sd{rf/L shf{  1,080,375,208  747,512,412 

cGo  12,775,818,113  8,575,937,700 

hDdf  97,203,422,431  67,319,061,362 

c;'n ug{ afFsL Jofh  435,571,555  467,250,196 

s'n hDdf  97,638,993,986  67,786,311,558 

pNn]lvt /sd u|fxs tyf sd{rf/LnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ / ;fk6Lsf] s'n /sd xf] . o;df hf]lvd Joj:yf 36fOPsf] 5}g .

$=&=@ d'b|fsf] cfwf/df shf{ tyf ;fk6Lsf] ljZn]if0f /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

g]kfnL ?k}+of  95,191,269,253  65,863,121,477 

ef/tLo ?k}Fof  -   

cd]l/sg 8n/  2,012,153,178  1,455,939,885 

u|]6 lj|6]g kfpG8  -   

o"/f]  -   

hfklgh o]g  -   

rfOlgh o'cfg  -   

cGo  -   

hDdf  97,203,422,431  67,319,061,362 

pNn]lvt /sd u|fxs tyf sd{rf/LnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ / ;fk6Lsf] s'n /sd xf] . o;df hf]lvd Joj:yf 36fOPsf] 5} g / shf{df lng afFsL Jofh  ;dfj]z 

ul/Psf] 5}g .
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$=&=# lwtf] ;'/If0fsf] cfwf/df shf{ tyf ;fk6Lsf] ljZn]if0f /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;'/If0f

rn÷crn ;DklQ  92,703,424,764  64,115,304,939 

;'g / rfFbL  61,875,400  55,016,000 

:jb]zL a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hdfgt  -    -   

;/sf/L hdfgt  74,736,600  74,736,600 

cGt/f{li6«o ;"rLs[t a}+ssf] hdfgt  -    -   

lgof{t sfuhkqsf] lwtf]  20,626,700  20,789,500 

d'2lt lgIf]ksf] lwtf]  394,079,400  430,015,900 

;/sf/L lwtf]kqsf] lwtf]  -    -   

sfpG6/ hdfgt  -    -   

JolQmut hdfgt  -    802,600 

cGo lwtf]  3,948,679,567  2,622,395,823 

hDdf  97,203,422,431  67,319,061,362 

;'/If0f gul/Psf]

hDdf  97,203,422,431  67,319,061,362 

pNn]lvt /sd u|fxs tyf sd{rf/LnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ / ;fk6Lsf] s'n /sd xf] . o;df hf]lvd Joj:yf 36fOPsf] 5} g / shf{df lng afFsL Jofh  ;dfj]z 

ul/Psf] 5}g .

$=&=$ hf]lvdsf] nflu Joj:yf /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

Psn hf]lvdsf] nflu Joj:yf

>fj0f ! sf] df}Hbft  1,829,402,940  1,667,644,957 

o; jif{sf] hf]lvd Joj:yf M  (146,726,496)  161,757,982 

  o; jif{sf] hf]lvd Joj:yf  (146,726,496)  161,757,982 

  o; jif{sf] c;'nL÷lkmtf{

ckn]vg

ljb]zL d'b|fsf] ljlgdo b/sf] 36÷a9

cGo yk36

cfiff9 d;fGtsf] df}Hbft  1,682,676,444  1,829,402,940 

;fd'lxs hf]lvd Joj:yf

>fj0f ! sf] df}Hbft  934,977,246  696,903,496 

o; jif{sf] hf]lvd Joj:yf  439,172,607  238,073,750 

  o; jif{sf] hf]lvd÷-lkmtf{_  439,172,607  238,073,750 

ljb]zL d'b|fsf] ljlgdo b/sf] 36÷a9  -   

cGo yk36  -   

cfiff9 d;fGtsf] df}Hbft  1,374,149,853  934,977,246 

hDdf hf]lvd Joj:yf  3,056,826,298  2,764,380,186 

pNn]lvt ljj/0f nu'ljQ ;+:yf tyf sd{rf/L jfx]s cGo u|fxsnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6Lsf] hf]lvd Joj:yf xf] .
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4.8 lwtf]kqdf nufgL /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

kl/iff]lwt d'Nodf dfkg ul/Psf] lwtf]kqdf nufgL  13,188,569,348  7,314,960,417 

FVTOCI df dfkg ul/Psf] OlSj6Ldf nufgL  697,256,915  187,725,153 

hDdf  13,885,826,263  7,502,685,570 

$=*=! kl/iff]lwt -Amortized_ d"Nodf d"Nof°g ul/Psf] ;]So'l/6Lh nufgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

C0fkq

;/sf/L C0fkq  8,768,978,098  5,667,450,000 

;/sf/L 6«]h/L ljn  4,419,591,250  1,647,510,417 

g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] C0fkq

g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgIf]k pks/0fx?

cGo

36fpg]M hf]lvd Joj:yf

hDdf  13,188,569,348  7,314,960,417 

$=*=@ cGo lj:t[t cfDbfgLsf] tflnsfdf kg]{ km]o/ e]No'df dfkg ul/Psf OlSj6Ldf nufgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

OlSj6L pks/0fx?

  ;"rLs[t z]o/  679,163,855  169,632,093 

  ;"rLs[t gul/Psf z]o/  18,093,060  18,093,060 

hDdf  697,256,915  187,725,153 

4.8.3 OlSj6Ldf ulPsf] nufgL ;DjGwL hfgsf/L

ljj/0f
 cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

nfut km]o/ e]No' nfut km]o/ e]No'

;"lrs[t z]o/df nufgL

u|fdL0f ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;++:yf ln=  
-@## z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

                   
23,300    154,363 

                   
23,300 74,560 

cf/=Pd=8L=;L= n3'jLQ ljlQo ;+:yf ln=  
-!$),&!@ z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
7,075,000 

                 
100,136,288 

              
7,075,000 

              
46,424,330 

lrlnd] xfO8«f] kfj/ sDkgL ln=
-*,%(# z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
4,553,791 5,903,391 

                   
85,756 

                   
378,498 

hnljB't nufgL tyf ljsf; af]8{ ln=
-@^! z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

                   
23,807    117,189 

            
11,151,100 

              
16,313,780 

c?0f sfa]nL xfO8«f] kfj/ sDkgL ln=
-!,!() z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

                 
396,782    564,060 

cf/=P;=8L=;L= n3'jLQ ljlQo ;+:yf ln=  
-^,(($ z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
6,307,070 6,063,798 

;'o{ nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln=
-^,#*( z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

            
13,667,295 

                   
12,471,328 

Pl;og nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln=
-^,))) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
8,176,395 8,088,000 

;f/yL n3'jLQ ljlQo ;+:yf ln=  
-#$^,%&! z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

            
34,657,126 

                 
340,506,021 

l;len n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf ln=
-!% z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_ 1,500 11,505 

nIdL n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf ln=
-!@ z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_    400 14,568 
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d]/f] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;++:yf ln=
-^& z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_ 8,200 45,158 

ldld{/] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;++:yf ln=
-%% z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_ 4,100 49,445 

;fgf ls;fg n3'ljQ ljQLo ;++:yf ln=
-$!& z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

                   
58,600 

                   
542,516 

ljhof n3'ljQ ljQLo ;++:yf ln=
-#@ z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_ 2,300 32,640 

u'/fF; nfOkm OG:of]/]G; ln=
-@&^ z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

                   
26,000 

                   
128,340 

k|fOd nfOkm OG:of]/]G; ln=
-!,&*% z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

                 
118,800 

                   
947,835 

ckL kfj/ sDkgL ln=
-@( z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_ 2,600   3,132 

j?0f xfO8«f] kfj/ sDkgL ln=
-@) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_ 2,000   1,680 

a'6jn kfj/ sDkgL ln=
-@,^!! z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
1,200,656 

                   
937,349 

GofbL xfO8«f] kfj/ sDkgL ln=
-^#^ z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

                   
57,900 73,140 

l/8L xfO8«f] kfj/ sDkgL ln=
-#( z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_ 3,600   3,276 

Unf]an cfOPdO ;d'Ggt Do'r'jn km08
-@,#&,#@* z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

              
2,373,280 4,813,012 

              
2,373,280 

                
2,036,274 

gjLn OSjL6L km08
-!!,@^,%)! z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
11,265,010 

                   
16,446,915 

            
11,265,010 

              
10,510,254 

PgcfOlaPn k|ult km08
-!),@&,$)& z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
10,274,070 

                   
15,256,994 

            
10,274,070 

                
8,373,367 

PgcfOlaPn ;d[l4 km08
-!),$#,#$& z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
10,433,470 

                   
14,982,463 

            
10,433,470 

              
10,329,135 

Pg=Pd=la %)
-#),)),))) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
30,000,000 

                   
44,850,000 

            
30,000,000 

              
30,000,000 

;g/fO{h klxnf] Do'r'jn km08
-#),)),))) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
30,000,000 

                   
48,000,000 

            
30,000,000 

              
30,000,000 

s'df/L OSjL6L km08
-@$,)^,^&) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
24,066,700 

                   
25,270,035      -           -   

;g/fOh An'rLk km08
-@%,)),))) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
25,000,000 

                   
25,400,000      -           -   

k|e' ;]n]S6 km08
-!),)),))) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
10,000,000 

                   
10,140,000 

nIdL EofNo' km08
-!@,*^,$$# z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)_

            
12,864,430 

              
12,401,311 

c;"lrs[t z]o/df nufgL

shf{ ;"rgf s]Gb| ln= 
-!#,#)) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
1,330,000 1,330,000 

              
1,330,000 

                
1,330,000 

g]zgn a}+lsË 6«]lgª OlG:6Ro'6
-!*,#$( z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
1,834,860 1,834,860 

              
1,834,860 

                
1,834,860 

g]kfn lSnol/ª xfp; ln=
-$(,%#* z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

              
4,128,200 4,128,200 

              
4,128,200 

                
4,128,200 

o'lgs n3'ljQ ljlQo ;+:yf ln=
-!,)*,))) z]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!))_

            
10,800,000 

                   
10,800,000 

            
10,800,000 

              
10,800,000 

hDdf 246,386,155 697,256,915           145,125,132 187,725,153 

ljj/0f
 cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

nfut km]o/ e]No' nfut km]o/ e]No'
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4.9 rfn' s/ ;DklQ /sd ?= df 

rfn' s/ ;DklQdf a}+sn] cfos/ P]g, @)%* jdf]lhd :jo+ lgwf{l/t clu|d cfos/ e'QmgL /sd ;fd]n ul/Psf] 5 . 

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

rfn' s/ ;DklQ

rfn' jif{sf] cfo s/ ;DklQ  440,588,909  617,335,928 

ut jif{x?sf] s/ ;DklQ  120,416,294  -   

rfn' s/ bfloTj

rfn' jif{sf] cfos/ bfloTj  551,584,670  496,919,633 

ut jif{x?sf] s/ bfloTj  -    -   

hDdf  9,420,533  120,416,294 

4.10 ;xfos sDkgLdf nufgL

o; a}+ssf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL 5}g .

4.11 ;Dj4 sDkgLdf nufgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;"rLs[t ;Dj4 sDkgLdf nufgL  20,000,000  -   

;"rLs[t gePsf ;Dj4 sDkgLdf nufgL  -    54,657,126 

hDdf nufgL  20,000,000  54,657,126 

36fpg] M hf]lvd Joj:yf  -    -   

v'b lstfjL d'No  20,000,000  54,657,126 

$=!!=@ ;"rLs[t gePsf ;Dj4 sDkgLdf ul/Psf] nufgL

o; a}+ssf] ;"rLs[t ;Dj4 gePsf sDkgLdf s'g} nufgL 5}g .

$=!!=! ;"rLs[t ;Da4 sDkgLdf ul/Psf] nufgL /sd ?= df 

ljj/0f
 cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

k/n d'No km]o/ e]No' k/n d'No km]o/ e]No'

;fwgf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

@#^,))) z]o/ ?=!)) k|lt z]o/

-ut jif{ M @)),))) z]o/ ?=!)) k|lt z]o/_
 20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000 

;f/yL n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

-ut jif{ M #,$^,%&@ z]o/ ?=!)) k|lt z]o/_
- -  34,657,126  34,657,126 

hDdf  20,000,000  20,000,000  54,657,126  54,657,126 

;fwgf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= / ;f/yL n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf] z]o/ cfiff9 d;fGt @)&& df ;"rLs[t gePsf]df cf=j= @)&&÷&* df ;"rLs[t ePsf] .

$=!!=# a}+ssf] ;Da4 sDkgLx?sf] hfgsf/L

ljj/0f
a}+ssf] :jfldTj k|ltztdf

 cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;fwgf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= 7.78% 9.18%



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷)&*

66

4.12 ;DklQdf nufgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

km]o/ e]No'df dfkg ul/Psf] nufgL ;DklQ

>fj0f ! sf] df}Hbft  -    -   

o; jif{sf] yk÷-36_  -    -   

o; jif{sf] km]]o/ d"Nodf ePsf] kl/jt{g  -    -   

;dfof]hg÷:yfgfGt/0f  -    -   

v'b /sd  -    -   

nfutdf dfkg ul/Psf] nufgL ;DklQ

>fj0f ! sf] df}Hbft  956,777,405  890,708,903 

o; jif{sf] yk÷-36_  (53,826,889)  66,068,502 

;dfof]hg÷:yfgfGt/0f  -    -   

;+lrt x\f; s6\6L  -    -   

;+lrt hf]lvd Joj:yf  -    -   

v'b /sd  902,950,516  956,777,405 

hDdf  902,950,516  956,777,405 
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$=!$ Voflt tyf cd't{ ;DklQ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f VoftL 
;km\6j]o/

cGo hDdf
vl/b ljsf;

k/n df]n

>fj0f !, @)&^ sf] df}Hbft  -    29,024,766  29,024,766 

o; jif{ yk M  -    2,587,700  2,587,700 

   k|flKt  -    2,587,700  2,587,700 

   k"+hLs[t  -   
o; jif}sf] ljqmL  -   
;dfof]hg÷k'gMd'Nof°g  -   
cfiff9 @)&& clGtdsf] df}Hbft  -    31,612,466  31,612,466 

o; jif{ yk M  -    6,449,579  6,449,579 

   k|flKt  -    6,449,579  6,449,579 

   k"+hLs[t

o; jif}sf] ljqmL  -   
;dfof]hg÷k'gMd'Nof°g

cfiff9 @)&* clGtdsf] df}Hbft  -    38,062,045  38,062,045 

;+lrt kl/iff]wg / xfgL gf]S;fgL  -   
>fj0f !, @)&^ sf] df}Hbft  -    (16,481,960)  (16,481,960)

;fnsf] kl/iff]wg  -   
;fnsf] xfgLgf]S;fgL  -    (3,352,522)  (3,352,522)

ljqmL

;dfof]hg  -   
cfiff9 @)&& clGtdsf] df}Hbft  -    (19,834,482)  (19,834,482)

;fnsf] kl/iff]wg  -   
;fnsf] xfgLgf]S;fgL  -    (3,747,499)  (3,747,499)

ljqmL

;dfof]hg

cfiff9 @)&* clGtdsf] df}Hbft  -  (23,581,981)  (23,581,981)

k"FhLut lgdf{0f  -   -   

v'b lstfaL d"No

cfiff9 @)&& clGtdsf] df}Hbft  -   11,777,984  -    -    11,777,984 

cfiff9 @)&* clGtdsf] df}Hbft  -   14,480,064  -    -    14,480,064 
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4.15 :yug s/ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f :yug s/ ;DklQ :yug s/ bfloTj
o; jif{

:yug s/ ;DklQ÷-bfloTj_

c:yfO{ leGgtfdf :yug s/

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  -   

u|fxsnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  -   

nufgL ;DklQ  -   

nufgL ;]So'l/6Lh  -    135,261,228  (135,261,228)

;DklQ / pks/0f  13,977,364  13,977,364 

kl/eflift sd{rf/L nfe of]hgf  25,849,193  25,849,193 

lnh bfloTj  14,101,126  14,101,126 

Joj:yf  -   

cGo c:yfoL leGgtfx?  1,267,710  1,267,710 

c:yfO{ leGgtfdf :yug s/  55,195,393  135,261,228  (80,065,835)

ut jif{sf]] jfFsL s/ 3f6fdf :yug s/  27,552,975  -    27,552,975 

s/sf] b/df kl/jt{gn] l;h{gf ePsf] :yug s/  -    -    -   

v'b :yug s/ ;DklQ÷-bfloTj_, cfiff9 @)&*  (52,512,859)

:yug s/ -;DklQ_÷bfloTj, >fj0f ! @)&&  (69,347,195)

o; jif{ l;lh{t -36_÷a9  121,860,055 

gfkmf gf]S;fg vftfdf b]vfOPsf] :yug s/ vr{÷-cfo_  32,125,897 

cGo lj:t[t cfDbfgLdf b]vfOPsf] :yug s/ vr{÷-cfo_  89,734,158 

OlSj6Ldf l;w} b]vfOPsf] :yug s/ vr{÷-cfo_  -   

ljj/0f :yug s/ ;DklQ :yug s/ bfloTj
ut jif{

:yug s/ ;DklQ÷-bfloTj_

c:yfO{ leGgtfdf :yug s/

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  -    -    -   

u|fxsnfO{ lbPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  -    -    -   

nufgL ;DklQ  -    -    -   

nufgL ;]So'l/6Lh  -    12,780,007  (12,780,007)

;DklQ / pks/0f  13,637,594  -    13,637,594 

kl/eflift sd{rf/L nfe of]hgf  13,654,264  -    13,654,264 

lnh bfloTj  10,449,010  10,449,010 

Joj:yf  -    -   

cGo c:yfoL leGgtfx?  -    -    -   

c:yfO{ leGgtfdf :yug s/  37,740,869  12,780,007  24,960,862 

ut jif{sf]] jfFsL s/ 3f6fdf :yug s/  44,386,333  -    44,386,333 

s/sf] b/df kl/jt{gn] l;h{gf ePsf] :yug s/  -    -    -   

v'b :yug s/ ;DklQ÷-bfloTj_, cfiff9 @)&&  69,347,195 

:yug s/ -;DklQ_÷bfloTj, >fj0f ! @)&^  (130,669,035)

o; jif{ l;lh{t -36_÷a9  61,321,840 

gfkmf gf]S;fg vftf df b]vfOPsf] :yug s/ vr{÷-cfo_  58,989,614 

cGo lj:t[t cfDbfgLdf b]vfOPsf] :yug s/ vr{÷-cfo_  2,332,225 

OlSj6Ldf l;w} b]vfOPsf] :yug s/ vr{÷-cfo_  -   
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4.16 cGo ;DklQ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

ljqmLsf nflu /flvPsf] ;DklQ  -    -   

cGo u}}/ a}+lsË ;DklQx?  -    -   

e'QmfgL lng jfFsL ljN;  -    -   

p7\g jfFsL cf;fdL  89,437,235  112,752,513 

lng jfFsL cfDbfgL  4,670,492  4,109,029 

cu|Ld e'QmfgL tyf lgIf]k  23,647,279  27,750,204 

cfos/ hDdf  62,967,167  54,963,657 

:yug sd{rf/L vr{  989,396,391  891,209,556 

cGo  879,999,847  66,813,632 

    d;nGb df}Hbft  23,129,004  13,011,582 

    nfdf] labf afkbsf] clws of]hgf ;DklQ  49,948,479  41,260,323 

    cGo ;DklQ  806,247,905  12,541,728 

  zfvf ;dfof]hg  674,460  -   

hDdf  2,050,118,412  1,157,598,591 

4.17 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ ltg{ afFsL /sd ?= df

 cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

gubL jhf/af6 lgIf]k  -    -   

cGt/ a}+lsË ;fk6L  -    -   

cGo a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 lgIf]k  4,134,077,091  6,801,224,506 

/fkm;fkm vftf  -    -   

cGo  -    -   

hDdf  4,134,077,091  6,801,224,506 

4.18 g]kfn /fi6« a}+snfO{ ltg{ afFsL /sd ?= df

 cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 k|fKt k'gs{hf{  2,225,270,616  975,707,948 

:yfoL t/ntfsf] ;'ljwf  -    -   

g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 lender of last resort cGtu{t k|fKt ;'ljwf  -    -   

k'gM vl/b ;Demf}tfdf ljlqm ul/Psf lwtf]kqx?  -    -   

g]kfn /fi6« a}+snfO{ lbg' kg]{ cGo aSof}tf  -    -   

hDdf  2,225,270,616  975,707,948 

4.19 8]l/e]l6e ljQLo pks/0fx? /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

Jofkfl/s k|fof]hgsf nflu

  Jofhb/ :jfk  -    -   

  d'b|f :jfk  -    -   

  clu|d ljlgdo ;Demf}tf  1,500,835,676  1,134,467,139 

  cGo  -    -   

hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu

  Jofhb/ :jfk  -    -   

  d'b|f :jfk  -    -   

  clu|d ljlgdo ;Demf}tf  -    -   

  cGo  -    -   

hDdf  1,500,835,676  1,134,467,139 
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4.20 u|fxssf] lgIf]k /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;+:yfut u|fxs

  cfjlws lgIf]k  44,180,378,700  25,236,678,303 

  dfu lgIf]k  7,349,107,598  4,292,603,382 

  rfn' lgIf]k  6,663,987,877  5,734,772,137 

  cGo  586,344,401  487,437,300 

JolQmut u|fxs

  cfjlws lgIf]k  15,056,833,262  13,898,055,559 

  art lgIf]k  31,701,695,246  22,422,064,070 

  rfn' lgIf]k  1,022,777,088  675,622,220 

  cGo  106,028,419  68,593,925 

hDdf  106,667,152,590  72,815,826,896 

 
4.20.1 u|fxsaf6 k|fKt lgIf]ksf] d'b|f adf]lhd ljZn]if0f /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

g]kfnL ?k}+of  105,145,326,055  70,708,110,584 

ef/tLo ?k}Fof

cd]l/sg 8n/  1,521,786,965  2,107,677,764 

u|]6 lj|6]g kfpG8

o"/f]  39,570  38,548 

hfklgh o]g

rfOlgh o'cfg

cGo

hDdf  106,667,152,590  72,815,826,896 

4.22 Joj:yf /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

l/8G8]G;Lsf] nflu Joj:yf – –

k'gM ;+/rgfsf] lglDt Joj:yf – –

rln/x]sf] sfg'gL tyf s/ d'2fsf] lglDt Joj:yf – –

cf]g/; ;Demf}tfsf] lglDt Joj:yf – –

cGo – –

hDdf – –

4.21 ;fk6L /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

:jb]zL ;fk6L – –

  g]kfn ;/sf/ – –

  cGo ;+:yf – –

  cGo – –

  hDdf – –

ljb]zL ;fk6L – –

  ljb]zL a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf – – 

  ax'kIfLo ljsf; a}+sx? – –

  cGo ;+:yf – –

  hDdf – –

hDdf - -
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4.23 cGo bfloTj /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

kl/eflift sd{rf/L nfe of]hgf ;DjGwL bfloTj  136,112,456  86,774,536 

nfdf] ljbfsf] nflu Joj:yf  -    -   

cNksfnLg sd{rf/L nfe  -    -   

ltg{ jfFsL ljN;  48,495,222  18,906,641 

;fx' / lbg jfFsL  746,416,441  377,366,875 

lgIf]kdf ltg{ jfFsL Jofh  149,370,145  161,728,526 

;fk6Ldf ltg{ jfFsL Jofh  374,795  -   

:yug cg'bfg cfosf] bfloTj  -    -   

ltg{ jfFsL nfef+z  -    3,451,004 

ljQLo lnh cGtu{t bfloTj  47,003,753  34,830,035 

ltg{ jfFsL sd{rf/L jf]g;  213,336,271  186,068,610 

cGo  1,093,928,507  1,124,802,376 

    IPO/FPO lkmtf{ afFsL  -    205,140 

    :yflgo ;/sf/L vftf  1,093,928,507  1,124,426,764 

    zfvf ;dfof]hg  -    170,472 

hDdf  2,435,037,589  1,993,928,603 

$=@#=! kl/eflift nfe of]hgf -Defined Benefit Obligation_ ;DaGwL ljQLo cj:yfsf] ljj/0fdf b]vfOPsf /sdx? /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

u}/ sf]ifdf cfwfl/t bfloTjsf] cfhsf] d'No  -    -   

sf]ifdf cfwfl/t bfloTjsf] cfhsf] d'No  880,690,546  636,196,544 

s'n bfloTjsf] cfhsf] d'No  880,690,546  636,196,544 

of]hgf ;DklQsf] km]o/ d'No  794,526,569  590,682,331 

v'b bfloTjsf] cfhsf] d'No  86,163,977  45,514,213 

lg{lbi6 nfe bfloTjsf] n]vLs[t bfloTj  86,163,977  45,514,213 

4.23.2 of]hgf ;DklQ -Plan Assets_ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;fwf/0f z]o/
;/sf/L C0fkq

a}+s lgIf]k  794,526,569  590,682,331 
cGo

hDdf  794,526,569  590,682,331 

4.22.1 Joj:yfdf ePsf] 36a9 /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

>fj0f ! sf] df}Hbft – –

o; jif{df ul/Psf] Aoj:yf – –

o; jif{df k|of]u ul/Psf] Aoj:yf – –

o; jif{df lkmtf{ ul/Psf] Aoj:yf – –

;'ljwf lnOPsf] 5'6 – –

cfiff9 cGTosf] df}Hbft - -
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4.23.3 kl/eflift nfe of]hgf bfloTjsf] cfhsf] d"Nodf 36a9 /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

>fj0f ! sf] kl/eflift nfe of]hgf bfloTj  636,196,544  546,058,122 

ljdfl°s gf]S;fgL  130,660,528  (6,084,707)

of]hgfaf6 ltl/Psf] nfe  (6,719,337)  (9,564,717)

rfn' ;'ljwf vr{ / Jofh  120,552,811  105,787,846 

cfiff9 clGtdsf] nfe of]hgf bfloTj  880,690,546  636,196,544 

4.23.4 of]hgf ;DklQsf] km]o/ e]No'df 36a9 /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

>fj0f ! df of]hgf ;DklQsf] km]o/ e]No'  590,682,331  333,836,305 

of]hgfdf ul/Psf] of]ubfg  210,563,575  268,574,673 

of]hgfaf6 ltl/Psf] nfe  (6,719,337)  (9,564,717)

ljdfl°s gfkmf -gf]S;fg_

of]hgf ;DklQaf6 ck]lIft nfe

;dfof]hg  -    (2,163,930)

cfiff9 clGtdsf] of]hgf ;DklQsf] km]o/ e]No'  794,526,569  590,682,331 

4.23.5 gfkmf gf]S;fg ljj/0fdf b]vfOPsf] /sd /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

rfn' ;]jf vr{  65,445,913  58,552,145 

bfloTjdf Jofh  55,106,898  47,235,701 

bL3{sflng ;]jf ljbfdf ljdflª\ss -gfkmf_÷gf]S;fgL  21,503,649  (6,006,484)

of]hgf ;DklQaf6 ck]lIft nfe

hDdf  142,056,460  99,781,362 

4.23.6 cGo lj:t[t cfodf b]vfOPsf] /sd /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

ljdflª\ss -gfkmf_÷gf]S;fg  109,156,879  (78,223)

hDdf  109,156,879  (78,223)

4.23.7 ljdfl°s cg'dfgx? /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

5'6 b/ 9% 9%

of]hgf ;DklQaf6 ck]lIft nfe 0% 0%

eljiodf x'g] tnjdf j[l4 6% 6%

lkmtf{ b/ 9% 9%

4.24 hf/L ul/Psf] C0fkq /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss df dfkg ul/Psf] C0fkq  -    -   

kl/zf]lwt nfutdf dfkg ul/Psf] C0fkq  3,070,848,262  -   

hDdf  3,070,848,262  -   

4.25 ;'/If0f g/flvPsf] ;xfos cfjlws bfloTj

o; a}+ssf] s'g}klg ;'/If0f g/flvPsf] ;xfos cfjlws bfloTj 5}g .
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4.26 z]o/ k"FhL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;fwf/0f z]o/  10,314,516,680  9,353,916,945 

kl/jTo{ cu|flwsf/ z]o/  -    -   

e'QmfgL gx'g] cu|flwsf/ z]o/ -OlSj6L c+z dfq_  -    -   

k/k]r'cn C0f  -    -   

hDdf  10,314,516,680  9,353,916,945 

4.26.1 ;fwf/0f z]o/ /sd ?= df

 ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

clws[t k"+hL

!)%,))),))) ;fwf/0f ;]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)).)) n]  

-ut jif{ !)),))),))) ;fwf/0f ;]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)).)) n]_  10,500,000,000  10,000,000,000 

hf/L k"+hL   

!)#,!$%,!^^ ;fwf/0f ;]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)).)) n]

-ut jif{ (#,%#(,!^( ;fwf/0f ;]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)).)) n]_  10,314,516,680  9,353,916,945 

r'Qmf k"+hL   

!)#,!$%,!^^ ;fwf/0f ;]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)).)) n]

-ut jif{ (#,%#(,!^( ;fwf/0f ;]o/ k|lt z]o/ ?=!)).)) n]_  10,314,516,680  9,353,916,945 

hDdf  10,314,516,680  9,353,916,945 

4.26.2 ;fwf/0f z]o/ :jfldTj

 ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

k|ltzt /sd ?= k|ltzt /sd ?=

:jb]zL :jfldTj 100.00%  10,314,516,680 100.00%  9,353,916,945 

g]kfn ;/sf/

s ju{sf Ohfhtk|fKt ;+:yfx?

cGo Ohfhtk|fKt ;+:yfx?

cGo ;+:yfx? 18.96%  1,955,237,300 22.03%  2,060,482,300 

;j{;fwf/0f 81.04%  8,359,279,380 77.97%  7,293,434,645 

cGo

j}b]lzs :jfldTj 0.00%  -   0.00%  -   

hDdf 100.00%  10,314,516,680 100.00%  9,353,916,945 
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4.26.3    )=%)% eGbf a9L nufgL ePsf z]o/wgLsf] ljj/0f      

nufgLstf{sf] gfd
o; jif{ ut jif{

% xf]lN8Ë  /sd ?= % xf]lN8Ë  /sd ?=

1 >L l;l6hg OGe]i6d]G6 6«:6         3.90  402,238,600 4.33  404,877,900 

2 >L lgd{n k|wfg 3.87  398,734,700 0.40  37,201,200 

3 >L ;f+lu|nf OGe]i6d]G6 k|f=ln=  2.16  222,542,800 2.17  202,651,300 

4 >L Pg= la= u'|k -g]kfn_ k|f=ln= 1.98  204,138,900 2.10  196,463,200 

5 >L u'/fF; nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= 1.66  171,023,200 0.00  -   

6 >L cf]d k|;fb >]i7 1.37  141,210,100 1.37  127,787,100 

7 >L gf/fo0f k|;fb >]i7 1.36  140,002,600 1.35  126,662,900 

8 >L g]kfn ;]So'l/l6h P08 OGe]i6d]G6 k|f= ln= 1.28  131,960,100 2.13  199,162,200 

9 >L /fd k|;fb >]i7 1.21  124,330,000 1.72  160,834,500 

10 >L lj/]Gb| s'df/ ;fx 1.06  109,399,400 0.36  33,567,400 

11 >L rf6{8{ OGe]i6d]G6 k|f=ln= 1.05  108,240,000 1.05  98,159,500 

12 >L ?sd0fL k|wfg  1.05  108,222,900 0.89  83,305,100 

13 >L h]lgy OGe]i6d]G6 P08 ;]So'l/l6h k|f=ln= 1.00  102,816,400 1.32  123,641,000 

14 >L e]if /fh nf]xgL         0.97  100,266,700 0.97  90,928,800 

15 >L xl/eQm zdf{          0.91  93,475,500 0.90  83,743,400 

16 >L 8f= OGb| /fh x'dfufO{ 0.72  74,207,400 0.72  67,296,500 

17 >L lgZrn k|wfg 0.66  68,318,000 0.89  83,671,600 

18 >L g]kfn OG:of]/]G; sDkgL ln= 0.66  67,883,500 2.06  192,679,700 

19 >L zzL cu|jfn 0.64  66,080,500 0.00  -   

20 >L Pg=jL= OGe]i6d]G6 k|f=ln= 0.62  63,845,400 1.46  136,235,100 

21 >L bf]nvf led;]g OGe]i6d]G6 k|f=ln= 0.61  62,989,400 0.66  61,711,100 

22 >L zzLsfGt cu|jfn 0.58  60,331,800 0.58  54,713,300 

23 >L ljg' >]i7 0.54  55,484,000 0.31  28,994,400 

24 >L /fhwfgL OGe]i6d]G6 kmG8 ln=       0.00  235,400.00 0.68  63,162,400 

25 >L uf]ljGb k|;fb nf]xgL 0.00  -   0.66  62,105,500 

4.27  hu]8f sf]ifx? /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;fwf/0f hu]8f sf]if  2,143,935,491  1,877,810,440 

;6xL ;dLs/0f sf]if  6,709,198  6,709,198 

;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if  17,168,458  11,084,739 

k"FhL lkmtf{ hu]8f sf]if  -    -   

lgofds sf]if  1,030,784,270  859,312,776 

nufgL ;dfof]hg sf]if  -    -   

k"FhLut hu]8f sf]if  -    -   

;DklQ k"gd{"Nof°g sf]if  -    -   

km]o/ d'No sf]if  315,609,532  29,820,015 

nfef+z ;lds/0f sf]if  -    -   

ljdfl°s gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  (205,154,872)  (123,572,709)

ljz]if sf]if  -    -   

cGo sf]if  151,860,815  97,763,577 

hDdf  3,460,912,894  2,758,928,037 
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s= a}wflgs hu]8f sf]if

General  reserve  is  the  statutory  reserve.  In  this  reserve,  the  amount  transferred from appropriation of 20% of the 
net profit after tax  according to the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 shall be included until the reserve fund is 
twice the paid-up share capital. No type of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be distributed from the amount in general/
statutory reserve. The movement in general reserve during the year is as follows:

Opening Balance  1,877,810,440 

Transfer as per BAFIA  266,125,051 

Closing Balance  2,143,935,491 

v= ;6xL ;lds/0f sf]if

Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. The Bank has to allocate 25 percent of  foreign exchange revaluation 
gain on foreign currency other than India currency to this reserve as per provision of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 
2073. Any amount allocated to exchange equalization reserve as per the provision of the Bank and Financial Institutions 
Act, 2073 shall be presented under this heading, the movement of which is as follows:

Opening Balance  6,709,198 

Transfer as per BAFIA  -   

Closing Balance  6,709,198 

u= ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if

As per NRB direction, the fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of the net profit 
each year is presented under this account head. Movement in the fund is as follows:

Opening Balance  11,084,739 

Addition during the year  13,306,253 

(Expenses during the year)  (7,222,533) (1,959,926)

Closing Balance  17,168,458 

3= k"+hL lkmtf{ hu]8f sf]if

There is no any balance both opening and closing, and no any allocation during the year in this reserve.

ª= nufgL ;dfof]hg sf]if

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in Bank's investments as directed by the 
Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank, the movement of which is as follows:

Opening Balance  -   

Transfer as per directive  -   

Closing Balance  -   

r= k"+hLut hu]8f sf]if

Capital reserve arising out of merger is presented under this head. There is no any movement during the year in this 
reserve.

5= ;DklQ k'gd'{Nofª\sg sf]if 

Theres is no any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as property & equipment, intangible assets, investment 
property).
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h= km]o/ d"No sf]if 

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that  are  measured  at  fair  
value  and  the  changes  in  fair  value  is  recognized  in  other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognised. 
The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets is presented under this account head. Changes 
in this reserve is as follows:

Opening Balance  29,820,015 

Addition/(Reduction)  285,789,517 

Closing Balance  315,609,532    -   

em= nfef+z ;lds/0f sf]if

For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of profit during the year of profit making may 
be transferred is presented under this account head. No such fund has been maintained by the Bank.

`= ljdflª\ss gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_ sf]if

Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee obligations is presented 
under this account head.Changes in this reserve is as follows:

Opening Balance  (123,572,709)

Adjustment  (5,172,347)

Addition/(Reduction)  (76,409,815)

Closing Balance  (205,154,872)

6= ljz]if sf]if 

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special instruction of NRB  represent 
special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by debiting retained earning account is presented under this heading.
There is no any balance and allocation in this reserve.

7= cGo sf]if

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) is presented under this head. Details of 
this reserve is as follows:

Particulars Employee  Capacity 
Development Fund

Capital 
Adjustment Fund Total

Opening Balance  12,037,127  85,726,450  97,763,577 
Transfer from fund  -    -    -   
Transfer to fund  -    54,097,238  54,097,238 
Closing Balance  12,037,127  139,823,687  151,860,815 

- Capital Adjustment Fund
The Bank has transferred Rs. 54,097,238 to the Capital Adjustment Fund during the year as per Nepal Rastra Bank's 
interest capitalization approval.

- Employee Capacity Development Fund
As per clause NRB Unified Directive 2077; 3% of employee expenses of previous year is not required to be expended 
towards employee training and development in case of financial year 2077/78. Hence, no amount has been appropriated to 
the Employee Capacity Development Fund.
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4.28 ;+efljt bfloTj tyf k|ltj4tf /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;+Defljt bfloTj  35,795,358,908  28,609,229,815 

ljt/0f gul/Psf] ;'ljwfx?  10,192,174,149  9,884,245,377 

k"FhL k|ltj4tf  -    -   

lnh k||ltj4tf  894,973,152  896,579,184 

d'2f dfldnf  108,087,649  82,739,123 

hDdf  46,990,593,858  39,472,793,499 

4.28.1 ;+efljt bfloTj /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

:jLsfo{ / 8s'd]lG6« qm]l86  4,890,557,974  3,595,311,460 

sn]S;gdf /x]sf ljnx?  19,171,573  7,969,376 

clu|d ljlgdo ;Demf}tf  5,356,510,178  4,140,717,139 

a}+s hdfgt  24,497,123,304  20,644,581,079 

k|Tofe"lt k|ltj4tf  -    -   

cGo k|ltj4tf  1,031,995,879  220,650,762 

hDdf  35,795,358,908  28,609,229,815 

4.28.2 pkof]u÷ljt/0f gul/Psf] ;'ljwfx? /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

ljt/0f gul/Psf] shf{  5,626,413,138  6,008,811,403 

cf]e/8«fkm\6sf] pkof]u gul/Psf] ;Ldf  4,565,761,011  3,875,433,974 

qm]l86 sf8{sf] pkof]u gul/Psf] ;Ldf

k|lttkqsf] pkof]u gul/Psf] ;Ldf

a}+s hdfgtsf] pkof]u gul/Psf] ;Ldf

hDdf  10,192,174,149  9,884,245,377 

4.28.3 k"FhL k|ltj4tf /sd ?= df

a}+ssf] ;DalGwt clVtof/k|fksaf6 :jLs[t ul/Psf] t/ ljQLo ljj/0fdf Joj:yf gul/Psf] k"FhLut vr{ .

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;DklQ / pks/0fsf] nflu k"FhL k|ltj4tf  -   -  

l:js[t / ;Demf}tf ul/Psf]  -   -  

l:js[t / ;Demf}tf gul/Psf]  -   -  

hDdf  -    -  

cd't{ ;DklQsf] nflu k"FhL k|ltj4tf  -  - 

l:js[t / ;Demf}tf ul/Psf]  -  - 

l:js[t / ;Demf}tf gul/Psf]  -    -  

hDdf  -    -  
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4.28.4 lnh k|ltj4tf /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  cfiff9 d;fGt @)&* cfiff9 d;fGt @)&&

;+rflnt lnh k|ltj4tf

a}+s lnhL ePsf] v08df /2 ug{ g;lsg] lnh ;Demf}tfsf] 36Ldf eljiodf ltg'{ kg]{ /sd

Ps jif{ ggf3]sf]  148,038,194  129,217,961 

Ps jif{ eGbf a9L t/ % jif{ eGbf sd  609,818,130  463,335,135 

% jif{ dflysf]  137,116,828  304,026,089 

hDdf  894,973,152  893,624,847 

ljQ lnh k|ltj4tf

a}+s lnhL ePsf] v08df /2 ug{ g;lsg] lnh ;Demf}tfsf] 36Ldf eljiodf ltg'{ kg]{ /sd

Ps jif{ ggf3]sf] 

Ps jif{ eGbf a9L t/ % jif{ eGbf sd

% jif{ dflysf] 

hDdf

s'n hDdf  894,973,152  893,624,847

4.28.5 d'2f dfldnf

4.29 Jofh cfDbfgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

gub tyf gub ;dfg  -    -   

g]kfn /fi6« a}+sdf /x]sf] df}Hbft  1,847,233  -   

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:Yffdf /x]sf] df}Hbft  41,940,357  57,948,351 

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:YffnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  160,644,536  235,420,782 

u|fxsnfO{ lbOPsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  7,704,067,674  7,722,780,634 

lwtf]kqdf nufgL  407,615,616  340,020,673 

sd{rf/LnfO{ k|bfg ul/Psf] shf{ tyf ;fk6L  245,326,387  86,200,651 

cGo  14,215,898  14,570,849 

hDdf  8,575,657,701  8,456,941,940 

4.30 Jofh vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:Yffsf] ltg{ afFsL  90,729,300  429,767,353 

g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] ltg{ afFsL  26,085,104  30,004,579 

u|fxsaf6 lgIf]k  5,232,785,711  4,787,620,998 

C0f ;fk6L  -    -   

hf/L ul/Psf] lwtf]kq  75,797,255  -   

;'/If0f gul/Psf] ;xfos cfjlws bfloTj  -    -   

cGo  374,795  -   

hDdf  5,425,772,165  5,247,392,930 

1.	 The Bank has pending tax cases under Inland Revenue Department(IRD)/Revenue Tribunal / Supreme Court relating to tax assessment 
(including VAT, fine, interest) made by Large Taxpayer Office (LTO) of different Income Years amounting to Rs.108,087,649 ( PY : 
Rs.82,739,123 )											         

			 
2.	 The Bank has various cases pending in various courts and tribunal relating to debt recovery from the borrowers.		
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4.31  z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

shf{ Joj:yfkg z'Ns  184,214,149  132,918,064 

;]jf z'Ns  148,600,320  147,960,064 

sG;f]{l6{od z'Ns  -    -   

k|ltj4tf z'Ns  1,006,651  4,056,657 

l8l8÷l6l6÷l:jkm\6 z'Ns  11,352,908  8,732,190 

qm]l86 sf8{ ÷P6LPd hf/L / gljs/0f z'Ns  35,640,583  27,132,189 

k"j{ e'QmfgL tyf :jfk z'Ns  7,877,215  3,068,666 

nufgL a}+lsË z'Ns  -    -   

;DklQ Joj:yfkg z'Ns  -    -   

a|f]s/]h z'Ns  9,640,302  19,917,508 

ljk|]if0f z'Ns  16,439,096  17,863,254 

k|lttkqdf sldzg  46,983,160  32,891,198 

hdfgtdf sldzg  215,899,436  192,672,735 

z]o/ k|Tofe"lt÷hf/Laf6 sldzg  -    -   

ns/ ef8f  2,070,250  1,954,050 

cGo z'Ns tyf sldzg cfDbfgL  2,690,018  3,120,329 

hDdf  682,414,085  592,286,905 

4.32  z'Ns tyf sldzg vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

P6LPd Joj:yfkg z'Ns  1,964,088  2,192,169 

lehf÷df:6/ sf8{ z'Ns  16,209,399  12,466,690 

k|ltj4tf sldzg  -    -   

a|f]s/]h vr{  -    -   

l8l8÷l6l6÷l:jkm\6 z'Ns  5,783,893  5,914,401 

ljk|]if0f z'Ns / sldzg  -    -   

cGo z'Ns tyf sldzg vr{  6,360,169  3,410,877 

hDdf  30,317,548  23,984,136 

4.33  v'b Jofkfl/s cfDbfgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

Jofkfl/s ;DklQsf] km]o/ d'Nodf 36a9  -    -   

Jofkfl/s ;DklQsf] ljqmLdf ePsf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  -    -   

Jofkfl/s ;DklQdf Jofh cfDbfgL  -    -   

Jofkfl/s ;DklQdf nfef+z cfDbfgL  -    -   

ljb]zL ;6xL sf/]fjf/df gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  241,018,562  184,761,404 

cGo  -    -   

hDdf  241,018,562  184,761,404 
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4.34 cGo ;+rfng cfDbfgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

ljb]zL ljlgdosf] k'gd"{Nof°g cfDbfgL÷-gf]S;fg_  (36,892)  3,767,460 

lwtf]kq ljqmLaf6 gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  101,620,011  2,315,016 

nufgL ;DklQsf] km]o/ d'Nodf x'g] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  -    -   

OlSj6L pks/0fdf nfef+z  10,188,162  8,208,669 

;DklQ / pks/0fsf] ljqmLdf x'g] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  245,221,303  (21,362)

nufgL ;DklQsf] ljqmLdf x'g] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  11,453,367  383,010 

;+rflnt lnh cfo  -    -   

;'g / rfFbLsf] ljqmLdf x'g] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  1,975,165  -   

cGo  66,862,892  56,327,396 

hDdf  437,284,008  70,980,189 

4.35 shf{ hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_ tyf cGo gf]S;fgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

a}++s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ lbg] shf{ tyf ;fk6Ldf x'g] hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_  18,996,888  6,170,959 

u|fxsnfO{ lbg] shf{ tyf ;fk6Ldf x'g] hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_  292,446,112  399,831,732 

ljQLo nufgLdf x'g] hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_  1,908,306  (383,988)

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] df}Hbftdf x'g] hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_  -    -   

;DklQ / pks/0fdf x'g] hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_  -    -   

VoftL / cd't{ ;DklQdf hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_  -    -   

nufgL ;DklQdf hf]lvd Joj:yf÷-lkmtf{_  -    -   

hDdf  313,351,306  405,618,703 

4.36 sd{rf/L vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

tnj  519,713,786  455,900,945 

eQf  282,794,802  277,018,419 

pkbfg  84,213,717  74,087,066 

;+ro sf]if  48,884,123  41,679,871 

kf]zfs  -    11,250,342 

tflnd tyf ljsf; vr{  1,526,722  12,363,339 

ljbf jfkbsf] /sd  57,842,743  25,694,296 

cf}ifwf]krf/  64,492,943  53,969,365 

jLdf  12,863,238  12,632,945 

sd{rf/L k|f]T;fxg  -    -   

gubdf /fkm;fkm x'g] z]o/df cfwfl/t vr{  -    -   

k]G;g vr{  -    -   

NFRS cGtu{t ljQLo vr{  196,782,974  42,716,036 

sd{rf/L;+u ;DjlGwt cGo vr{x?  72,616,134  56,380,025 

hDdf  1,341,731,181  1,063,692,648 

sd{rf/L jf]g;  213,336,271  186,068,610 

s'n hDdf  1,555,067,452  1,249,761,258 

sd{rf/L af]g;sf] nflu cfos/ / af]g; cl3sf] gfkmfsf] !)Ü Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 .  
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4.37  cGo ;+rfng vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

;+rfnssf] j}7s eQf  7,502,000  3,753,000 

;+rfnssf] cGo vr{  4,187,501  7,194,407 

n]vfk/LIf0f z'Ns  1,695,000  1,695,000 

n]vfk/LIf0f ;DjGwL cGo vr{x?  -    -   

Joj;flos / sfg'gL vr{  4,206,233  7,600,126 

sfof{no Joj:yfkg vr{  293,226,523  304,408,909 

;+rfng lnh vr{  158,919,435  153,513,585 

nufgL ;DklQsf] ;+rflnt vr{  -    -   

;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj vr{  -    10,000,000 

cf]g/; lnh Joj:yf  -    -   

cGo  85,349,568  79,238,874 

hDdf  555,086,259  567,403,901 

4.37.1  sfof{no Joj:yfkg vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

aQL tyf kfgL  28,210,281  26,950,173 

dd{t tyf ;+ef/  23,209,210  22,767,246 

  -s_ ejg  63,001  1,095,680 

  -v_ ;jf/L ;fwg  4,996,373  4,671,690 

  -u_ sDKo"6/ pks/0f  422,860  178,006 

  -3_ sfof{no pks/0f tyf kmlg{r/  14,067,960  14,511,646 

  -ª_ cGo  3,659,016  2,310,223.6 

jLdf  10,847,811  11,036,573 

kf]i6]h, 6]n]S;, 6]lnkm]fg, km\ofS;  11,923,732  13,442,821 

d;nGb / 5kfO  23,494,692  18,312,283 

kqklqsf tyf k":ts  176,310  642,049 

lj1fkg  7,709,655  12,626,311 

rGbf  -    -   

;'/Iff vr{  103,293,849  113,876,069 

shf{ tyf lgIf]k ;'/If0f vr{  24,226,947  20,919,281 

e|d0f eQf / vr{  3,716,320  6,712,445 

dgf]/~hg vr{  208,385  639,080 

jflif{s÷ljz]if ;fw/0f ;ef vr{  2,718,621  7,156,909 

cGo  53,490,709  49,327,668 

  -s_ cGo – OG6/g]6 tyf ;~rf/ vr{  40,657,930  36,036,271 

  -v_ O{Gwg  12,832,779  13,291,397 

hDdf  293,226,523  304,408,909 

4.38 Ãf; s6\6L / kl/iff]wg vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

;DklQ tyf pks/0fdf Ãf; s6\6L  133,005,689  134,339,497 

nufgL ;DklQdf Ãf; s6\6L  -    -   

cd't{ ;DklQsf] kl/iff]]wg  3,747,499  3,352,522 

hDdf  136,753,188  137,692,019 



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷)&*

83

4.39 u}/ ;+rfng cfDbfgL /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

ckn]vg ul/Psf] shf{sf] c;'nL  -    1,500,000 

cGo cfDbfgL  -    -   

hDdf  -    1,500,000 

4.40 u}/ ;+rfng vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

shf{ ckn]vg - -

l/8G8]G;Lsf] nfuL Joj:yf - -

k"gM;+/rgf vr{ - -

cGo vr{ - -

hDdf - -

4.41 cfos/ vr{ /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

rfn' s/ vr{

o; cf=j=  551,584,670  496,919,633 

kl5Nnf] cf=j=x?sf] ;dfof]hg  5,690,618  10,234,338 

:yug s/ vr{

cNksflng leGgtfx?sf] n]vfª\sg  32,125,897  58,989,614 

s/ b/df kl/jt{g  -    -   

klxn] n]vfª\sg gul/Psf] s/ 3f6f  -    -   

hDdf  589,401,185  566,143,585 

$=$!=! s/ vr{ / n]vf°g gfkmfsf] ldnfg /sd ?= df

ljj/0f  o; jif{ ut jif{

s/ cl3sf] gfkmf  1,920,026,438  1,674,617,491 

s/ -#) k|ltzt b/n]_  576,007,932  502,385,247 

hf]8\g] Ms/ k|of]hgsf] lglDt 36fpg gldNg] vr{x?sf] s/df kg]{ c;/  261,835,460  250,791,868 

36fpg] M s/ 5'6sf] cfodf s/sf] c;/  (286,258,722)  (256,257,482)

hf]8\g]÷36fpg] M cGo a:t'x?sf] s/df c;/  37,816,515  69,223,952 

hDdf s/ vr{  589,401,185  566,143,585 

k|efjsf/L s/ b/ 30.70% 33.81%
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ljj/0f   o; jif{ ut jif{

;'?sf] ;dfof]lht ;+lrt gfkmf  38,060,655  188,807,487 

yk

gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fj ljj/0f cg';f/sf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  1,330,625,253  1,108,473,906 

afF8kmfF8

s= ;fwf/0f hu]8f sf]if  (266,125,051)  (221,694,781)

v= ;6xL 36a9 sf]if  -    (941,865)

u= k"FhL r'Qmf sf]if  -    -   

3= ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if  (13,306,253)  (11,084,739)

ª= sd{rf/L tflnd sf]if  -    -   

r= nufgL ;dfof]hg sf]if  -    34,500,000 

5= k"FhL ;dfof]hg sf]if  (54,097,238)  (72,833,996)

h= cGo  -    10,000,000 

lgofds ;dfof]hg cl3sf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  997,096,712  846,418,525 

lgofds ;dfof]hg

s= Jofh jSof}tf÷cl3Nnf] Jofh jSof}tf k|flKt  (123,179,105)  (6,821,836)

v= C0f gf]S;fg Joj:yfdf 36j9  -    -   

u= nufgLdf 3f6fsf] nflu Joj:yfsf] 36j9  -    -   

3= u}/ j}+lsË ;DklQsf] Joj:yfsf] 36j9  33,910,940  (41,623,156)

ª= :yug s/ ;DklQ 36j9  (621,167)  61,321,840 

r= Voflt 36j9  -    -   

5= df]ntf]n vl/bdf gfkmfsf] 36j9  -    -   

h= ljdf°L 3f6fsf] 36j9  (76,409,815)  54,756 

em= km]o/ d'Nosf] 3f6fsf] 36j9  -    -   

ljt/0f of]Uo gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  868,858,220  1,048,157,616 

ljt/0f of]Uo gfkmf÷gf]S;fgsf] ljj/0f
cfiff9 d;fGt @)&*

-g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgod jdf]lhd_
/sd ?= df
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5. Disclosures & Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management
Risk Management Function in NCC Bank has been established to ensure that all material risks, the possibility that 
an event, will occur and adversely affect the achievement of objectives, are identified measured and managed at a 
reasonable level. The main objective is to achieve proper balance between risk and return based on assessment 
of potential risk factors in both normal and stressed conditions. Banking activities deal with different sort of 
risk management to a large extent they are: credit risk; market risk; operational risk; liquidity risk; compliance 
risk and others. Board-level Risk Management Committee oversees the risk management function of the Bank 
and regularly monitors stress testing and sufficiency of policies, procedures, guidelines. The Committee further 
instructs management to take proactive measure to minimize risks time to time.

To manage credit risk, separate Credit Risk Management Department has been established. Risk Officers are 
deputed to look into credit risk. All Credit files exceeding prescribed Credit Approval Discretion (CAD) limit routes 
through Credit Risk Management Department and those exceeding prescribed limit through Chief Risk Officer. 
Similarly, Collection and Recovery Department has been established to manage non-performing loan of the Bank.

Management level Risk management Sub-Committee has been established to assess, discuss and minimize 
various risk associated with banking activities. Various areas such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, 
operation risk are discussed in the meeting and subsequently the findings and deliberations are placed in the 
Board level Risk management Committee for further advice / instruction.

Credit Risk
Credit Risk (Counterparty Risk) is the chances for loss due to failure of borrower to meet its contractual obligation 
to repay debt in accordance with the agreed covenants and terms. NCC Bank has given the highest focus on 
effective credit risk management. Creation of credit (loans and advances), being the risk asset of the Bank, has 
been guided by the basic ethical business principles, risk mitigation practices, prudential banking norms and 
other regulatory compliances to ensure the health of the assets and sustainable growth of the Bank. The Bank 
has established a separate Credit Risk Management Department for analyzing/identifying inherent risk in credit. 
This department has been entrusted to review all credit proposals .This is an independent unit empowered to 
assess risk in business, suggesting ways of mitigating the risks thereby creating a good loan portfolio. Such 
risks are considered warranted when they are understandable, measurable, controllable, and within the Bank's 
capacity to readily bear adverse results. Effective credit risk management requires effective credit assessment. 
The Bank has adequate qualified credit risk officers to maintain the quality credit portfolio. The Bank has set the 
overall credit risk policy to establish sound risk environment, operating under a sound granting/lending process, 
maintain an appropriate credit administration/monitoring process, ensuring adequate controls over credit risk etc. 
for maintaining the good credit portfolio of the Bank. Following are adopted to identify and mitigate credit risk:

The credit proposals are assessed through a comprehensive credit evaluation process upon adopting the credit 
policies and practices of the Bank   prior to the approval. Credit proposals are routed through the Credit Risk 
Management Department which reviews the accuracy of classification of borrowers classified by branches 
according to risk grade to reflect the default risk.

The performance of credit is affected by a large number of factors which are always carefully analyzed. In 
addition, additional securities like fixed assets collateral and personal/corporate/third party guarantee are also 
taken into consideration in the analysis of probability of default.

The Credit Risk Management Department identifies various risks associated with the credit proposals forwarded 
by the relationship managers that are duly addressed along with suggestion of mitigates prior to forwarding the 
credit for approval at various stages based on the credit limits proposed.

Approved credit facilities are then forwarded to the Centralized Credit Operation Department for post approval 
related functions like verification of security documents amongst others after which the limits are implemented in 
the system.The Bank has the policy of periodic review of disbursed credit facilities where the change in risk levels 
is determined through periodic review and monitoring.

The Bank is vigilant on identification of early warning signals in financial difficulties of the borrowers; proactive 
actions are initiated by the management to mitigate the risk of loss.
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Regular monitoring by way of on-site inspection of the borrowers business is conducted on the basis of periodic 
information provided by the borrower. Past performance of the borrower as well as regularity in repayment of 
interest/principal obligations are also timely analyzed.

The Bank has the practice of periodic review of portfolio to track changes and quality of loan portfolio. Performance 
of business and quality of security are evaluated to avoid any negative downturn in the value of the properties. The 
lending decisions are made based on the credit portfolio to single obligor, product and segment wise exposure.

Credit Risk Grade of branches is calculated on monthly basis in accordance with “Framework for implementation 
of Branch Credit Risk Scoring Model” and quarterly credit risk report is prepared by Credit Risk Management 
Department and presented on Risk Management sub Committee.

Market risk
Market risk is the potential loss due to changes in market prices or values. Market risk basically arises on 
interest rates changes, stock market, currency market and commodity market. Key components of market risk 
are interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk. Market risk governance structure in the Bank entails Asset 
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and Board level Risk Management Committee. ALCO meeting discuss 
the issues related with market risk and the risk identification and assessment finding shall be put further on Board 
level risk management committee.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is a situation arising from where short-term assets values are not sufficient to match short-term 
liabilities or unexpected cash outflows. The Bank as per the approved guidelines from the Board has been 
maintaining a comfortable liquid asset to deposit ratio. This is monitored daily. The investments for liquid assets, 
asides from cash and Bank balances largely comprise of government securities: treasury bills and bonds. A 
large government securities portfolio is easily convertible into cash level funds during times of liquidity tightness. 
Regular stress tests have also help assess different scenarios of stresses on liquidity. ALCO is able to use this 
information as well as other analyses such as GAP to manage liquidity effectively for the Bank.

Assets and Liability Committee (ALCO)
The ALCO, chaired by Chief Executive Officer, ensures functioning of the banking business in line with the set 
procedures and processes and recommends for necessary steps to address the risk associated with liquidity, 
movement in interest rate, exchange rate and equity price and other risks.

Stress Testing
Stress testing is a valuable risk management tool which tries to quantify the size of potential losses under certain 
stress events. A stress event is an exceptional but plausible event to which the Bank's portfolio is exposed. As a 
part of its risk measurement mechanism, NCC Bank Ltd. puts an emphasis on evaluating where the Bank stands 
under the stressful market condition.

In conducting stress tests, the Bank give special consideration to instruments or markets where concentration 
exist as such position may be more difficult to liquidate or offset in stressful situations. The Bank considers both 
historical market events as well as forward-looking scenarios and also considers worst case scenarios in addition 
to more probable event. The Bank conducts the stress test on quarterly basis and reports to senior management 
as well as to Nepal Rastra Bank.

Stress Test alerts management to be aware on adverse situation related to several risks and provides an indication 
of how much capital needed to absorb losses and liquidity required during the adverse situation. It is used to 
evaluate the potential impact on a Bank of specific event and movement is a set of financial variables and its 
applicants are expanding.

Internal Audit:
Internal Audit of the Bank is independent from the management and directly reports to Audit Committee, a 
Board level committee. Audit functions are carried out by experienced staffs and regular observation are being 
communicated to the related departments/braches.

Internal Audit provides value to the organization in providing objective assurance that the major business risks are 
being managed appropriately and providing assurance that the risk management and internal control framework 
is operating effectively.
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5.2 Capital Management
The Bank's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is 
adequately capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. NCC Bank Ltd. is a licensed 
institution provides financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures
Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Banks to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to manage 
all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as 
strategies for maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient 
process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. 
The Bank has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance. The Bank has developed 
a comprehensive ICAAP document which is subject to review every year. The ICAAP has two major components; 
first is an internal process to identify measure, manage and report risks to which the bank is exposed or could 
be exposed in the future; and second is an internal process to plan and manage a bank’s capital so as to ensure 
adequate capital. The Bank prepares the ICAAP report annually complying with the NRB requirement. The report 
is reviewed and analyzed by Risk Management Committee and Board. The report is prepared as per BASEL III 
norms considering various adverse scenarios.  The Bank also conducts the stress testing on different unfavorable 
scenarios on quarterly basis and is reviewed by senior management, Risk Management Committee and Board.  
The Bank in line with BASEL provisions and ICAAP document assesses risk exposures and allocated sufficient 
capital/cushion for perceived risks. The adequacy of capital is main agenda of any ALCO, Executive Committee 
and board meetings.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures

1. Capital structure and capital adequacy

Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its Components:

Particulars Rs in Million
 Paid up Equity Share Capital  10,314.52 
 Equity Share Premium   -   
 Proposed Bonus Equity Shares   -   
 Statutory General Reserves     2,143.94 
 Retained Earnings   868.86 
 Unaudited current year cumulative profit/(loss)   -   
 Capital Redemption Reserve     -   
 Capital Adjustment Reserve  139.82 
 Dividend Equalization Reserves   -   
 Other Free Reserve   -   
 Less: Goodwill   -   
 Less: Intangible Assets  14.48 
 Less: Deferred Tax Assets  -   
 Less: Fictitious Assets  -   
 Less: Investment  in equity in licensed Financial Institutions      -   
 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests         -   
 Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits         10.28 
 Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments   -   
 Less: Reciprocal crossholdings    -   
 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized  -   
 Less: Cash Flow Hedge  -   
 Less: Defined Benefits Pension Assets  -   
 Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities  -   
 Less: Other Deductions   -   
Less: Shortfall in Provision  -   
Less: Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending  9.00 
Total Tier 1 Capital  13,433.37 
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Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its Components:

Particulars Rs in Million
Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share   -   
Subordinated Term Debt  3,000.0 
 Hybrid Capital Instruments     -   
Stock Premium  -   
 General Loan Loss Provision  1,423.3 
 Exchange Equalization Reserve   6.7 
 Investment Adjustment Reserve   -   
 Assets Revaluation Reserve  -   
 Other Reserves   -   
Total Tier 2 Capital  4,430.06 

Deductions from Capital:

Particulars Rs in Million
Intangible assets 14.48
Loan to promoters/promoters' financially interest companies                          9.00 
Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits                              10.28 
Deferred Tax Assets                              -   
Total                       33.76 

Total Qualifying Capital:

Particulars Rs in Million
Tier 1 Capital               13,433.37 
Tier 2 Capital                  4,430.06 
Total Capital               17,863.43 

Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Particulars %
Tier I Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures Adjusted 10.34%
Tier I and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures Adjusted 13.75%

Summary of the Bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and 
future activities, if applicable:

NCC Bank Ltd. adopts healthy risk management framework. The bank follows Internal Capital Adequacy 
Assessment Process (ICAAP) and Risk Management Guideline while taking decision on any business. It has 
always taken note of ICAAP and has taken steps accordingly in ensuring soundness of capital position and 
sustainability of the business. The Bank’s policies and procedures are approved by the Board of Directors and 
these documents provide guidance on independent identification, measurement and management of risks across 
various businesses. Bank’s different committees like Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee review the 
business and risks periodically and take account of stress test results, scenario analysis so as to align risk, return 
and capital in sustainable manner.

The Bank also defines risk aspects, considering domestic economic scenario, and puts in place the system 
to minimize and remove such risk. The risk appetite and approach towards risk taking is well discussed in 
management level and board level. It is always aligned with the business, its return and capital. Basel disclosures 
have been complied with, addressing the risks and adopting measures to minimize their impact. Increasing 
complexities in risks, weakness of businesses and fast changing world with intense competition pose a threat to 
sustainability.

Capital planning is an integral part of the bank’s medium term strategic planning and annual budget formulation 
process. Total risk weighted exposures for the projected level of business operations is calculated, the required 
capital level is projected, and a plan is formulated to retain the required capital. The bank is well capitalized and 
able to maintain the required capital through internal generation, and equally through capital markets if needed.
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Summary of terms, conditions and main feature of all capital instruments, especially in case of 
subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instrument:

The Bank has issued 9.5% NCC Debenture, 2086 amounting to NPR 3 Billion, the main features of which are as 
follows: 

S.N. Particular Details
1 Name of Debenture 9.5% NCC Rinpatra 2086
2 Issue size NPR 3 Billion
3 Interest Rate 9.5% p.a.
4 Interest Payable Semiannually
5 No. of Units Issued 3 Million Units
6 Face Value NPR 1,000 per unit
7 Maturity Period 10 Years
8 Maturity Date 8th April, 2031
9 Amount Eligible for Tier 2 Capital Fund NPR 3 Billion

2 Risk exposures

Risk weighted Exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk:

Particulars NPR in Million
 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk              119,820.80 
 Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk                  4,976.85 
 Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk                      200.03 
 Total             124,997.69 

Risk weighted exposure under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk:

Particulars NPR in Million
  Claims on government & central bank                               -   
  Claims on other official entities                               -   
  Claims on banks                    1,750.72 
  Claims on corporate & securities firms                64,995.40 
  Claims on regulatory retail portfolio                                -   
  Claims secured by residential properties                 15,316.57 
  Claims secured by commercial real state                   1,828.87 
  Past due claims                       667.21 
  High risk claims                    8,619.62 
  Other assets                    4,699.80 
  Off balance sheet items                21,942.60 
 Total             119,820.80 

Total Risk weighted Exposures Calculation Table:

Particulars NPR in Million
 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk              119,820.80 
 Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk                  4,976.85 
 Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk                      200.03 
 Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of gross income.                  1,193.52 
 Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 3% of RWE                  3,749.93 
 Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments)             129,941.13 
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Amount of Non -Performing Assets (Gross and Net):				  

NPR in Million
  Category     Gross Provision Net
  Restructure/Reschedule - - -
  Substandard  148 37 111
  Doubtful  67 33 33
  Loss  1,544 1,544 0
  Total 1,759 1,614 145

NPA Ratios Percentage
 Gross NPA to Gross Advances 1.76%
 Net NPA to Net Advances 0.15%

	

Movement of NPA:									         NPR in Million

Particulars Last Year This Year Increase/     
(Decrease )

 Restructure/Reschedule - - -
 Substandard 30 148 119
 Doubtful 270 67 (203)
 Loss 1,687 1,544 (143)
 Total 1,987 1,759 (227)

Write Off of Loans and Interest Suspense:

Particular NPR in Million
 Loans Written Off -
 Interest written Off -
 Total -

Movement in Loan Loss Provision and Interest Suspense

Particular Last Year This Year Increase/ 
(Decrease )

 Loan Loss Provision 2,795 3,106 311
 Interest Suspense 2,372 2,773 401

Segregation of Investment Portfolio:

Particular NPR in Million
 Held for trading                              -   
 Held to maturity                     13,189 
 Available for Sale                           697 
 Total                     13,886 
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Types of Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants used:

Particular NPR in Million
 Deposit with Own Bank                  1,020.37 
 Deposit with other Banks/Financial Institutions                              -   
 Gold                       61.88 
 Securities of Government and NRB                              -   
 Securities/Guarantee of Foreign Bank                              -   
 TOTAL                  1,082.25 

5.2.3 Compliance with external requirement

The Bank, at all times, has complied the externally imposed capital requirements. In the capital adequacy 
calculation of 15th July 2021 (presented above), the bank has added  RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital 
charge of 3% of gross income and 3% of total risk weighted exposures to its risk weighted exposures as per the 
direction from Nepal Rastra Bank as a part of supervisory review.

5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Analysis of financial instruments by measurement basis- as at Mid July 2021
Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The summary 
of significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how 
income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized. The following table analyses the 
carrying amounts of the financial instruments by category as defined in NAS 39 and by headings of the Statement 
of Financial Position.

 Ashad end 2078 
 Amount in NPR 

Particulars  Fair Vaule 
through PL  Amortized Cost  Measured at 

FVTOCI  Total 

Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents  6,928,200,217  6,928,200,217 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  8,491,306,936  8,491,306,936 
Placement with Bank and Financial 
Institutions  1,609,875,000  1,609,875,000 

Derivative Financial Assets  1,506,029,824  1,506,029,824 
Loan and Advances to B/FIs  3,735,160,732  3,735,160,732 
Loans & Advances to Customers  94,582,167,688  94,582,167,688 
Financial Investments - Measured at 
Fair Value through PL  -   

Financial Investments - Measured at 
Fair Value through OCI  697,256,915  697,256,915 

Financial Invstments - Measured at 
Amoritized cost  13,188,569,348  13,188,569,348 

Other Financial Assets  -   
Total Financial Assets  1,506,029,824  128,535,279,921  697,256,915 130,738,566,661 
Financial Liabilities
Due from Customers  106,667,152,590  106,667,152,590 
Other Financial Liabilities  1,500,835,676  6,359,347,707  7,860,183,383 
Other Liabilities  -    -   
Total Financial Liabilities  1,500,835,676  113,026,500,297  -    114,527,335,973 
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 Ashad end 2077 

Amount in NPR
 Fair Vaule 
through PL  Amortized Cost  Measured at 

FVTOCI  Total 

Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents  8,606,158,430  8,606,158,430 
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  8,472,933,064  8,472,933,064 
Placement with Bank and Financial 
Institutions  -    -   

Derivative Financial Assets  1,192,390,828  1,192,390,828 
Loan and Advances to B/FIs  2,797,521,680  2,797,521,680 
Loans & Advances to Customers  65,021,931,372  65,021,931,372 
Financial Investments - Measured at 
Fair Value through PL  -   

Financial Investments - Measured at 
Fair Value through OCI  187,725,153  187,725,153 

Financial Invstments - Measured at 
Amoritized cost  7,314,960,417  7,314,960,417 

Other Financial Assets  -   
Total Financial Assets  1,192,390,828  92,213,504,963  187,725,153  93,593,620,944 
Financial Liabilities
Due from Customers  72,815,826,896  72,815,826,896 
Other Financial Liabilities  1,134,467,139  7,776,932,454  8,911,399,593 
Other Liabilities  -    -   
Total Financial Liabilities  1,134,467,139  80,592,759,350  -    81,727,226,488 

5.4 Operating Segment Information

5.4.1. General information
The Bank has presented segments reporting on the basis of each geographical business presence in seven 
Provinces of the country:Province 1,Province 2,Bagmati Province, Gandaki Province , Lumbini Province , Karnali 
Province and  Sudur Paschim Province. The Bank evaluates the performance of its segment on the basis of 
segment result before tax. Investments, Balance with NRB and others banks,Borrowings, Investment Income, 
Foreign Exchange Income and Unallocated Assets/Liabilties/ Expenses /Income are accounted in Corporate 
Office and accordingly all the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of Corporate Office are allocated under 
Bagmati Province .The following table presents revenue and profit ,and  asset and liability information for the 
Bank’s segments.Transfer prices between operating segments are based on the Bank’s internal pricing guidelines.
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5.4.4. Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:
(a) Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments  11,783,072 
Other revenues
Elimination of intersegment revenues  (2,160,049)
Entity's revenue  9,623,023 

(b) Profit or Loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segments  1,920,026 
Other Profit or loss  -   
Elimination of intersegment Profit  -   
Unallocated amounts
Entity's Profit or Loss before tax  1,920,026 

(c ) Assets
Total Assets for reportable segments  134,730,022 
Other assets  -   
Unallocated amounts:  -   
Entity's Assets  134,730,022 

(d) Liabilities
Total Liabilities for reportable segments  120,085,735 
Other Liabilities  -   
Unallocated amounts:  -   
Entity's Liabilities  120,085,735 

5.4.5 Information about products and services
Type of product and services:

a Treasury
b Card
c Remittance
d Banking

5.4.6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas

a Domestic  9,623,023 
  Province -1  835,708 
  Province -2  1,179,577 
  Bagmati Province  5,949,820 
  Gandaki Province  318,722 
  Lumbini Province  580,083 
  Karnali Province  134,694 
  Sudur Paschim Province  624,419 
b Foreign  -   
  Total  9,623,023 
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5.4.7. Information about major customers
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the Bank’s total 
revenue.
	
5.5. Share options and share based payments
A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for its equity 
instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity's shares or other equity instruments of the 
entity.The Bank has no any share options and share based payments as of reporting date.
	
5.6. Contingent liabilities and commitment
The detail of contingent liabilities and commitments has been presented in notes 4.28 above. 

5.7. Related Party Disclosures
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity ("the Bank") by virtue of having control or joint control, 
significant influence or being key managerial personnel of the entity as defined in "NAS 24 Related Party Disclosures". The 
Bank has identified the following related parties and transactions with them.
	
5.7.1 Indentification of Related Parties
a. Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity. The bank 
considers the members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and other higher managerial level employee of the 
bank as Key Managment Personnel. Following is the list of Key Management Personnel as on Ashad End 2078.

Name Relationship
Upendra Keshari Neupane, Chairman Director
Mohan Bahadur Basnet, Director Director
Iman Singh Lama, Director Director
Chandra Prasad Bastola, Director Director
Nishesh Pradhan, Director Director
Suman Kumari Joshi, Director Director
Rajaram Khadka, Director Director
Ramesh Raj Aryal, Chief Executive Officer Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Bandana Pathak, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Rewanta K. Dahal, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Sandip P. Pandey, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Binod Kumar Sharma, Deputy General Manager Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mukunda Subedi, Deputy General Manager Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Laxmi P. Duwal, Acting Assistant General Manager Key Management Personnel (KMP)

b. Associates 
Associates are those entities over which the bank has significant influence ( i.e. power to participate in the financial and 
operating policy decisions, but doesnot have power to control over those policies). The Bank has identified the following 
associate as having the significant influence through investment and appointing one of the employees to the Board of Directors 
of the entity.

Name Relationship
Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited Associates
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c. Retirement Benefit Plan
As per NAS 26 ,Retirement benefit plans are arrangements whereby an entity provides benefits for employees on or after 
termination of service (either in the form of an annual income or as a lump sum) when such benefits, or the contributions 
towards them, can be determined or estimated in advance of retirement from the provisions of a document or from the entity’s 
practices. Further , as per NAS 24 , If the entity is a post-employment defined benefit plan for the benefit of employees of  the 
reporting entity , then such plan is related to reporting entity. Accordingly ,the Bank has indentified the following retirement 
benefit plan as related party:

Name Relationship
NCC Retirement Fund Retirement Benefit Plan

5.7.2. Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party					   
The Bank does not have an identifiable parent of its own.					   
						    
5.7.3. Transactions with Related Parties

The transactions and year end Balance arising on account of transactions occuring with the Related Parties during the year 
is as follows:

Rs' 000
2020/21 2019/20

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)
Loans & receivables closing balance  38,155  35,752 
Deposits closing balance  26,165  40,583 
Associates:
Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Interest income during the year  5,805  6,290 
Interest expenses during the year  6  157 
Loans & receivables closing balance  124,590  220,000 
Deposits closing balance  15,181  128,360 
Retirement Benefit Plan:
Interest income during the year  14,216  14,564 
Interest expenses during the year  189,906  211,163 
Loans & receivables closing balance  -    -   
Investment in Debenture  390,000  -   
Deposits closing balance  2,352,178  2,680,973 

	
5.7.4 Compensation to Key Management Personnels

5.7.4.1 Board Members Allowances and Facilities	

The Board of Directors have been paid board meeting fees of NPR 7,502,000 during the fiscal year. There were 62 Board 
Meetings conducted during the fiscal year. The Chairperson and other members of the Board were paid NPR 16,000 and NPR 
14,000 per meeting respectively for Board and Board Level Committees meeting. The details of number of meeting held and 
Meeting fees paid to the Board/ Board Level Committees are as follows:

Board/Board Level Committees No of Meetings Meeting Allowance
Board Meeting 62  5,982 
Audit Committee  Meeting 20  688 
Risk Management Committee Meeting 6  288 
Anti money laundering Committee Meeting 10  272 
Employee Benefit Committee Meeting 8  272 

Total 106  7,502 

Each Board Members have been provided with a monthly allowance of NPR 8,000 for communication and periodicals.
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Total compensation paid to Board Members

Rs' 000

Particulars 2020/21 2019/20
Board fees & other related benefits  11,690  10,947 

Total  11,690  10,947 
	
5.7.4.2 Compensation to CEO and Executive Management Personnel  
The salary, allowances and other benefits paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the Bank with 
him and in regards to the Executive Management Personnel, the salary, allowances and other benefits is paid based upon the 
Employee Byelaws of the bank. The details relating to compensation paid to CEO and Executive Management Personnel is 
as follows:		

Amount in '000
Particulars 2020/21 2019/20

To CEO:
Short term employee benefits  9,900  9,750 
Employee Bonus  2,863  2,488 
Festival Allowance and payment against annual leave  1,650  825 
Post-employment benefits  -    -   
Other Allowances  825  525 

 15,238  13,588 
To Executive Management Personnel:
Short term employee benefits  15,876  14,295 
Employee Bonus  5,478  6,043 
Festival Allowance and payment against annual leave  3,174  2,855 
Post-employment benefits  -    -   
Other Allowances  8,096  7,609 

 32,624  30,803 
Grand Total (Including above)  59,551  55,338 

In addition to the above benefits, the Bank has also paid non-cash benefits such as fuel, insurance, mobile facilities to Key 
Management Personnels who are the employees of the Bank in line with the approved benefit plans of the Bank.

5.8. Merger & Acquisition										       
The Bank has not entered to any merger and acquisition deal during the reporting period.

5.9. Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities
The Bank has no any interest in any form of joint arrangements (joint operations or joint ventures) or unconsolidated structured 
entities as on reporting dates.The Bank has no any subsidiary for the consolidation.
													           
5.10. Events after reporting period	
As per NAS 10, Events after the reporting period are those events, whether favorable and unfavorable, which have occurred 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Such events 
may be adjusting events or non adjusting events. There is not any adjusting event after the reporting period. The Bank has 
following non adjusting events after the reporting period.

Non-adjusting event after the reporting period
1.	 The Board of Directors of the Bank has proposed the distribution of 8.00% of the existing paid up capital as Bonus Shares 

amounting Rs.825,161,334 and 0.42% of the existing paid up capital as cash dividend (for tax pupose ) amounting Rs. 
43,429,544 vide Board meeting dated Mangsir 14 ,2078 from the retained earnings up to F/Y 2077/78. The proposed 
distribution is subject to the approval by Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
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	 In accordance with Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 10 ( Events after the reporting Period), above proposed bonus 
shares has  not been recognized in the share capital. The Bank will recognize the same as share capital once the 
proposed bonus shares is approved by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.Above proposed cash dividend 
has not been recognized as a liability as of the year end. The Bank will recognize the same as its liability once the 
dividend declaration is approved by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
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k|d'v ;'rsf+°x?
ljut 5 jif{sf] kl/;"rsx? 

ljj/0f ;"rsfÍ

NFRS cg';f/

cf=j=

2073/74

cf=j=

2074/75

cf=j=

2075/76

cf=j=

2076/77

cf=j=

2077/78

!= v'b gfkmf÷s'n cfDbfgL k|ltzt 10.18% 18.26% 11.75% 11.91% 13.39%

@= k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL ¿= 14.02 11.83 15.77 10.75 12.90

#= k|lt z]o/ ahf/ d"No ¿= 383 250 246 186 367

$= d"No cfDbfgL cg'kft -P/E Ratio_ cg'kft 27.32 8.72 15.60 15.70 28.45

%= z]o/ k"FhLdf nfef+z -af]g; dfq_ k|ltzt  -   15.89% 15.00% 10.27% 8.00%

^= z]o/ k"FhLdf gub nfef+z e'QmfgL k|ltzt  -   0.83% 0.79% 0.54050% 0.42%

&= Aofh cfDbfgL÷shf{ tyf ;fk6 k|ltzt 9.21% 12.06% 12.04% 11.98% 8.46%

*= sd{rf/L vr{÷s'n ;~rfng vr{ k|ltzt 59.29% 66.60% 65.55% 63.93% 69.21%

(= s'n lgIf]k tyf ;fk6Ldf Aofh vr{ k|ltzt 4.52% 7.99% 6.61% 6.51% 4.80%

!)= ;6xL 36a9 cfDbfgL÷s'n cfDbfgL k|ltzt 0.74% 0.88% 1.42% 2.03% 2.43%

!!= sd{rf/L af]g;÷s'n sd{rf/L vr{ k|ltzt 9.11% 19.14% 17.59% 14.89% 13.72%

!@= v'b gfkmf÷shf{ ;fk6 k|ltzt 1.04% 2.40% 1.56% 1.57% 1.31%

!#= v'b gfkmf÷s'n ;DklQ k|ltzt 0.75% 1.83% 1.15% 1.14% 0.99%

!$= s'n shf{÷lgIf]k k|ltzt 83.06% 88.02% 89.42% 88.69% 91.54%

!%= s'n ;~rfng vr{÷s'n ;DklQ k|ltzt 1.40% 2.12% 2.14% 2.02% 1.67%

!^= hf]lvd efl/t ;DklQdf k"FhLsf]i fsf] kof{Kttf

s= k|fylds k"FhL k|ltzt 9.75% 10.29% 13.38% 12.82% 10.34%

v= k"/s k"FhL k|ltzt 0.96% 0.89% 0.92% 1.02% 3.41%

u= s'n k"FhLsf]if k|ltzt 10.71% 11.18% 14.30% 13.84% 13.75%

!&= lgis[o shf{÷s'n shf{ k|ltzt 7.49% 3.87% 2.78% 2.86% 1.76%

!*= cfwf/ Aofh b/ -Base Rate_ k|ltzt 9.32% 11.92% 10.23% 9.03% 7.57%

!(= cf};t Aofhb/ cGt/ -Weighted   
        Average Interest Rate Spread_

k|ltzt 3.75% 4.12% 4.70% 3.84% 3.76%

@)= a's g]6jy{ ¿=  7,137,443,024  8,486,492,525  12,008,054,730  13,161,002,598  14,644,287,793 

@!= s'n z]o/ ;+Vof  46,790,582  46,790,582  70,185,873  93,539,169  103,145,167 

@@= s'n sd{rf/L ;+Vof 948 1111  1,274  1,341  1,386 

@#= s'n zfvf ;+Vof 79 108 120 122 133
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cfly{s jif{ @)&&÷&* sf] nfef+z 3f]if0ff÷ljt/0f tyf ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg ug]{ ;DaGwdf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 k|fKt 
lgb] {zgx?sf] ;DaGwdf a}+s Joj:yfkgsf] hjfkm M

!=	 n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf s}lkmotx¿sf] ;DaGwdf qmdzM ;'wf/ ug]{ tyf To:tf s}lkmotx¿ k'gM bf] xf] l/g 
glbg cfjZos Joj:yf ldnfOg]5 .

@=	 o; a}+ssf] @ k|ltzteGbf a9L z]o/ wf/0f u/]sf ;+:yfksx¿sf] z]o/ laqmL tyf lwtf]aGws /fVbf a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yf;DaGwL P]g, @)&# sf] bkmf !! -#_ cg'¿k g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] :jLs[lt lng] Joj:yf ldnfOg]5 .

#=	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg cg'¿k nfef+z afktsf] gub tyf af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f ul/g]5 .
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ATM ;~hfnx¿
काठमाण्डौ उपत्यका भित्रको

उपत्यका बाहिरको
१ सिद्धार्थनगर शाखा 

२ लुम्बिनी शाखा

३ बाह्रबीसे शाखा

४ नारायणगढ शाखा

५ विराटनगर शाखा

६ महेन्द्रनगर शाखा

७ विरगंज शाखा

८ कलैया शाखा

९ पोखरा शाखा

१० विर्तामोड शाखा

११ बुटवल शाखा

१२ लहान शाखा

१३ अत्तरीया शाखा

१४ बैतडी शाखा

१५ दीपायल शाखा

१६ मलंगवा शाखा

१७ अत्तरीया शाखा (व्यारेक)

१८ धनगढी शाखा

१९ जनकपुर शाखा

२० लेखनाथ शाखा, तालचोक

२१ विरेन्द्रनगर शाखा

२२ ईनरुवा शाखा

२३ मन्थली शाखा

२४ सिमरा शाखा

२५ चन्द्रनिगाहापुर शाखा

२६ गाईघाट शाखा

२७ हेटौंटा शाखा

१. मुख्य शाखा, बागबजार

२. थानकोट शाखा

३. बनेपा शाखा

४. धुलिखेल शाखा

५. न्यूरोड शाखा

६. चावहिल शाखा

७. कुमारीपाटी शाखा

८. कुपण्डोल शाखा

९. बिगमार्ट, लाजिम्पाट

१०. तीनकुने शाखा

११. लोकन्थली शाखा

१२. टेकु शाखा

१३. सुकेधारा शाखा

१४. थिमी शाखा

१५. बागबजार शाखा लबी

१६. पेप्सीकोला शाखा

१७. रातोपुल शाखा

१८. नारायणटार शाखा

१९. रामहिटी शाखा

२०. नयाँबजार शाखा

२१. न्यूरोड शाखा लबी

२२. सामाखुशी शाखा

२३. सूर्यविनायक शाखा

२४. नयाँ बानेश्वर शाखा

२५. कलंकी शाखा

२६. चापागाउँ शाखा

२७. मिराकल कम्प्लेक्स, शंखमूल

२८. लुभु शाखा

२९. वान.डि.एम. कम्प्लेक्स, दरबारमार्ग

३०. खरिपाटी शाखा

३१. ग्वार्को शाखा

३२. के.एम.सी. अस्पताल, सिनामंगल 

३३. सुमेरु अस्पताल

२८ सिद्धार्थनगर शाखा (यूसीएमसी)

२९ कावासोती शाखा

३० चनौली शाखा

३१ वर्दघाट शाखा

३२ मङ्गलापुर शाखा

३३ हरिवन शाखा

३४ वरहथवा शाखा

३५ गैंडाकोट शाखा

३६ भिमाद शाखा

३७ बिरौटा शाखा

३८ सुनवल शाखा

३९ बिराटचोक शाखा

४० दमौली शाखा

४१ कोहलपुर शाखा

४२ जीतपुर शाखा

४३ कटारी शाखा

४४ मिर्चैया शाखा

४५ दमक शाखा

४६ बयलवास शाखा

४७ भरतपोखरी शाखा

४८ सिन्धुली शाखा

४९ रामापुर कोलोनी शाखा

५० बाग्लुङ्ग शाखा

५१ बेसीशहर शाखा

५२ नेपालगञ्ज शाखा

५३ मौलाकालिका अस्पताल

५४ बेनी शाखा

५५ पालुङ्गटार शाखा

५६ दइुपिप्ले शाखा

५७ इटहरी शाखा

५८ ढोरफिर्दी शाखा

५९ छिन्चु शाखा

६० गुलरीया शाखा

६१ चरिकोट शाखा

६२ बसन्तपुर शाखा

६३ निजगढ शाखा

६४ घोराही शाखा

६५ वर्दिबास शाखा

६६ टाँडी ​​शाखा

६७ बुटवल पेट्रोल पम्प, बुटवल

६८ धरान शाखा

६९ डडेल्धुरा

७० लम्की शाखा

७१ रंगेली शाखा

७२ करैयामाई शाखा

७३ गोलबजार शाखा

७४ बेलचौतारा शाखा

७५ जामुने शाखा

७६ अबुखैरेनी शाखा

७७ लक्ष्मीपुर पतारी शाखा

७८ आरके सिटी सेन्टर एटीएम, विराटनगर

७९ धार्के  शाखा

८० माझिमटार शाखा

८१ चरौदी शाखा
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jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷)&*

k|b]z g+= !
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L b'uf{ k|;fb l3ld/]
7]ufgf	 M	 d]g/f]8, lj/f6gu/ dxfgu/kflnsf – &, df]/·
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )@!–%@!)!#
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 lj/f6gu/ zfvf d]g/f]8, lj/f6gu/ – & df]/· )@!–%#^@&* >L ;~ho ;'j]bL
2 ljtf{df]8 zfvf sfFs/leQf /f]8, ljtf{df]8 g=kf= – %, emfkf )@#–%$)*%& >L /f]zg sfsL{
3 O6x/L zfvf O6x/L p=g=kf= – ^, ;'g;/L )@%–%*&#@% >L bLks s'df/ bf;
4 Og?jf zfvf Og?jf p=g=kf=–!, ;'g;/L )@%–%^)#)& >L lg/h bfxfn
5 lj/f6rf]s zfvf lj/f6rf]s, ;'Gb/x/Lrf – !), df]/· )@!–%$^#(! >L /fd s'df/ af:tf]nf
6 w/fg zfvf dx]Gb|ky, w/fg p=g=kf=–!@, ;'g;/L )@%–%@!&$# >L dx]z bfxfn
7 bds zfvf yfgf/f]8, bds g=kf= – ^, emfkf )@#–%*#)%# >L k|]d 9'+·]n
8 a;Gtk'/ zfvf nflnu'/fF; g=kf= – @, t]x|y'd )@^–$)@!*! >L /f]j6{ >]i7
9 lkmbLd zfvf lkmbLd ahf/, lkmbLd g=kf=–$, kfFry/ )@$–%@!!!& >L ?k]z s'df/ k/;}nf
10 d]G5\ofofd zfvf df]/fxfFu, d]G5\ofod – %, t]x|y'd )@^–^*!)#^ >L ;/f]h kf}8]n
11 d]l/·b]g zfvf d]l/·b]g uf=kf= – @, tfKn]h'· (*$#)))%@% >L ;ltz e§/fO{
12 /·]nL zfvf /·]nL g=kf=–&, df]/· )@!–%*))!) >L dgf]x/ kf7s

k|b]z g+= @ – s
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L k]|d axfb'/ a;f}nf
7]ufgf	 M	 cfbz{ gu/, lj/u+h dxfgu/kflnsf – !), k;f{
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )%!–%@%*#$
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 lj/u+h zfvf cfbz{gu/, lj/u+h – !), k;f{ )%!–%@*%%@ >L k'hf v]tfg l6j8]jfn
2 sn}of zfvf sn}of p=g=kf= – $, af/f )%#–%%!!(% >L cldt rf}w/L
3 dnª\ujf zfvf dnª\xjf – (, ;nf{xL )$^–%@!@)^ >L /ljk|;fb >Ljf:tj
4 l;d/f zfvf xfOj]/f]8, lhtk'/, l;d/f p=g=kf=–!, af/f )%#–%@!*%! >L af;'b]j e§/fO{
5 rGb|lgufxk'/ zfvf rGb|k'/ g=kf= –$, b'uf{rf]s, /f}tx6 )%%–%$)&%^ >L zflns/fd a:g]t
6 lghu9 zfvf lghu9 g=kf= –&, zlxb rf]s, af/f )%#–%$)$@( >L k+sh s'df/ pkfWofo
7 xl/jg zfvf xl/jg – !!, ;nf{xL )$^–%#)&%! >L uf]laGb nfld5fg]
8 a/xyjf zfvf j/xyjf g=kf= – ^, ;nf{xL )$^–%$))^$ >L ;Gho s'df/ u'Ktf
9 aonjf; zfvf O{Zj/k'/ g=kf=–^, aonjf;, ;nf{xL )$^–%&%@@) >L s]z/ s'df/ ;x
10 s/}ofdfO{ zfvf s/}ofdfO{ uf=kf= – !, af/f (*$%)(&(!! >L lji0f' k|;fb ;x u'Ktf sfg'
11 od'gfdfO{ zfvf od'gfdfO{ uf=kf= –!, /f}tx6 (*%%)$!$$$ >L pHjn l/hfn

k|b]z g+= @ – v
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L ;'/]z ofbj
7]ufgf	 M	 hgsk'/ p=k=g=kf= – @, wg'iff
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )$!–%())#^
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 nxfg zfvf nfxfg g=kf= – !, l;/fxf )##–%^@))^ >L laz]Zj/ gfos
2 l;Gw'nL zfvf ! g+= ahf/, sdnfdfO{ g=kf= – ^, l;Gw'nL )$&–%@)@^) >L zDe' v8\sf
3 ufO{3f6 zfvf lqo'uf g=kf= – !!, pbok'/ )#%–$@!$@$ >L 3gZofd a:g]t
4 hgsk'/ zfvf hgsk'/ p=k=g=kf= – @, wg'iff )$!–%())#^ >L /fh lszf]/ ld>
5 s6f/L zfvf s6f/L g=kf= –$, pbok'/ )#%–$%)%%( >L /d]z e08f/L
6 ldr{{{}of zfvf ldr}{of g=kf= – ^, l;/fxf )##–%%)*^& >L k|lbk s'df/ zfx
7 alb{af; zfvf alb{af; g=kf= – !$, dxf]Q/L )$$–%%)))# >L k|sfz rGb| e§/fO{ 
8 lai0f'k'/ zfvf lai0f'k'/ uf=kf=–^, ;Kt/L )#!–%@@)*# >L lw/h s'df/ u'Ktf
9 wgu9LdfO{ zfvf wgu9LdfO{ – !), l;/fxf )##–%$%!## >L lbk]Gb| s'df/ zfx
10 nIdLk'/ ktf/L zfvf nIdLk'/ ktf/L uf=kf= –#, l;/fxf (*@&&!@*@$ >L cho s'df/ ofbj
11 Uff]nahf/ zfvf Uff]nahf/ g= kf=– ^, l;/fx )##–%$)%!% >L ldng laZjsdf{

k|b]z tyf ;f]] cGtu{t /x]sf zfvf sfof{nox¿
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afudtL k|b]z – s æ!Æ
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L ;ld/ cfrfo{
7]ufgf	           M	 tLgs'g], sf=d=g=kf=–#@, sf7df8f}+
;Dks{ g+=	          M	 )!–%!(()*#
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 afx|aLz] zfvf afx|aLz] ahf/, afx|aLz] g=kf= – $, 
l;Gw'kfNrf] s )!!–$*()(* >L df]xg s]=;L=

2 yfgsf]6 zfvf r]skf]i6, rGb|flu/L g=kf= – &, sf7df8f}+ )!–$#!!(@& >L /fdaxfb'/ s]=;L=
3 ag]kf zfvf ag]kf g=kf= – &, ag]kf, sfe|]knf~rf]s )!!–^^@)&^ >L s'df/ zdf{
4 s'df/Lkf6L zfvf s'df/Lkf6L, n=d=g=kf= – !(, nlntk'/ )!–%%$!(^@ >L cleif]s /fdeQm dfy]df
5 s'k08f]n zfvf s'k08f]n, nlntk'/ d=g=kf= – !), nlntk'/ )!–%%#)%)! >L kf]jg s'df/ ld>|
6 rl/sf]6 zfvf rl/sf]6, led]Zj/ g=kf= – ^, bf]nvf )$(–$@!*)* >L ;'/]Gb| s]=;L
7 nf]sGynL zfvf nf]sGynL, dWok'/ lydL g=kf= – !, eQmk'/ )!–^^#^%@& >L ;'lgn yfkf

8 kfFrvfn zfvf ;dfhsNof0f rf]s, kfFrvfn g=kf= – $, 
sfe]|knfGrf]s )!!–$(()%@ >L pd]z kf}8]n

9 kgf}tL zfvf kgf}tL a;kfs{, kgf}tL – &, sfe|]knf~rf]s )!!–$$!@$@ >L ;'dg aGhf/f
10 gofF afg]Zj/ zfvf gofF afg]Zj/, sf=d=g=kf=–!), sf7df8f}+ )!–$&*^!#& >L /flwsf >]i7
11 tLgs'g] zfvf tLgs'g], sf=d=g=kf=–#@, sf7df8f}+ )!–%!(()*# >L k|j]z sfsL{
12 ;'s]wf/f zfvf ;'s]wf/f, sf=d=g=kf= – $, sf7df8f}+ )!–$#&@*)* >L ;lGbk s'df/ pkfWofo
13 dGynL zfvf s6/af]6, dGynL g=kf= – !, /fd]5fk )$*–%$)%!) >L a]r' s]=;L=
14 lydL zfvf axfvf ahf/, lydL g=kf= – ^, eQmk'/ )!–^^#^*$% >L lai0f' x/L >]i7
15 rf}tf/f zfvf rf}tf/f ;fFufrf]su9L g=kf= – %, l;Gw'kfNrf]s )!!–^@)$)! >L ;Dk"0f{ lu/L
16 ;fdfv'zL zfvf ;fdfv'zL, sf=d=g=kf= – @^, sf7df8f}+ )!–$#^)*$& >L hfgsL l;+x rGb

17 gf/fo0f6f/ zfvf gf/fo0f6f/, hf]/kf6L, uf]s0f]{Zj/ g=kf= – ^, 
sf7df8f}+ )!–$(!!@*) >L ;fu/ s;fh'

18 ;"o{ljgfos zfvf ;"o{ljgfos, e=g=kf=–$, eQmk'/ )!–^^!(*&( >L l;tf/fd sf]08f
19 l;kf3f6 zfvf l;kf3f6, d08gb]pk'/ g=kf=–^, sfe|]knf~rf]s )!!–^@@%^^^ >L CifL/fd bfxfn
20 rf}+/Lb]p/fnL zfvf rf}+/Lb]p/fnL uf=kf=–^, sfe|]knf~rf]s (*$!$^^##^ >L ;s]6 ;Tofn
21 h'un zfvf 9f8], h'un uf=kf=–%, l;Gw'kfNrf]s (*%!!@$$)$ >L 5ljnfn bfxfn
22 Vfl/kf6L zfvf rfFu'gf/fo0f g=kf= – %, eQmk'/ )!–%)%!@%^ >L k|efs/ 9'+u]n
23 gofFkf6L zfvf Uff]s0f]{Zj/ g=kf= – !, sf7df8f}+ )!–$*)))&! >L lbjf s]=;L

afudtL k|b]z – s æ@Æ
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L ck{0f kf]v/]n
7]ufgf	 M	 d'Vo sfof{no, afuahf/, sf7df8f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf
;Dks{ g+=	            M     )!–$@$^((!
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 d'Vo zfvf, sf7df8f}+ sf=d=g=kf= – @*, afuahf/, sf7df8f}+ )!–$@$^((! >L ljsf; dfg >]i7
2 Go"/f]8 zfvf Go"/f]8, sf=d=g=kf= – @@, sf7df8f}+ )!–$@#!&@! >L ;'hg >]i7
3 rfjlxn zfvf rfjlxn, sf=d=g=kf=–&, sf7df8f}+ )!–$$^!&&$ >L hLjg s'df/ s6'jfn
4 n'e' zfvf n'e' a;kfs{, dxfnIdL g=kf= – *, nlntk'/ )!–%%*!%#% >L /fdafa' sF8]n

5 6]s' zfvf cDa] sDKn]S;, 6]s', sf=d=g=kf= – !@, 
sf7df8f}+ )!–$@!@*!$ >L :jL6L k|wfg dNn

6 /ftf]k'n zfvf /ftf]k'n, sf=d=g=kf= – ##, sf7df8f}+ )!–$$!^$&$ >L ;[i6L hf]zL >]i7
7 dxf/fhuGh zfvf dxf/fhuGh, sf=d=g=kf= – #, sf7df8f}+ )!–$#&#*#^ >L /d]z nfld5fg]
8 gofFahf/ zfvf gofFahf/, sf=d=g=kf= – !^, sf7df8f}+ )!–$#*(&^$ >L s?0ff kGt ld>|

9 9'·]wf/f zfvf cGgk"0f{ rf]s, 9'·]wf/f, sf=d=g=kf= – !%, 
sf7df8f}+ )!–%@$(@(! >L k'ikf nD;fn e08f/L

10 sn+sL zfvf sn+sL, sf=d=g=kf=–!$, sf7df8f}+ )!–%@!*%@% >L nf]sgfy kGt
11 rfkfufpFm zfvf rfkfufpF bf]af6f], n=d=g=kf=–!$, nlntk'/ )!–%!%!%!^ >L l:dtf >]i7
12 Ujfsf]{ zfvf Ujfsf]{, n=d=g=kf –&, nlntk'/ )!–%%%#*)! >L k|]d s[i0f afxf/L

13 k]K;Lsf]nf zfvf k]K;Lsf]nf 6fpgKnflg·, sf=d=g=kf=– #@, 
sf7df8f}+ )!–$(()&^! >L lbk]z tfd|fsf/

14 /fdlx6L zfvf l;dn6f/, /fdlx6L, sf=d=g=kf= – ^, sf7df8f}+ )!–$*!@(&& >L gf/fo0f k|;fb vltj8f
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afudtL k|b]z – v
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L zf+u|Lnf >]i7
7]ufgf	 M	 e/tk'/ d=g=kf=–(, lrtjg
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )%^–%(^*))

qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 gf/fo0fu9 zfvf zlxb rf]s, gf/fo0fu9, e/tk'/ d=g=kf= – #, 
lrtjg )%^–%&!*#^ >L ;'ldtf >]i7

2 x]6f}+8f zfvf a'4rf]s, x]6f}+8f p=d=g=kf=–$, dsjfgk'/ )%&–%@$^@@ >L laBf;fu/ b'nfn
3 rgf}nL zfvf rgf}nL, e/t'k/ d=g=kf=–!*, lrtjg )%^–%(!^#! >L /fh]Gb| kf]v/]n
4 sfjf;f]tL zfvf sfjf;f]tL g=kf= –@, gjnk/f;L, ;':tf k"j{ )&*–%$)!^% >L s'df/ af:tf]nf
5 u}+8fsf]6 zfvf u}+8fsf]6 – %, gjnk/f;L, ;':tf k"j{ )&*–%)#)!! >L l/tf sF8]n
6 6fF8L zfvf 6fF8L, /Tgk'/ g=kf= –@, lrtjg )%^–%^#$!* >L lgd{n pk|tL
7 x'K;]sf]6 zfvf x'K;]sf]6 uf=kf= –$, gjnk/f;L (*^(%#&!(@ >L uf]ljGb la=s=
8 xflsdrf]s zfvf e/tk'/ d=g=kf=–(, lrtjg )%^–%(^*)) >L u+ufw/ ltdnl;gf
9 wfs]{ zfvf w'lga];L g=kf= –^, wflbª (*%!!$^)%# >L cho cfrfo{
10 Dflemd6f/ zfvf /f]/f· uf=kf= –(, wflbª (*%!)(!!)# >L ;lGbk e§/fO{
11 tfNtL zfvf /f]/f· uf=kf= –@, wflbª (*$!&!*&@! >L /ljGb| >]i7
12 r/f}bL zfvf /f]/f· uf=kf= –&, wflbª )!)–$@))@& >L ;'lbk uf}td
13 sf]Nk'6f/ zfvf a]nsf]6u9L g=kf= %, wflbª (*%!!)%!(@ >L ;/f]h uh'/]n
14 808f zfvf sfjf;f]tL g=kf= !^, gjnk/f;L )&*–$!*!#) >L ;+ljwfg s]=;L
15 bnbn] zfvf b]jr'nL g=kf= !#, gjnk/f;L (*%&)$&@)@ >L dgf]h kGt
16 b'dsf}nL zfvf b]jr'nL g=kf= @, gjnk/f;L (*%&)*&*!% >L tf/f las|d kf}8]n
17 xs{k'/ zfvf u}+8fsf]6 – !@, gjnk/f;L )&*–$)#)#$ >L lbks uf}td

u08sL k|b]z

k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L lbks s'df/ yfkf
7]ufgf	 M	 kf]v/f dxfgu/kflnsf – *, tfnrf]s, n]vgfy, sf:sL
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )^!–%@@*))

qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws
1 kf]v/f zfvf Go"/f]8, kf]=n]=d=g=kf=–*, sf:sL )^!–%@@*)) >L lr/GhLjL nfld5fg]
2 n]vgfy zfvf tfnrf]s, kf]=n]=d=g=kf= – @&, sf:sL )^!–%^!^^& >L ef]h/fh ;'j]bL
3 afF‰ffkf6g zfvf afFemfkf6g, kf]=n]=d=g=kf= –!#, sf:sL )^!–%#^$!% >L ld7f/fd bfxfn
4 cfFj'v}/]gL zfvf cfFa'v}/]gL ahf/, cfFa'v}/]gL uf=kf= – #, tgx"F )^%–%$)$&& >L /fh]Gb| vgfn
5 ledfb zfvf s'df/rf]s, ledfb g=kf= – ^, tgx"F )^%–%&@$)& >L z}n]Gb| s'df/ kf}8]n

6 e/tkf]v/L zfvf sflnsf:yfg, e/tkf]v/L, kf]=n]=d=g=kf= – ##, 
sf:sL )^!–^@@^^& >L lvd axfb'/ If]qL

7 a]gL zfvf Go"/f]8, a]gL g=kf= – *, DofUbL )^(–%@!#@^ >L nId0f zdf{
8 la/f}6f zfvf kfbL{, la/f}6f, kf]=n]=d=g=kf= – !&, sf:sL )^!–$^&^%( >L ch'{g l;Ub]n
9 jfln· zfvf lecfO{kL 6f]n, jfln· g=kf= – *, :ofª\hf )^#–$$)&$( >L OZj/L k|;fb 8'd|]
10 afUn'· zfvf xngrf]s, afUn'· g=kf=–#, afUn'· )^*–%@!&)% >L lzj k|;fb af:tf]nf
11 bdf}nL zfvf bdf}nL, Jof; g=kf= – #, tgx"F )^%–%^$%)@ >L ;'hg vgfn
12 a]zLzx/ zfvf lqj]0fL 6f]n, a]zLzx/ g=kf= –&, ndh'· )^^–%@!$)* >L /3'gfy nf}8f/L
13 7fF6Lkf]v/L zfvf 7fF6Lkf]v/L, kfn'·6f/ g=kf= – %, uf]/vf )^$–$)))!^ >L ljgo clwsf/L
14 9f]/lkmbL{ zfvf 9f]/lkmbL{ ahf/, z'Snfu08sL g=kf=–*, tgx"F )^%–$!!@(! >L uf]s0f{ uf}td
15 b'O{lkKn] zfvf b'O{lkKn] ahf/, dWog]kfn g=kf= – $, ndh'· )^%–^@)##! >L ob'sfGt l3ld/]
16 Hffd'g] zfvf DofUb] uf=kf=–@, tgx"F )^%–$)!@!)
17 a]nrf}tf/f zfvf z'Snfu08sL gu/kflnsf %, tgx"F )^%–%&)#@) Wfgs'df/L yfkf
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n'lDagL k|b]z
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L dlgif cof{n
7]ufgf	 M	 l;4fy{gu/ gu/kflnsf – %, a}+s/f]8, ?kGb]xL
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )&!–%@&!&%
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 l;4fy{gu/ zfvf a}+s /f]8, l;4fy{gu/ g=kf=–%, ?kGb]xL )&!–%@!(%@ >L ;lrg u'Ktf
2 n'lDagL zfvf dlxnaf/, ;+:s[t g=kf= – !^, ?kGb]xL )&!–%*)!%@ >L d'Ggf cu|x/L

3 a'6an zfvf 6«flkms rf]s, kfNkf /f]8, a'6an p=d=g=kf= – 
^, ?kGb]xL )&!–%$^^#) >L ;'o{ k|;fb z]/rg

4 ;'gjn zfvf ;'gjn rf}/fxf, ;'gjn g=kf= – !, gjnk/f;L, 
;':tf klZrd )&*–%&)%)! >L ljgf]b rGb| vgfn

5 d+unfk'/ zfvf d+unfk'/, ltnf]Qdf g=kf= – (, ?kGb]xL )&!–%^@!^@ >L clDasf lh=;L=
6 bfl·z/0f zfvf x]s'nL, a}af·, bfl·z/0f – $, bf· (*)^@#%%)* >L lazfn b]jsf]6f
7 3f]/fxL zfvf t'N;Lk'/ rf]s, 3f]/fxL p=d=g=kf= – !%, bf· )*@–%^#(^% >L sdn /]UdL

8 jb{3f6 zfvf lzjgu/, jb{3f6 g=kf= – $, gjnk/f;L, ;':tf 
k"j{ )&*–%*)*$@ >L /ljGb| s]j6

9 /fdfk'/ sf]nf]gL zfvf /fdfk'/ sf]nf]gL, ;}gfd}gf g=kf= – ^, ?kGb]xL )&!–%)%#^% >L k|]d k|;fb sfÇn]
10 hLtk'/ $ g+= zfvf hLtk'/, afF0fu+uf g=kf= – $, slknj:t' )&^–%%)$!* >L kbd kf08]
11 ;'nLrf}/ zfvf ;'lgn :d[tL uf=kf= – $, ;'nLrf}/,  /f]Nkf )*^–$)!!#( >L hLjg yfkf
12 ;TojtL zfvf ;TojtL uf=kf= – ^, u'NdL )&(–$!!!)& >L a'4L;fu/ uf}td
13 cu{nL zfvf tfg;]g g=kf= – !$, cu{nL, kfNkf )&%–^@)))) >L dfg axfb'/ /fjn

s0ff{nL k|b]z
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L r]t sfGt h};L
7]ufgf	 M	 la/]Gb|gu/ gu/kflnsf – ^, ;'v]{t
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )*#–%@#&))
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 lj/]Gb|gu/ zfvf d+unu9L rf]s, lj/]Gb|gu/ g=kf= – ^, ;'v]{t )*#–%@#%)) >L lg/Ghg s'df/ 1jfnL
2 l5Gr' zfvf l5Gr', e]/Lu+uf g=kf= – !@, ;'v]{t )*#–%$)!)& >L ofbjL vqL
3 hx/] zfvf hx/], e]/Lu+uf g=kf= – (, ;'v]{t )*#–$!#)%( >L kbd /fh kf08]
4 aflaofrf}/ zfvf k~rk'/L g=kf= – (, ;'v]{t )*#–$!^)#( >L Zofd k|;fb rkfO{
5 g]kfnuGh zfvf ;'v]{t /f]8, g]kfnuGh p=k=g=kf= – !@, afFs] )*!–$!%@#! >L dlgif s'df/ >]i7
6 sf]xnk'/ zfvf sf]xnk'/ g=kf= – !!, afFs] )*!–%$))#! >L /fhd0fL kf]v/]n
7 u'n/Lof zfvf ;[hgf6f]n, u'n/Lof g=kf= – ^, alb{of )*$–$@!@(^ >L lzjk|;fb ;fksf]6f
8 b}n]v zfvf gf/fo0f g=kf=–!, b}n]v )*(–$!)!@* >L vu]Gb| yfkf
9 7fF6LsfFw zfvf 7fF6LsfFw uf=kf= – ^, b}n]v (*%*)#%!(# >L hut axfb'/ yfkf
10 dxfa' zfvf dxfa' uf=kf= – $, b}n]v (*^^%!(!)) >L sdn e08f/L

;'b"/klZrd k|b]z
k|b]z k|d'v	 M	 >L ;+uLtf zdf{
7]ufgf	 M	 wgu9L pkdxfgu/kflnsf – @, k'/fgf] eG;f/ /f]8, s}nfnL
;Dks{ g+=	 M	 )(!–%@^!%^
qm=;+= zfvfsf] gfd zfvfsf] 7]ufgf ;Dks{ g+= zfvf k|aGws

1 dx]Gb|gu/ zfvf ;AhLd08L /f]8, ledbQ g=kf= – $, s~rgk'/ )((–%@$*%% >L v8s l;+x d9fO{
2 cQ/Lof zfvf cQ/Lof, uf]bfj/L g=kf= – @, s}nfnL )(!–%%!@@# >L k|sfzrGb| e§
3 a}t8L zfvf uf]7fnfkfgL, bz/y rGb g=kf= – $, a}t8L )(%–%@)%$^ >L hLjgk|;fb n]vs
4 lbkfon zfvf lkKnf ahf/, lbkfon l;nu9L g=kf= – $, 8f]6L )($–$!@!%) >L s'df/ v8\sf

5 wgu9L zfvf k'/fgf] eG;f/ /f]8, wgu9L p=d=g=kf= – @, s}
nfnL )(!–%@^!%^ >L x]d/fh hf]zL

6 nDsL zfvf nDsL rf]s, nDsLr'xf g=kf=–!, s}nfnL )(!–%$)#%^ >L hLjg k|;fb e§
7 s[i0fk'/ zfvf s[i0fk'/ g=kf= – %, s~rgk'/ )((–$!@)&& >L /ljGb| s]=;L=
8 d]nf}nL zfvf d]nf}nL g=kf= – &, a}t8L (*%*&*@@## >L dx]Gb| axfb'/ rGb
9 88]nw'/f zfvf cd/u9L g=kf= – %, 88]nw'/f )(^–$!)@&@ >L Hfo k|sfz e§
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s]Gb|Lo sfof{no cGtu{tsf ljefuLo tyf PsfO k|d'vx¿

qm=;+= ljefuLo k|d'v ljefu

!= >L nIdL k|;fb b'jfn hf]lvd Joj:yfkg

@= >L /d]z ;fksf]6f s]Gb|Lo ;~rfng

#= >L ck{0f kf]v/]n skf]{/]6 qm]l86 tyf kl/of]hgf nufgL

$= >L /fd gfy uf}td s]Gb|Ls[t shf{ ;~rfng

%= >L /fh]z /fh 9'Ë]n 6«]h/L -k|mG6_, PUh'n/L / /]ld6\ofG;

^= >L z/b lh= /fh shf{ cg'udg

&= >L gu]Gb| k|;fb ljdnL ;fdfGo k|zf;g -;fdfGo ;]jf_

*= >L /fh s'df/ >]i7 ljQ tyf of]hgf

(= >L ch'{g hË l;njfn k|d'v Jofkf/ clws[t÷shf{ ;kf]6{

!)= >L ljgo k|;fb clwsf/L zfvf ;~rfng

!!= >L ;l/gf kf08] shf{ hf]lvd – P;PdO{, l/6]n tyf ljkGg ju{ shf{

!@= >L o'/]z dfg sfo:y P=6L=Pd= tyf sf8{ 

!#= >L dbg zfSo cg'kfngf

!$= >L gf/fo0f k|;fb e§/fO{ shf{ hf]lvd – skf]{/]6 qm]l86 tyf kl/of]hgf nufgL

!%= >L ;'hg/fh a}B k]d]G6 tyf ;]6nd]G6

!^= >L h'nL >]i7 dfgj ;+zfwg

!&= >L s'df/L yfkf /fhe08f/L s]Gb|Ls[t PsfpG6 cf]klgË

!*= >L dbg dxh{g s]Gb|Ls[t 6«]8 kmfOgfG;

!(= >L /fh' ah|frfo{ shf{ ;+sng tyf c;'nL

@)= >L ;'dg cfrfo{ ;fdfGo k|zf;g -vl/b tyf e08f/0f_

@!= >L cldtf >]i7 ahf/ Joj:yfkg

@@= >L pQd /fhsl0f{sf/ ;"rgf k|ljlw

@#= >L cfo'if yfkf skf]{/]6 qm]l86 tyf kl/of]hgf nufgL -pmhf{ tyf ko{6g_

@$= >L dLg/fh hË zfx /]ld6\ofG;

@%= >L k|Ltd s'df/ bf; >]i7 6«]h/L Aofs

@^= >L c;Ld e§ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f

@&= >L j]bgfy kxf8L sfg'g tyf z]o/

@*= >L ljdn s'df/ clwsf/L ;"rgf k|ljlw -l8lh6nfOh];g tyf PUh'n/L ;]jf_

@(= >L ;/f]h e08f/L ;DklQ z'l4s/0f lgjf/0f

#)= >L ljZjgfy e§/fO{ sDkgL ;lrj

#!= >L lalDasf g]kfn -ld>_ cjsfz sf]if

#@= >L 1fg]Gb| laqmd a:g]t PUh'n/L

##= >L s[i0f kf08] l/slG;n];g

#$= >L cgfldsf s'df/L emf cfO= P;= cf]=



1 15

jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷)&*

l6kf]6 M
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l6kf]6 M
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pRr Joj:yfkg ;d'x
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no

>L /d]z/fh cof{n
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L aGbgf kf7s
gfoj k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L /]jGt s'df/ bfxfn
gfoj k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L ljgf]b s'df/ zdf{
gfoj dxf–k|aGws

>L ;lGbk k|;fb kf08]
gfoj k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

>L d's'Gb ;'j]bL
gfoj dxf–k|aGws

>L nIdL k|;fb b'jfn
sf=d'= ;xfos dxf–k|aGws
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 a}+saf6 ul/Psf ljleGg sfo{qmd tyf ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj 

cGtu{t  ul/Psf sfo{qmdx¿sf] emns

a}+ssf] @%cf}“ jflif{sf]T;j

/]8qm; ;'gjn pk–zfvfdf kfgLsf] lkmN6/ ljt/0f sfo{qmd

a}+såf/f cfof]lht /Qmbfg sfo{qmd @)&*

cefgL kmfpG8];gnfO{ Nofk6k ljt/0f sfo{qmd

sflQ{s gfr @)&*

/Qmbfg ;df/f]xdf >L k|]d ;fu/ sdf{rfo{nfO{ clegGbg sfo{qmd 






